(F) 7 78 5 () %5 PR 2 )

v LUK FOOK HOLDINGS (INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED

(RBFEEMA ZBRDF )
(Incorporated in Bermuda with Limited Liability)
Stock Code fR{3X5% : 0590

Sparkling the

Brand of HOIl KOIlg

=i World
o] %

S W

Annual Report AR

2011



CONTENTS
H #%

02 | Corporate Information 1> 3& & %}
04 | Corporate Events 1> £ 1% #)
06 | Honours & Awards 488 J 4%
08 | Chief Executive’s Statement 17 B 15
12 | Management Discussion and Analysis & 21L& & S 53 Hr
24 | Corporate Governance Report 1> 316 15
38 | Report of the Directors = F & #t i
55 | Independent Auditor’s Report J 3. 7% B ffi#t 2
57 | Consolidated Income Statement %75 5 i %
58 | Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income %7152 T WA i 7%
59 | Consolidated Balance Sheet %715 & 7 £ fi &
61 | Balance Sheet & £ f&#
62 | Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity %551 fis 53 8 3%
64 | Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows 4757 Bl & il &%
65 | Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements F4 75 % B 51
152 | Business Structure 7522 4%
153 | Distribution of Lukfook Outlets in the PRC H1[E0 7548 %85 ik 73 M
154 | Distribution of the Group’s Self-Operated Outlets A%E [H 2 5 73

CORPORATE PROFILE
<26 31ib1y

Established in 1991, Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited is o‘ﬁ?'
of the leading jewellery retailers in Hong Kong and the PRC. The Group
principally engages in the sourcing, designing, wholesaling and retailing
of a variety of platinum and gold jewelleries, gold ornaments, gem-set
jewelleries, jadeites, gemstones and other accessory items, with a total
of over 700 retail outlets in Hong Kong, the PRC, Macau, Singapore, the
United States and Canada.

The Group was listed on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange in May 1997.
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HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Luk Fook Jewellery Centre

No. 239 Temple Street

Jordon, Kowloon

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2308 1218

Fax: (852) 2374 1696

E-mail: group@lukfook.com.hk

Website: http://www.lukfook.com.hk

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Hang Seng Bank Limited

The Bank of East Asia Limited

Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited

DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited
Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

Wing Hang Bank Limited

Dah Sing Bank, Limited

SHARE REGISTRAR

HSBC Securities Services (Bermuda) Limited

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

IN HONG KONG

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716

17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONSULTANT

JOVIAN Financial Communications Limited
24/F., Tung Hip Commercial Building
244-248 Des Voeux Road Central

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2581 0168

Fax: (852) 2156 9610

E-mail: jovian@joviancomm.com

Website: http://www.joviancomm.com

Both the English and Chinese versions of this Annual Report can be
accessed through the Internet at: http://www.lukfook.com.hk
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Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited

CORPORATE EVENTS
oe 0T

<« Pure gold ornaments
“Lucky Rabbit”
Collection, “Lucky
Rabbit” Gold Bar and
two exquisite accessories
of “12 Chinese Zodiac”
to celebrate the Lunar
New Year
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“Floating”, “Bubbles”,
“Beautiful Song”,
“Joyous Key” and

“Cheerful Mind” Series
of “K-gold elite” 18K
Gold Collection

K-gold elite [ 7 i 118K
X E T ARSI
[~ Tooh ]
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< “Love Forever”
Collection with celebrity
Mr. Raymond Lam as
the spokesperson in the
PRC
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[ Love Forever 15 A |
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<« Sponsored the “2010
Summer Pop — Live in
HK” concert held by
Hong Kong Tourism
Board
JE E AT 20107 HE
H AT & S E T T 1L
e
“Convergence of Love” P> ]
. . i L]
Collection specially ) S
designed for sparkling .
Christmas o = e
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<« Launched “Lukfook
Jewellery — Jewellery
Gold Price Express”
iPhone App, allowing
customers to keep track
of up-to-date jewellery
gold price anywhere at
anytime
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Invited Ms. Pauline P>

Yeung to attend ﬁ | “r" g
ribbon-cutting ”IIJ I 1! ﬁ“
activities in
North America
celebration of the
grand opening of
new shop
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A “Bronze Award in Counter Service Sector” in “Customer Service
Excellence Award” hosted by Hong Kong Association for
Customer Services Excellence

A7 s 2 s W P B e [ BT R B RS R 8 | e <« Sponsored the

ST B B 0L 3 NIk E diamond crown and
LUKFDOK JEWELLERY precious jewellery
pieces to “Miss Hong

<« “Bronze Award in o
| T Kong Pageant” for
Manufacturing Sector ]
i} 1t the 13th consecutive
Outstanding Corporate S
o " Citizenship Award” Sthi s | —

3 i hosted by the Hong ‘g“ﬁﬁ‘;?ﬁéﬂb(%
Kong Productivity s IMABEE | 3s
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“PRC Consumers” P>
Most Favorable Hong
Kong Brands 2010 —
Gold Prize” for 5
consecutive years

Being the official P>
sponsor of the crown
and jewellery for “Miss
Asia Pageant” for
consecutive years
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e L — 4% | ek PN K =y =
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<« Being the exclusive
jewellery sponsor in
“TVS New Silk Road
Model Contest”
MERR RS R 5 M A
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HONOURS & AWARDS

39T 2

May fi. H
2010

TV Commercial “Love is Beauty”” was voted as “The Ten Most Popular TV
Commercials” in “The 15th Annual Most Popular TV Commercial Awards”

%ﬁéﬁ%]%ﬁ%%%ﬁdﬁ%kl’%ﬂﬂiﬁ+k‘%ﬁ§%ﬂﬁﬁiﬁ%l [+ REBEZEBER

Organizer: aTV
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Aug \ H
2010

The 1st Runner-up in “Ordering Oxfam Rice (Organization Category)” in “Oxfam Rice
Sale 2010”

[ SHEK 2 B RAT B2010 12 4 BT K CBE RE AL ) S5k B |55 8

Organizer: Oxfam

R : i

Sep JUH
2010

“The Most Outstanding Brand in Greater China 2010”
[ K v 55 75 il K 362010

Organizer: East Week Magazine

RS : CRAE D

“Outstanding Corporate Image Award 2010
[ i £ X TE R R 862010

Organizer: TVB Weekly Magazine

HEBERE - CTVBRTI)

Oct +H
2010

“PRC Consumers’ Most Favorable Hong Kong Brands 2010” — Gold Prize
(20104 B3 & % I S B A M 2 [ Fi 4 et

Organizer: China Enterprise Reputation and Credibility Association (Overseas) Limited

RS - b (A ) SR A5 B i

Nov +—H
2010

“Bronze Award in Manufacturing Sector” in “The Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate
Citizenship Award”

[ F O iy A 2 RBE | — [ SR AL S8 |

Organizer: Hong Kong Productivity Council

AR : AN IOE R

Jan — H
2011

“Green Medalist” in “Hang Seng Pearl River Delta Environmental Awards 2009/10”
[ 2k = £ BRAR K 382009/10 1 5% (. 3 72

Organizer: Federation of Hong Kong Industries and Hang Seng Bank

PR : AW RS - HAAYT

“Bronze Award in Counter Service Sector’” In ‘“Customer Service Excellence Award”
[ B 2 WL MRy R 28 | 2 [ I o5 4L ) S A |

Organizer: Hong Kong Association for Customer Services Excellence

RN ¢ A B RUBR B

TV Commercial “Love is Beauty — Chapter of Friendship”” obtained “The Best Social
Gender Equality TV Commercial Award” in “Women of Media Award 2010

i%jﬁ%l’ﬁiﬁ% o KA JHETST 20107 1B Lo VAR IRORBE I > [dgef k€ PP 2 B 3

Organizer: Lady.163.com and the United Nations Entity for Gender Equality and the
Empowerment of Women

EHBRRE : B 5L ARG - BB KRR

Mar = H
2011

“Caring Company Logo”
[V 5 Bl ¢ I B

Organizer: Hong Kong Council of Social Services

IBERE : TRk B



AWARDED JEWELLERY PIECES AT A GLANCE

FHEETR LA B I A

The 12 Hong Kong Jewellery Design Competition

AU IR T T L

Product £ :
Dewdrop ##%
Award 3 : Award #H :

Merit Award Merit Award

Category AL : Category LY :

Earrings H-E2 4 Bracelet / Necklace JE §/ 7T

Product £ :

The 8™ International South Sea Pearl Jewellery Design Competition

55/ Jis 120 B T kA L

Product fE ) ¢
Green Light £kt The star under spotlight &= f

Product fE ) ¢

Award 3£ :
Certificate of Award Certificate of Award
Category A7) : Category #L3 :
Earrings H-Jg4 Earrings H-E5R 41

Award 38X :

The 11" Buyers’ Favorite Jewelry Design Competition

FWON T Hiak L L gE

Product £ ) : Product £ :

Pop Miracle Influence %)
Award 3 : Award HEXT :

Finalist Finalist

Category #1%) : Category #1%) :
Rings 74 Earrings H-E4H

The Share of happiness 4= i Y &1t

Product £ :
Spring Day
Award HEXi :
Merit Award
Category ALY :

Bracelet / Necklace J& i/ §

Product fE N ¢

Natural Dew [ #&

Award S :

Certificate of Award
Category AL :

Necklace/ Pendant JE i/ ff F%

Product £ :
Bud

Award HEXT :
Finalist
Category #A1L3 :

Collection Design %4
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Product ) :

Elegant &I

Award S :

Certificate of Award
Category #L7 :

Necklace/ Pendant JE $/ 1 B

Product {4 :

Supernova it #7

Award 38 :

Finalist

Category #13 :

Free Style Design [ f AI1E4L
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (“Lukfook™ or “the
Group”), I am pleased to present you the Group’s annual results for the year
ended 31st March 2011.

Year 2010 was another flourishing year for the Group. Our strong
performance has demonstrated our ability to deliver substantial and

sustained value to our shareholders.

Over recent years, the Group continued to benefit from growing tourism.
PRC tourists travelled to Hong Kong under the Individual Visit Scheme
accounted for more than half of our customers. The robust economic growth
in the PRC during 2010 and the strengthening of RMB against Hong Kong
dollar stimulated the spending of PRC customers. During the year under
review, the Group’s retail sales recorded a strong growth. With the expanded
scope of Individual Visit Scheme for non-Guangdong residents in Shenzhen
that was implemented in December 2010, the Group believes that the
support from PRC tourists will continue to be the strong growth momentum

for the Group’s retail sales.

CHIEF

EXECUTIVE’S

STATEMENT
7 R A

WONG Wai Sheung #{#%
T AR

Chief Executive
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During the year, attributed by the weakening of US dollar, elevated oil
prices and concerns over inflation issues, the price of gold was on an upward
trend and hits record high for several times. Despite the surging gold price,
gold products remained a popular choice among our customers. As our gold
and diamond inventory was treated on a first-in-first-out basis, continuous
increase in the price of gold and diamond broadened our gross profit during

the year.

Meanwhile, the Group continued to accelerate our network expansion with
an emphasis on the PRC market. Currently, the Group has a total of over
700 retail outlets spreading across the PRC, Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore,
the United States and Canada. During the year under review, 143 new shops
were opened in different markets, of which 135 were in the PRC. Two new
self-operated shops were also established in the United States and Singapore

respectively.

Annual Report 2011 4F4} 09
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S STATEMENT
17 BB

Besides, the construction of our jewellery processing plant phase I which
is situated on a site area of approximately 100,000 square feet in Panyu,
Guangzhou, the PRC, has commenced in 2011 and the plant is expected to
start operation in October 2012. Upon its full operation, the total production
capacity of the Group’s plants (including phase I and phase II) will be
doubled. Having our own jewellery processing plant not only ensures

a stable goods supply, but also allows more effective quality control.

The expansion will also further enhance overall cost effectiveness and
production efficiency. Additionally, the expanded production scale provides

extra capacity to deal with our enlarging retail network.

To cope with our business expansion and cost containment for the fast
growing office rent, the Group’s head office was relocated to Luk Fook
Jewellery Centre in Jordan, Kowloon, Hong Kong on 9th March 2011. The
18-storey Luk Fook Jewellery Centre was acquired by the Group in June
2009 with a consideration of HK$254,350,000.

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Group shall continue to focus on developing the vast
PRC market, the world’s second largest consumer market for luxury goods
with the fastest growth rate in luxury consumption in 2010, according to
the World Luxury Association. To strive for stronger presence in the PRC,
we shall continue to foster market penetration by actively establishing both
licensee shops and self-operated shops in this growing market. The Group
holds an optimistic view towards the jewellery market in the PRC given the

vibrant PRC economy and the huge purchasing power of its citizens.

BeAh > ABEE A PR B 2 > AR TSR
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dt AR PR o [ IR R A R AR S AR R A
g DUBATSEME H & R T B4 hEER
R RN AR o

FHTC A SET5 4R T I i BB 3 A 25 AE 4 ST
T R AR AR A 1 AR R O 201143 1
OHBAF M LG BUSTRERE L o 3% KE
MR 188 - 5 AR B BR 200946 7 HEA - fEE
254,350,000%5 7G °
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In view of the increasing number of the PRC tourists visiting Hong Kong % 45 |3 B VE B s 1R 1Y) R B e A N R
and Macau, we are confident of driving further solid growth in the Hong ARE A [ A 4 [ e v T T 3 ) S e > I
Kong and Macau operations and determined to enhance our presence DU R T 20 a0 SR In 3 R o AN > AR
in more tourist hot spots. Moreover, we will seize network expansion TR R SR B2 > O S e A ST
opportunities to reach out more overseas market as well. As for brand % o RGBT > AERGISEIIEL Y
management, we will reinforce brand building efforts by sponsoring a wide HERE R & A ) > I BOI R — RPN PR E
range of marketing and promotion activities and endeavor to provide high FEE b o B DAL AR SN 4 BE o

quality jewellery to enhance Lukfook’s brand recognition.

Last but not least, I would like to extend my sincere gratitude to all of our Icfg o A NGEE S B L2 B IRTS R
staff members for their diligence, dedication and contribution. The hard FOHE - BLRAEMMWEEER » HEZA
work of our valuable staff is the major driving force behind our continued #5571 By A AL B SRR FZE) Sy o A
success. In the years to come, we will continue to strive for further business MADRITRE > SR E— M R IR &I
growth with exceptional energy and grasp every opportunity to achieve even BHE - AT

better results.

By order of the Board REH G

WONG Wai Sheung TTELAE

Chief Executive Wl

Hong Kong, 28th June 2011 W > 201146128 H
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Results

For the year ended 31st March 2011, the Group’s total revenue was
approximately HK$8,091,121,000, which represented a 50% growth as
compared to HK$5,386,432,000 in the previous year. Profit attributable
to shareholders grew by 63% to approximately HK$866,216,000 from
HK$531,484,000 of last year. Operating profit margin improved from
11.8% in last year to 12.7% in this year. Basic earnings per share were
HK$1.71 (2010: HK$1.08).

Dividend

The Directors proposed a final dividend of HK$0.42 per share (2010:
HK$0.28 per share) for the year ended 31st March 2011. In addition to

the interim dividend of HK$0.26 per share already paid, the dividend for
the full year amounted to HK$0.68 per share (2010: HK$0.43 per share).
The proposed dividend will be paid on 12th September 2011 following the
approval at the Annual General Meeting.

Overview

The overall performance in the financial year 2010/11 was encouraging. The
step-up in the overall performance was mainly attributable to the substantial
increase in retail and wholesale volume. Appreciation of Renminbi and the
PRC tourists’ rising demand for luxury products also benefited the Group’s

retail business.

The Group’s revenue from the retail business, which accounted for 79.6%
of the total revenue, amounted to HK$6,440,107,000, representing an
increase of 57.4% compared to last year. Meanwhile, wholesale business
reached HK$1,375,456,000 and contributed 17% of the Group’s total
revenue, representing a 22.6% growth from last year. Notwithstanding the
surging gold price during the year, gold products remained popular among
customers. For the year ended 31st March 2011, gold/platinum products and
gemstone jewellery products, contributed approximately 54.7% and 45.3%

of the Group’s sales respectively, excluding trade-in transactions.

PRC visitors contributed over 50% of the Group’s Hong Kong retail sales.
According to the figures revealed by the Hong Kong Tourism Board,
mainland arrivals increased significantly by 26.3% to approximately 22.7
million in 2010. Thanks to the appreciation of Renminbi which led to a
boost in PRC customers’ purchasing appetite, the per capita spending of the
overnight PRC visitors also grew by 12.6% to HK$7,453 during the year.
The Group could therefore benefit from the growing number and spending
of the PRC tourists who had a strong demand for luxury and quality
jewellery items in Hong Kong.

W R B
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BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

Hong Kong Market

The Hong Kong market continued to be the key contributor to the Group,
taking up 72.8% of the Group’s total revenue. As at 31st March 2011, the
Group operated a total of 33 retail outlets in Hong Kong, of which 4 were

opened during the year under review.

Accounting for over 50% of the Group’s Hong Kong sales, the spending

of the PRC tourists has been the key support of the retail business in Hong
Kong. Favoured by the expanded scope of Individual Visit Scheme for non-
Guangdong residents in Shenzhen that implemented in December 2010,

sales derived from tourists kept increasing.

In April 2010, the Group’s two-storey flagship store with its first OMEGA
Watch Counter at Haiphong Mansion, Tsim Sha Tsui, Hong Kong was
opened and has achieved satisfactory performance during the year. The
Group has been expanding its business scope by collaborating with different
prestigious watch brands. As at 31st March 2011, 7 brands of watches

were sold in the Group’s watch counter, including LONGINES, TISSOT,
Philip Stein, MIDO, HAMILTON, BALL and OMEGA. For the year

under review, revenue of HK$71,569,000 was attributed by our new watch

business.

During the year, the Group continued to market and promote the brand
effectively through a range of joint promotion, sponsorship and exhibition,

all of which received positive results.

PRC Market

The Group’s business benefited greatly from the robust economy of

the PRC. During the year under review, revenue from the PRC market
which accounted for 17.3% of the Group’s total revenue, amounted to
HK$1,401,780,000 (2010: HK$855,496,000), representing a 63.9% increase

as compared to last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The PRC market remained the growing engine for the Group’s business
development. During the year, the Group established 135 licensee shops
in the PRC, accumulating its total number to 618 (including those not
yet commence operations) as at 31st March 2011. While expanding the
licensee shop network, the Group also set up its self-operated shops. As
at 31st March 2011, the Group had 39 self-operated shops in the PRC, of
which 3 were newly established. The Group continues to open both self-

operated and licensee shops not only in the first and the second-tier cities,

but also the third and the fourth-tier cities, so as to seize the potential growth

opportunities and enhance the Group’s market penetration in the region.

Macau Market

As at 31st March 2011, the Group operated five shops in Macau. In April
2010, the Group opened its fifth outlet at Rua de S. Domingos. Revenue
derived from the Macau operation recorded a remarkable growth rate of
50.7%, amounting to HK$760,864,000.

Tourist arrivals from the PRC achieved a significant growth of 20.4% in
2010. With a positive outlook on Macau’s tourism, the Group is optimistic

to sustain the growing momentum.

Overseas Market

During the year, the Group operated five shops in the overseas markets,
including two shops (one self-operated and one licensed) in Canada, two
self-operated shops in the United States and one self-operated shop in

Singapore.

In December 2010, the Group opened its second self-operated shop in the
United States and its first self-operated shop in Singapore. The Singapore
new shop is also the Group’s first shop in Southeast Asia. The Group sees

great potential in this area and thus taps the Singapore market as a pioneer.

With the corporate motto of “Brand of Hong Kong, Sparkling the world”,
the Group will continue to look for opportunities to broaden the overseas
retail network while strengthen the leading position in Hong Kong jewellery

market.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Product

During the year, the Group continued to diversify and enrich its product
portfolio to satisfy and target different customer segments. A series of
new products with exquisite designs and craftsmanship featuring different

celebrations and festivals are launched:

e “Beauty of Love” Collection for Mother’s Day Promotion

*  “Floating”, “Bubbles”, “Beautiful Song”, “Joyous Key” and “Cheerful
Mind” Series of “K-gold elite”” 18K Gold Collection

*  “Wedding” Collection for wedding couples

e Pure Gold “Xifu” Collection jointly promoted with World Gold Council

e “Love Forever” Collection with celebrity Mr. Raymond Lam as the

spokesperson in the PRC

*  Non-wedding Platinum Collection jointly promoted with Platinum

Guild International

e “Gold Charisma” Collection

e Pure gold ornaments “Lucky Rabbit” Collection, “Lucky Rabbit” Gold
Bar and two exquisite accessories of “12 Chinese Zodiac” to celebrate

the Lunar New Year

e “Convergence of Love” Collection specially designed for sparkling

Christmas
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Sales Network

As at 31st March 2011, the Group had 81 wholly owned retail outlets under
the brand name of “Lukfook” in the PRC, Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore,
the United States and Canada. 4 new shops were opened in Tsim Sha Tsui,
Sheung Wan, Jordan and Tai Po, Hong Kong during the year, accumulating

the number of shops in Hong Kong to a total of 33.

The PRC has been a major market for development these years. During
the year, the Group operated a total of 39 self-operated shops in various
provinces and cities in the PRC, including Beijing, Guangzhou, Nanjing,
Shanghai, Hangzhou, Wuhan and Jinan. The number of licensee shops in
the PRC was also increased to 618 as at 31st March 2011.

Marketing and Promotion

To be in line with the corporate motto of “Brand of Hong Kong, Sparkling
the World” and to further strengthen Lukfook Jewellery’s corporate brand
image, the Group actively participated in a wide spectrum of marketing
activities and publicity campaigns in order to further consolidate its brand
positioning and increase awareness in global jewellery market, as well as to
expand the global retail network. Meanwhile, the Group also adopted both
long-term and creative marketing strategies in its key markets to publicize

its revamped brand image to more customer segments and to boost sales.

During the year, the Group continued to actively design and execute various
marketing plans including TV, print, outdoor and Internet advertising, direct
marketing, public relations, jewellery sponsorships and exhibitions. Below

were some highlights:

*  Sponsored the diamond crown and precious jewellery pieces to “Miss

Hong Kong Pageant” for the 13th consecutive year

* Being the official sponsor of the crown and jewellery for “Miss Asia

Pageant” for the consecutive years

*  Sponsored the “Miss Chinese Pageant” in Vancouver and Toronto,

Canada for several years
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Being the exclusive jewellery sponsor in “TVS New Silk Road Model

Contest”

Invited celebrity Mr. Raymond Lam as the spokesperson of “Love
Forever” Collection in the PRC

Invited celebrity Mr. Raymond Lam to be the ribbon-cutting guest for
the grand opening of flagship store in Tsim Sha Tsui and to distribute

gold accessories during Labour Day Promotion Period

Invited Mr. Raymond Lam and Ms. Pauline Yeung to attend ribbon-
cutting activities in different cities of the PRC and North America

respectively in celebration of the grand opening of new shops

Invited renowned actress and model Ms. Lynn Xiong to attend “Lukfook

Jewellery K-gold elite New Product Launch” event

Launched Lukfook Jewellery’s Giftcards with China Union Loyalty
and invited famous models Ms. Jacquelin Ch’ng and Ms. Irene Wang
to attend the “Lukfook Jewellery X China Union Loyalty Giftcards”

cocktail reception

Participated in “Hong Kong Wedding & Wedding Gifts Expo 2010 and
“The 61st Christmas Wedding Service & Banquet Expo” held in Hong

Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre

Established an exclusive booth for selling of lucky gold accessories in

Che Kung Temple, Shatin during the Lunar New Year

Introduced new products and key items in festivals including Labour
Day, Mother’s Day, National Day, Christmas, Lunar New Year and
St. Valentine’s Day, stimulating consumers’ demand through publicity

programmes in order to achieve better sales results

Broadcasted large volume of TV commercials through mainstream TV
channels in Hong Kong and the PRC, and sponsored products for TV

programmes and key dramas
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Enhanced the advertising impact by strategically placed outdoor
advertisement at the back of buses of different routes throughout Hong

Kong

Actively explored online promotion channels by banner advertisement,

advertorial write-up, online games and social platform

Placed lightbox advertisement at MTR and bus-stops in major cities of
the PRC

Launched “Lukfook Jewellery — Jewellery Gold Price Express” iPhone
App, allowing customers to keep track of up-to-date jewellery gold price

anywhere at anytime

Landing “Taobao Mall”, an online shopping portal well-known in China
by establishing a “Lukfook Jewellery Official Flagship Store”

Established the Gold Price Index and placed online advertisement &

advertorial write-up on the wedding portal “wedding.esdlife.com”

Set up a “Lukfook Jewellery Official Microblog” on sina.com and
QQ.com as its online platform for promoting corporate culture,
company’s move, product recommendations, and promotional message

of the Group

Broadcasted Jewellery Gold Price information in all branches of China
Travel Service, Home Return Permit Service Centres and Bank of China

Credit Card Centres in Hong Kong

Sponsored Mr. Raymond Lam’s first Mandarin album “First”, “Come
2 Me Raymond Lam Live Concert in Guangzhou™ and “Come 2

Vancouver Live Mini Concert 2010”

Sponsored a “Ming Chee Sing Chinese Opera Show” exclusively for

Lukfook Jewellery’s customers

Sponsored the “2010 Summer Pop — Live in HK” concert held by Hong
Kong Tourism Board and Ms. Rosanne Lui’s “Rosanne Lui in Concert
2010 held at Hong Kong Coliseum
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e Sponsored Big 4’s concert “The Big Four World Tour 2010 —

Guangzhou”

* Being the exclusive jewellery sponsor of “Countdown Concert by
Shenzhen Satellite TV”

*  Sponsored “Southern District Tourism and Culture Festival 2010-2011”

activities

*  Sponsored the prizes and souvenirs for “The Bun Carnival 2010”

annually held in Cheung Chau

e Collaborated with various banks including HSBC, Citibank, Wing Lung
Bank, Ping An Bank and China UnionPay, etc.

e Carried out different joint promotion projects with renowned brands
including De Monte, Luxembourg, McDonald’s, Nestlé, P&G, Shiseido,

Watsons, etc
e Made donation to support “Tung Wah Charity Show 2010”

Brand Management

The Group strongly believes the sales performance and customers’
purchasing confidence are highly related to brand reputation. Therefore,
through continuous brand building efforts, we aim to convey a consistent
and reliable brand image to customers and enhance our brand popularity in

the markets.

During the year, the Group obtained a number of awards in recognition
of its outstanding achievements in quality service, brand building and

management. They included:

*  “Green Medalist” in “Hang Seng Pearl River Delta Environmental
Awards 2009/10”

e “PRC Consumers’ Most Favorable Hong Kong Brands 2010 — Gold

Prize” for 5 consecutive years

e “The Most Outstanding Brand in Greater China 2010 from East Week

Magazine
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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e Obtained “Caring Company” logo from the Hong Kong Council of

Social Services

* “Hong Kong Service Award 2010 — Quality Living Category” from East
Week Magazine

e TV Commercial “Love is Beauty” was voted as “The Ten Most Popular
TV Commercials” in “The 15th Annual Most Popular TV Commercial
Awards” organized by aTV

*  “Bronze Award in Manufacturing Sector” in “The Hong Kong
Outstanding Corporate Citizenship Award” hosted by the Hong Kong

Productivity Council

e “Bronze Award in Counter Service Sector” in “Customer Service
Excellence Award” hosted by Hong Kong Association for Customer
Services Excellence

e The first runner-up in “Ordering Oxfam Rice (Organization Category)”
in “Oxfam Rice Sale 2010~

*  “Outstanding Corporate Image Award 2010” from TVB Weekly
Magazine

*  “Good Design & Quality Jewellery brand Award” in “Top 10 Favorite
HK Retail Merchants 2010 presented by TVS2

e TV Commercial “Love is Beauty — Chapter of Friendship” obtained “The
Best Social Gender Equality TV Commercial Award” in “Women of
Media Award 2010 jointly organized by Lady.163.com and the United

Nations Entity for Gender Equality and the Empowerment of Women

Production

In order to further enhance cost effectiveness and production efficiency,

the Group adopted a certain degree of vertical integration and established

its own jewellery processing plant. Since 2003, the Group invested
approximately RMB 100,000,000 to set up a large-scale jewellery processing
plant in Panyu, Guangdong, the PRC, with a total site area of over 350,000
square feet. The construction of the jewellery processing plant phase II in
which the Group invested approximately HK$22,000,000 has commenced
and is expected to operate in October 2012. The total production capacity

will be doubled upon the full operation of the new plant.
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Portal Operation

The Group’s portal “www.jewellworld.com” or “www.jw28.com” is an
electronic gateway for the global jewellery industry. It not only serves as a
business-to-business trading platform among manufacturers, wholesalers
and retailers worldwide, but also an additional promotion and distribution

channel for the Group.

The portal is regarded as a long-term strategy to penetrate into the PRC

as well as global market. It paves the way for exploring jewellery markets
all over the world. The Group considers that every Internet user is their
prospective customer; and jewelers will view product samples and order
jewellery more frequently through the website. In addition to streamlining
the operation procedures for jewelers, it will also enhance business potential

for the Group.

Design

The Group is well-known for its stylish designs of jewellery products. With
our outstanding and award-winning design teams, the Group has made
over 20,000 designs for customers’ selections. Those creative, attractive
and fashionable new products were well received by the markets all these
years. On top of that, the team is sensitive towards consumers’ choices and
the ever-changing trends. Their expertise ensures that the Group is able to

launch timely products that suit the market.

Besides, the Group was also keen on participating in various local and
international jewellery design competitions during the year. A number of

awards were gained in these competitions, which included:

*  Three Merit Awards in “The 12th Hong Kong Jewellery Design

Competition”

e Four Certificates of Merit in “The 8th International South Sea Pearl

Jewellery Design Competition”
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Quality Assurance

The Group is committed to maintain the highest quality of product quality.
To ensure the best quality of products, the Group set up its wholly owned
subsidiary gems laboratory “China Gems Laboratory Limited” in 1996.

Its scope of services includes authentication, grading of diamonds, and
authentication of jades and coloured gemstones and quality assessment of
jewellery. The Laboratory is operated by dozens of certified gemologists
who specialize in the authentication of gemstones and jade. Every year,
the laboratory tests for over 100,000 pieces of jewellery and gemstones on
average. The laboratory passed the ISO 17025 in jadeite authentication and
diamond testing and grading accredited by the Hong Kong Accreditation
Service, also met the principles of ISO 9001:2008 Quality Management
Systems — Requirements, demonstrating the professional quality assurance
system of the Group. China Gems Laboratory is the only subsidiary

laboratory of local jewellery retailer obtaining both accreditations.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group shoulders corporate social responsibility and incorporates it

into its operation strategies and management measures, contributing to the
community while developing the Group’s business. During the year, the
Group attained “The Hong Kong Outstanding Corporate Citizenship Award
— Bronze Award in Manufacturing Sector” for its long term contribution

in charity work and sustainable development. The Group shall continue to
support charity activities and encourage its staff to serve and care for the

community.

Environmental Protection

The Group’s factory in Panyu, Guangdong, the PRC obtained the ISO
14001:2004 Environmental Management System, demonstrating its
environmental-friendly manufacturing process. Moreover, the Group also
attained “Green Medalist” in “Hang Seng Pearl River Delta Environmental
Awards 2009/2010” for its outstanding environmental performance. The
Group will continue to work towards environmental sustainability while

delivering quality products.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Liquidity and Financial Resources

The Group’s core business is gold and jewellery retailing. On 9th December
2010, the Company issued 50,000,000 ordinary shares at nominal value

of HK$0.1 each for aggregate cash consideration of HK$1,157,500,000.

As at 31st March 2011, the Group’s cash on hand reached approximately
HK$966 million (2010: HK$287 million). The Group’s bank borrowings-to-
equity ratio at the year-end, being the proportion of total bank borrowings of
HK$NIL (2010: approximately HK$314 million) against total shareholders’
equity of approximately HK$3,424 million (2010 restated: HK$1,661
million), was NIL (2010: 18.9%).

The Group’s income and expenditure streams are mainly denominated in

Hong Kong dollar.

Capital Expenditure

During the year under review, the Group incurred capital expenditures of
approximately HK$101 million (2010: HK$315 million), including the costs
of properties, leasehold land, leasehold improvement, furniture, fixture and

equipment.

Capital Commitments

As at 31st March 2011, the Group had total capital commitments in respect
of acquisition of property, plant and equipment of approximately HK$75
million (2010: HK$7 million).

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities at 31st March
2011 and 31st March 2010.

Employment, Training, Development and Recruitment
Remuneration Policy

As at 31st March 2011, the number of employees of the Group was
approximately 3,366 (2010: 3,053). Remuneration policies are reviewed and
approved by the management on a regular basis. Remuneration packages are
structured to take into account the comparable level of the market. Bonus
and other merit payments are linked to the success of the Group and the
performance of individual employee. The policy is to encourage employees
to optimize business performance by providing them with financial

incentives.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
For the year ended 31st March 2011, the Company had properly applied

the principles of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices contained
in Appendix 14 (the “Code”) included in the Rules governing the listing
of securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing

Rules”) as follows:

A. Directors

A.1The Company is supervised by a Board of Directors who assumes
responsibility for leadership and control of the Company and is
collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and strategising the Company’s affairs. They make decisions

objectively in the interests of the Company.

A.2 An independent non-executive director acts as the Board Chairman
while an executive director acts as the Chief Executive. There is a clear
division of responsibilities for the management of the Board and the
day-to-day management of the Company’s business to ensure a balance

of power and authority.

A.3The Board comprises 6 executive directors, 5 non-executive directors
and 3 independent non-executive directors. They include persons with
a wealth of practical experiences in the jewellery industry, accountancy
profession, legal profession, general trading and the securities
industry. It has a balance of skills and experiences appropriate for the
requirements of the Company’s business. The directors’ respective roles

and biographies are set out on pages 41 to 46.

A.4 All directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the Company’s

Bye-laws.

A.5Every director is continuously-reminded of the requirement to keep
abreast of his responsibility as a director of the Company, with
reference to the Listing Rules and the Company Laws inclusive, and
of the conduct, business activities and development of the Company.
Every independent non-executive director also confirms annually his

independence status to the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules.

B F IR

A E201143H31 H L4
JRE A s e 6 28 2 O BR A Rl e 2 LT BI (F E
THLRI 1) BR B 14 07 2 A 2655 A W LSP RI(T 55
A 2 55> SR -

P RN E - HEE

A, Y

AVAA R R R g AR R
BAN T > AR A A RO B A A A
HH o DUTEALN T2 AR - L
T2 RS AE A BLE -

%N’ E‘%

A2 AT E R BT E S e N > T
H AT AT A ﬁo%%%“%%@ﬁﬁA$
SRR Y TR o DATECRRE ) BEER
P50 L -

ASZHEEFHALYPTESE - LAFPITEE L
SABIP AT AL > H PR R R
736~ Eahsse - s - — Ry KE
FATERBOZ HB R 2 N L > TR G
EANGIE S0 YN P § &) i o Pl ]
BB RERR 41 46 H -

A4 BHEFRBEART A FMA > RAR
R R AR b (R AR R EE AT

AS AR TFIABHEREA S 16T LT R
FEZRUE - BITARFES 2T > W E
AN T iR S R ~ SETE B BB o
AL I BT IE S AR B TR S A
PR 2 ALY



Annual Report 2011 43 25

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(Continued)

A. Directors (Continued)

A.6 Directors are provided with appropriate information to enable them
to make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and

responsibilities as directors of the Company.

B. Remuneration of Directors and Senior Management

B.1 Information relating to the Company’s directors’ remuneration policy
and other remuneration related matters are disclosed in the Company’s
annual report. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for
setting policy on the remuneration of executive directors and senior
management and for fixing the remuneration packages. The level of
remuneration is sufficient to attract and retain the directors needed to
run the Company successfully. No director is involved in deciding his

own remuneration.

C. Accountability and Audit

C.1 The directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements
of each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at the financial period
end and of the result and cash flows of the Group for the year. In the
Company’s interim and annual reports which are issued within the time
limits stipulated by the Listing Rules, the Board presents a balanced,
clear and comprehensive assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects. The published financial statements adopt, and
consistently apply, suitable accounting policies complying with Hong

Kong Financial Reporting Standards.

C.2 The Board ensures the Company maintains sound and effective internal

control to safeguard the shareholders’ interest and the Company’s assets.

The Audit Committee, with the assistance of the Internal Audit Team,
regularly reviews the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
system. The Head of the Internal Audit Team directly reports to the
Audit Committee.

C.3 The Board establishes monitoring and procedural guidelines for
considering how it will apply the financial reporting and internal control
principles and for maintaining an appropriate relationship with the
Company’s external auditors. The Audit Committee established by the

Company pursuant to the Listing Rules has clear terms of reference.

e XER1TH N0 D)

A, HH(H)
A6 T ISR AR Rl > LU B 4 1R
PsE S JBAT O S 1 A AR D 2 RS

o

Hf

\:

B. 3 B v A AT B S

B.1 BAR 0 ) 2 5 O A B R B At 35T
T 8 < B AR 2 B) 2 AE RN 55 o BT
Ba BB FT T G5 SR A B 2
IR > DA SRS R I AR 8 o ST A2 DA
g1 R Sy AR OS] O A %
T o MR S B AR B 2 T -

C. BB

C.1 % 5 £ L4 945 A B0 ) 2 A F 3 - o
BT AS A T R AR S [ 7 A B 4 ke
RE 2RI > LA B A S 34T i 2 S 4 1
S o AR/ A TE L T B BT A R R g
% 2 R SRR A TSR A A )
ZHB RO BT R 0 K R
2T o TS A R A N
BV S IR ) 2 B st

C2 #HH G MEIRA L RIHEFE R A RORZ R
HEE o DAPRBER S 2 M i T AN ] 2 B EE
FHZBEENBEL/ NGB £
AT A ) 1A R B ) FE 2 B o AT A
M EEEE A FEEZ BT -

C.3 3 58 5 0 {0 B T 05 i ot o o 0 B 42 i A
DA B BRLAR ) 2 SN AZ BRI AfE £ 7 6 B AR
il B AR AR o AR AIARYE L TR
AL 2 FEZE B B W R R



26 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7442 [ (1 B%) 4 BR /A 7

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
e SigiEi

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

(Continued)

D. Delegation by the Board

D.1The Company has a formal schedule of matters specifically reserved
to the Board for its decision. The Board gives clear directions to
management as to the matters that must be approved by the Board

before decisions are made on behalf of the Company.

D.2 The Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee were formed with
specific written terms of reference that deal clearly with the committees’
authority and duties. Such terms of reference are made available to the

public.

E. Communication with Shareholders

E.1 The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with shareholders and
in particular, endeavors to provide transparency and uses the annual
general meetings to communicate with shareholders and invites their
participation in certain marketing events. Besides, the Company’s
official website serves as a handy communication channel for the
shareholders. Press releases and announcements about the Company’s

business affairs are made from time to time.

E.2 The Company informs shareholders of the procedure for voting by
poll in the circular to shareholders, and ensures compliance with the
requirements about voting by poll contained in the Listing Rules and the

Company’s Bye-laws.

None of the directors is aware of any information that would reasonably
indicate that the Company is not, or was not for any part of the year ended

31st March 2011, in compliance with the Code.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Company adopts the Model Code set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing

Rules as a code of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions.
Having made specific enquiry of all directors, it is confirmed that they have
complied with the required standard set out in the Model Code and its code
of conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions in relation to the year
ended 31st March 2011.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS HA
During the year ended 31st March 2011, the Company’s Board of AEE2011H3A31 A ILEEN > AAFER G
Directors comprised 6 executive directors, 5 non-executive directors and HIAZBATES - TAIFAITESR K =M JF
3 independent non-executive directors. Individual directors’ attendance at BUATE AL o AEIA > I Rk
Board meetings during the year were as follows: ZEWT -

Attendance
Total number of Board meetings: 9 WP AR Y : 9k HOw %
Executive Directors HITHEFH
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chief Executive) BB o (TR #E) 9 100%
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen EiN ey e 8 89%
Mr. LAW Tim Fuk, Paul HEWS AR SEE 9 100%
Mr. LAU Kwok Sum BB xS 8 89%
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny HOGHESEAE 9 100%
Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy T RE/MA 9 100%
Non-executive Directors HHATHEFE
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung o A 9 100%
Mr. CHAN Wai WA SEAE 9 100%
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan* 2R St A * *
Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline MBS /N 9 100%
Mr. HUI King Wai G5 s 6 67%
Independent Non-executive Directors Hg s T
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP GG N iR 9 100%
Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond (Chairman) TR A () 9 100%
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander B R ek 9 100%
Average 14 96%
*  Mr. LEE was on sick leave from 1st April 2010 to 31st March 2011. w ZEIRAEHI20104F4 7 1 H 22011453 4 31 H A7

" o
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

The Board’s role is to provide entrepreneurial leadership of the Company
within a framework of prudent and effective controls which enables risk to
be assessed and managed. The Board controls the business but delegates
day-to-day responsibility to the executive management. The Board sets

the Company’s strategic aims, values and standards and ensures that its
obligations to its shareholders and others are understood and met. In the
interests of the Company, a number of matters are reserved by the Board.
Certain matters are the subject of recommendations by the Audit Committee
or Remuneration Committee. The Company Secretary, referring to the list
of reserved matters for the Board, assists the Chairman in establishing the
agenda of Board meetings. Each director may also request inclusion of
items in the agenda. Minutes of the Board/Committee meetings are open for

inspection by the directors.

The Company confirms that it has received from each of the independent
non-executive directors, namely, Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond, Mr.

HUI Chiu Chung, JP and Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules,
and that it still considers each independent non-executive director to be

independent.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond, an independent non-executive director, acts
as Chairman of the Board, while Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, an executive
director, acts as the Chief Executive. Their roles are segregated and therefore
are not exercised by the same individual. The Chairman is responsible for
the leadership and effective running of the Board. The Chief Executive is
delegated with the authority and responsible for running the Company’s
business, implementing the Company’s strategies in achieving business

objectives.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All the non-executive directors are appointed for two years, and the existing

appointments last until 31st March 2013.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

In compliance with the Code, the Board on 7th April 2005 established

a Remuneration Committee comprising 3 independent non-executive
directors and 2 executive directors. The remuneration committee is to make
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure for
all remuneration of directors and senior management; to determine the
specific remuneration packages; to review and approve performancebased
remuneration; to review and approve the compensation payable in
connection with any loss or termination of office or appointment of directors
and senior management; to oversee any major changes in employee benefits
structures throughout the Company or the Group; and to review the ongoing

appropriateness and relevance of the remuneration policy.

Individual committee members’ attendance at Remuneration Committee

meetings during the year were as follows:

W4

PR ASFRELE > R 2005454 77 B AL
P2 B o g = A8 S FR AT R R AL A T
FeAAA o N Z B Gt AL w2 g R A
HRN B 2 SR B A 4 1 S A R -
AT ELBEHNAL & - BoeT SR BT e el 2.
BN A R A B AR s A I s R AT R
KN B B AT - B A AR 8
ASE P BAR AN G2 AT AT B2 E) 5 D AR
R 5 59 o

173 2 B B I B PR TR H I 2 B B R 2 1
T

Total number of Attendance Attendance
Remuneration Committee meetings: 2 HZEH G EREKY 2K R

Executive Directors HITHEE

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung HARE A 2 100%
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen A 2 2 100%
Independent Non-executive Directors Hg s T

Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP (Committee Chairman) El e S e N S =Ry, 2 100%
Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond i R ST 2 100%
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander B R4k 2 100%
Average 14 100%

In July and November 2010, the Remuneration Committee held 2 meetings
to review the policies for determining annual salary increments for the
calendar year 2011, to approve the payment of the discretionary year end
bonus for 2010 and an incentive bonus scheme for all non-sales employees

working at the Head Office.

Particulars of the Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16

of the Listing Rules are set out in note 16 to the financial statements.
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Board is directly responsible for the nomination procedures, process
and criteria adopted to select and recommend candidates for directorship.
No nomination of directors was processed during the year ended 31st March
2011.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Analysis of remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
provided by the external auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, Certified Public

Accountants, are as follows:

WHR A

HR G HEA TR T RN RS ARY - FRUAE
e BRI % o iE 201143 H31H
IEAEE A > HESEEITAT (] 3 SR TP o

e Bl v <
A7 TR SN A SR S R 2 RIS T (B3
ratim) AR LR R S L B T

2011 2010

HK$°000 HK$°000

Tt T

Audit services AR 3,593 3,160
Non-audit services FEF RS 191 149
Total s 3,784 3,309

The responsibilities of the external auditor with respect to financial reporting

are stated in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with the Code of Best Practice applicable before 1st January
2005, the Board established an Audit Committee on 1st February 1999,
comprising 3 independent non-executive directors, in order to monitor the
accounting and financial reporting practices and internal control systems of
the Company. During the year ended 31st March 2011, the Audit Committee
held 2 meetings to consider matters including the 2010 annual report of the
Company, internal controls, the unaudited interim condensed consolidated
financial information for the six months ended 30th September 2010, and

the Company’s IT control environment.

BN AZ B B 0 D T TR > SO ST A
BRI A -

®EBEERHSY

THIESF 200541 7 1 H A8 2 SR <E Al
HHE 1999452 A 1 H Mo i = & M AT
HERHMZ FREBG > U ERANFZ G5t
T BTG # BOHS LA B N0 B P B o %2011
EIABNHIEFER > BT B8R E
i DB AT AA FI201044F W - INFRERE -
T E 201049 H 30 H 1kl H 2 A 488 4% v 30 fif
WA A B TS R A T A ) TR 2 i B B 45
HE -



Annual Report 2011 43 31

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Continued)

HHRRE T W

Individual committee members’ attendance at Audit Committee meetings RENMERFZZE S g RE LS e R B
during the year were as follows: T

Attendance
Total number of audit committee meetings: 2 BRSO EHRERY : 21k 11 4
Independent Non-executive Directors WA THEE
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP el N 4 e 2 100%
Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond (Committee Chairman) &85 (£ 5 & /) 2 100%
Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander L ReA 2 100%
Average 14 100%
INTERNAL CONTROL P B g
The Board is responsible for the Company’s system of internal control and RO EARN AT SR WEHEEER

for reviewing its effectiveness through the Audit Committee.

The internal control system is designed to provide assurance on the
effectiveness and efficiency of operations, reliability of business record, and

the compliance with Company’s policies and procedures.

The system aims to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss rather than eliminate risks of failure
in operational systems, and to ensure achievement of the Company’s

objectives.
The Audit Committee has received the internal control evaluation report
submitted by the Internal Audit Team. The report summarised information

relating to the work carried out in the following areas:

e The results of selective testing of internal control procedures, assets, and

financial records of the Company;

e A general evaluation of internal control system installed by the

Company; and

* An outline of major control issues, if any noticed during the year.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the report and discussed with the

management.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (Continued)

The Audit Committee recognised that an examination of the internal control
system has been adequately executed by the Internal Audit Team and the
Committee acknowledged that the management has been progressively
installing an adequate internal control system in order to ensure the
effective functioning of the Company’s operations. The Committee has

also recommended a further extension of system to the area of various risks

protection aspect in order to safeguard the assets of the Company.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The internal audit is an independent function undertaken by the Internal
Audit Team reporting administratively to the Company’s management and
functionally to the Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Team is authorized

to obtain all information necessary to accomplish internal audit work.

A risk based audit approach has been adopted by the Internal Audit Team.
Internal control reviews are arranged regularly while paying close attention
to business or operation changes. Regular audit tests are carried out to
ensure key controls are operational. The Internal Audit Team conducts other

projects and investigating work as may be required.

Any significant internal audit findings are discussed with respective
department heads to have actions agreed and subsequently followed up, in

order to ensure that satisfactory control is maintained.

In each half-yearly work plan, manning levels of the Internal Audit Team
are agreed with the Audit Committee. A summary of the internal audit
activities and audit results are also submitted to the Audit Committee twice

a year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at 31st March 2011, save as disclosed below, none of the directors and
chief executive of the Company had interests and short positions in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the issuer or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (a) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (b) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of

Listed Companies to be notified to the Company and the Exchange:

I. Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company:

o R I A B IR AT

A20114E3H31H » BRFSUREEE D > AL
HH R T EATEN B A BT N ST AT AR
B (5 5% SR8 I SO B e ] ([ 78 25 K Bt 1)
SEXVIR) Z ety ~ MBS R P B ()i
P8 5 S 300 B e 0] 565 352008 AR A ZE R B % 1 P
AT 5 BRI BT A R E T RE SRR
Gy W REHEST I B0 G A0 ) B 52 J0r 2 M 4 I
RA

L A2 il B4 B Ml BB Z 45 AT

Beneficial Controlled Beneficiary Total % of
Name of Director Owner Spouse  Corporation of Trust Interest Shares
WHHLES 273 2PN [ P favtZaA PERAUE  RBE A
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 8,415,232 260,000 244,820,176 1,511,050 255,006,458 47.01%
wARE A note (d)  note (a) & (b) note (c)
WEE) Bk B(b) Wek(e)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen 365,344 244,820,176 245,185,520 45.19%
EifliEys note (a) & (b)
B3 (a) K (b)
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung 2,678,090 244,820,176 247,498,266 45.62%
O note (a) & (b)
W5t (a) Be(b)
Mr. CHAN Wai 3,849,022 244,820,176 248,669,198 45.84%
A et note (a) & (b)
Bk (a) B (b)
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan 6,370,229 247,406,800 253,777,029 46.78%
AR note (a), (b),
(e) & (1)
Wk ~ (b)

(e)(f)
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

L.

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company: (Continued)

o i A B R AT ()

L.

A2 il BBy B A BB Z 3 AT ¢ (%)

Beneficial Controlled Beneficiary Total % of
Name of Director Owner Spouse  Corporation of Trust Interest Shares
WA HaRHA A [ 2 03 it A R AE RBYE A
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny 388,000 1,511,050 1,899,050 0.35%
OIS TE note (c)
WE(c)
Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy 199,000 1,511,050 1,710,050 0.32%
R ME note (c)
FiE(c)
Note (a) B 5E(a)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Mr. CHAN Wai, Mr. LEE
Shu Kuan and Mr. WONG Koon Cheung were also directors, and together with
their associates collectively controlled over one-half of the voting power, of Luk
Fook (Control) Limited which held 234,185,672 shares in the Company. These
directors were deemed to be interested in the same shares, relevant disclosures
were therefore duplicated for the purpose of SFO.

Note (b)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, Mr. CHAN Wai, Mr. LEE Shu
Kuan and Mr. WONG Koon Cheung were also directors, and together with their
associates collectively controlled over one-third of the voting power, of Dragon
King Investment Ltd. which held 10,634,504 shares in the Company. These
directors were deemed to be interested in the same shares, relevant disclosures
were therefore duplicated for the purpose of SFO.

Note (c)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, and
Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy were discretionary beneficiaries of the WONG’s
Family Trust (the “Trust”). The Trust was the beneficial owner of the entire issued
share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith Company Limited
which was the beneficial owner of 1,511,050 shares of the Company.

Note (d)

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung’s spouse, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, held 260,000 shares of
the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

L.

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the

Company: (Continued)
Note (e)

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 33.3% of the entire issued share capital of Wah Hang

Kimon Investments Limited which in turn held 630,624 shares of the Company.

Note (f)

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 51% of the entire issued share capital of Wah Hang
Kimon Holdings Limited which in turn held 1,956,000 shares of the Company.

. Long positions in shares and underlying shares of Luk

Annual Report 2011 43 35

WA S 2 R BOR B (s)

A2 ) ey Be M B By Z 3 1 ¢ ()
BiaE(e)

ARt IS A R R SR R B A BRA R AR B g
TTEA33.3% - TiiaZ 2 w1 AR 630,624 A ] ik
By o

BiRE(D)

ZR A8 S0 AR R AT T B L AT BR A W) AR E

TTEAS 1% » T a% 2 BRI 1,956,000 842 7] ik
By o

LR IR AR IR A RN (BB AT LA W

Fook (Control) Limited, the ultimate holding company JBe 5 B A BH B 2 5 B
Beneficial Controlled Beneficiary Total % of
Name of Director Owner Spouse  Corporation of Trust Interest Shares
HAEH HauE A M REREEBEE ERERA R ARBE A
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung 6,486,126 36,724,007 43,210,133 43.21%
R ek note (a)
W5k (a)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen 406,556 82,853 489,409 0.49%
iRy note (b)
W&t (b)
Mr. LAU Kwok Sum 1,600 1,600 0.002%
B AR
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung 4,585,920 4,585,920 4.59%
WO R SEAE note (c)
K3t (c)
Mr. CHAN Wai 6,639,130 6,639,130 6.64%

BRfsE
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e g

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT R 2 2 A BOR A (0
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES (Continued)
II. Long positions in shares and underlying shares of Luk IL i dpe 4% P BE 24 wi) N (P 0B0) A7 A w)
Fook (Control) Limited, the ultimate holding company JBe By B AH B B A 2 5 AT (481
(Continued)
Beneficial Controlled Beneficiary Total % of
Name of Director Owner Spouse  Corporation of Trust Interest Shares
WA JEEY 25PN LA ZPelM 2 YN RERA MRBT Al
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan 7,291,338 1,093,575 8,384,913 8.38%
& ipibias note (d)
FeE(d)
Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline 60,000 60,000 0.06%
M /INI
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny 36,724,007 36,724,007 36.72%
e STE note (a)
Mt (a)
Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy 36,724,007 36,724,007 36.72%
R MA note (a)
Mt (a)
Note (a) [ 5E(a)
Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, Ms. LUK Chui Yee, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, and FofEE e s BER R A USRS S Y
Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy were discretionary beneficiaries of the WONG’s INB B IRFRESE (S5 ) 222 N o %
Family Trust (the “Trust”). The Trust was the beneficial owner of the entire issued S AR E ST A RA T2 TE 817 kA
share capital of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith Company Limited ZESHEA N o RN E) A A N AR (REIR) A TR
which was the beneficial owner of 36,724,007 shares of Luk Fook (Control) 736,724,007 ety Z B RS HEA N -
Limited.
Note (b) )
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen’s spouse, Ms. FONG Anissa King, held 82,853 shares of A A S 2 O B A SR (B A
Luk Fook (Control) Limited. PR 182,853 I 143 ©
Note (¢) 5T ()
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung together his spouse, Ms. SO Lai Sheung, controlled 5k B 4 AR (R T R RS M & I WKC
the entire issued share capital of WKC Investments Limited which in turn held Investments Limited 23 C 34T HEAR > szl i
4,585,920 shares of Luk Fook (Control) Limited. A AR () A PR 714,585,920 LA 17 <
Note (d) FiE(d)
Mr. LEE Shu Kuan held 33.3% of the entire issued share capital of Wah Hang 2 A b S A S A e R A B A RN A AR B B
Kimon Investments Limited which in turn held 1,093,575 shares of Luk Fook FFREA33.3% » ez 2N m) AR /S Am (P k) A3 PR

(Control) Limited. 1,093,575 B4y o
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER

As at 31st March 2011, save as disclosed below, so far as is known to any
director or chief executive of the Company, no person, other than a director
or chief executive of the Company, had an interest or short position in

the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO.

B3

201143 A31H » B FSCHlis & oh > AL
AEAT S o s E AT BTG - BRAS A R R
SEEATHN B4 > MR AL LA AR 2 J]
FAHBRIB AR R > A AR 8 5 SO B AR Bl X v
A2 332 ) AR 4 v R 2 AR BOR A -

Beneficial Controlled Total
Name of Shareholder Owner Corporation Interest % of Shares
T 44 1% JiE-3 2PN ZYE WM BiAE AU et a2 ke
Luk Fook (Control) Limited 234,185,672 234,185,672 43.17%

INAR (PR A R 7]



38 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7~ 5 [ (12 B5) 47 BR /A

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

AL

The directors submit their report together with the audited financial

statements for the year ended 31st March 2011.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND SEGMENTAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the sourcing, designing, wholesaling
and retailing of a variety of platinum and gold jewelleries and gold
ornaments, gem-set jewelleries, jadeites, gemstones and other accessory

items.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating segment is

set out in note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 57.

The directors have declared an interim dividend of HK$0.26 per ordinary
share, totalling HK$141,052,000, which was paid on 3rd January 2011.

The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.42 per
ordinary share, totalling HK$227,853,000 and payable on 12th September
2011.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the

year are set out in note 29 to the financial statements.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group are

set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year amounted to approximately
HK$1,536,000 (2010: HK$399,000).
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out in note

28 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Distributable reserves of the Company at 31st March 2011, calculated under
the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to HK$699,409,000 (2010:
HK$479,169,000).

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The results, assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the last five

financial years ended 31st March are as follows:

JBAR
AR TFBA 2 SE B RER RO B IR M 28

w323 DR ik
FRAB 1 58 o m R > AR R]R20114F3 1 31
H 2 A 53 UR 5% 5 5 699,409,000 It (20104F
479,169,000 7T) -

T A S 5 2
RS B3 A 31 H LS F T (R B O 5 42
e RBART

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#sC T Tt T T
Restated Restated Restated Restated
KEY| KEY| K KEY|
Results E4
Revenue g A 2,903,742 3,455,471 3,959,227 5,386,432 8,091,121
Profit attributable to equity A EIRE s R
holders of the Company JEAG %5 197,495 314,101 276,053 531,484 866,216
Assets and liabilities ¥ B B fl
Total assets B 1,118,564 1,705,032 1,755,338 2,596,655 4,281,699
Total liabilities RN =E 257,144 607,639 481,218 913,168 823,311
Shareholders’ funds &4 848,631 1,081,344 1,256,463 1,660,542 3,423,681

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SECURITIES

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year. Save as
disclosed in note 28 to the financial statements, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold any of the Company’s shares

during the year.

JEOA ~ 15 oD Dol il 27
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
P E B

DIRECTORS

The directors during the year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung (Chief Executive)
Mr. TSE Moon Chuen

Mr. LAW Tim Fuk, Paul

Mr. LAU Kwok Sum

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny

Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy

Non-executive Directors
Mr. WONG Koon Cheung

Mr. CHAN Wai

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan

Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline
Mr. HUI King Wai

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP

Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond (Chairman)

Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander

Pursuant to Bye-law 99 of the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors

shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting of the
Company. Accordingly, Mr. LAW Tim Fuk, Paul, Mr. LAU Kwok Sum,
Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, Mr. HUI Chiu Chung, JP and Mr. TAI Kwok
Leung, Alexander shall retire by rotation at the next annual general meeting.
All retiring Directors are eligible for re-election. Details of the proposed
directors to be re-elected are set out in the Circular sent together with this

annual report.

By an ordinary resolution passed at the Annual General Meeting held on
31st August 2010, the Board was authorized to appoint additional directors

up to a maximum of 20 directors.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Wai Sheung, aged 61, is the founder and Chief Executive of
the Group. He is also a member of the Remuneration Committee. He has
over 44 years of experience in the Hong Kong jewellery industry and is
responsible for the overall strategic planning and management of the Group.
Mr. Wong has been appointed as the Associate Director of The Kowloon
Gold Silver and Jewel Merchant’s Staff Association since November 1993.
He has also been the Honorary Permanent Chairman of Jadeware Traders
Industry & Commerce Association and Chairman of Supervisory Committee
of Kowloon Jewellers’ and Goldsmiths’ Association since 2001. He was
also elected as the Honorary Chairman of Macau Goldsmith’s Guild in 2005
and appointed as the Honorary Chairman of the First General Committee of
Guangdong Golden Jewelry and Jade Industry’s Association in 2006. Mr.
Wong was invited to be the Honorary Vice-president of the Fourth Council
Gemological Association of China, Gems & Jewelry Trade Association of
China in 2007. He has also been elected as a member of Hong Kong Trade
Development Council Jewellery Advisory Committee and QTSA Governing
Council (Retailer Category) and elected member of General Committee of
Hong Kong Brand Development Council in 2008. Mr. Wong was invited

to be the QTSA Better Business Environment Committee and appointed as
the Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Small and Medium Enterprises
Association in 2010 . He was appointed as the 3rd Honorary Chairman of
Hong Kong Gemstone Manufacturers’ Association in 2011, Besides, he is
also a member of the Guangzhou Huadu District Municipal Committee of
the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference. He is the father of
Mr. Wong Ho Lung, Danny and Miss Wong Lan Sze, Nancy, Directors of
the Company.

W AP B2 A

BT # Y

HRE A o 615K o By A SR A A SR AT B
B o W AHNZE B2 — o SRR
TREE A B IAAE RO KEBS > BT A SR A T
AW RATEAEE - B 19934 1L A By JLRE
i ZE B g 2 B o i {2001 F RS AT &
TELHGIOE A B e R MUERA Ea &Ry
fifi SE M B S o BN 20054 HEE £ WL M 4 2
FZEA G 2B R o R20064F » TRHEZ AT /3 JROR
HEMKTE LR e RS RGR - Bk
A20074F B4 P K BT A A4 T3 h A6 1 i
ik op S Rea s &N = O R I IEE S E i
ZEGMA o 200845 - IIHE R 2y 7 s 4k
PR b B 2 5 SR I AT 2 B R A s i L e R 3
BT o 20105 BT 1 B WS 8 ikl
PR Tioh o 25 i B 455 BT ¥ 2% By B A s Hh /N
SEBGEFHETR GO0 1FEREAF
W RO MO G = A R o ISk > SR
JE BN RBOA W s e BN T (R IR R B g
B o B Sy R i R A RO T RE/IMA
A -



42 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7442 [ (12 B%) 4 BR /A 7

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
B

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT(Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. TSE Moon Chuen, aged 61, is the co-founder of the Group. Presently,
he is the Director & Group Deputy General Manager and also a member

of the Remuneration Committee. He has over 38 years of experience in
jewellery retailing business and is responsible for the sales operations and
administration of the Group’s retail shops. He has been appointed to various
positions over the years including: an executive committee member of the
Diamond Federation of Hong Kong, China Ltd. since 2000; a supervisory
committee member of the Chinese Gold & Silver Exchange Society since
July 2008 and the Vice-Chairman of Kowloon Pearls, Precious Stones, Jade,
Gold and Silver Ornament Merchants Association since 2005. Moreover,

he was the President of Hong Kong Tsuen Wan Industries and Commerce
Association Limited from the year 2006 to 2009 and has been pointed as the
Life Honorary Chairman since 2010; an executive committee member of
the Tsuen Wan Trade Association Limited from 1996 to 2008. Mr. Tse was
appointed as the Chairman of the Tsuen Wan Festival Lightings Organizing
Committee for 7 consecutive years between 1999 and 2005 and became the
Vice President from 2006 to the present. He also served as the honorable
President of the 32nd session of Hong Kong Kwun Tong Junior Police

Call in the same year. On 1st July 2006, Mr. Tse was awarded the “Chief
Executive’s Commendation for Community Service” by the Government
of the Hong Kong SAR. He is also currently a Vice Chairman of Macau
Goldsmiths Guild. Mr. Tse was also appointed as the Honorary President
of Shatin Livelihood Concern Association and Cheung Ching Friends
Association in 2009. In 2010, Mr. Tse was invited to be the Director of
Hong Kong, Guangzhou, Foshan and Zhaoqing Friendship Association on

a 3-year term; the Honorary Chairman of Guangzhou Overseas Friendship

Association since the same year.

Mr. LAW Tim Fuk, Paul, aged 58, joined the Group in 1996. Presently, he
is a Director, Company Secretary and Financial Controller of the Group.
He is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, the
Chartered Institute of Management Accountants, the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, Certified General Accountants Association
of Canada and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.
Mr. Law holds a Bachelor’s Degree with honours in Accountancy. He has
over 16 years of accounting and auditing experience and over 20 years of
experience in commerce. He is mainly responsible for the accounting and
finance of the Group. He also handles communication with institutional

investors and financial reporters.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT(Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. LAU Kwok Sum, aged 69, joined the Group as a Branch Manager

in 1995. Presently, he is a Director & Zone Manager (Yau Tsim Mong
District). Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Lau worked as a regional manager
in a listed jewellery company in Hong Kong. Mr. Lau has more than 41
years of experience in retailing, purchasing and wholesaling of jewellery

products.

Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, aged 34, is the Director and Operations
Manager of the Group. He joined the Group in 2002 and is responsible for
the execution and implementation of the Group’s operation directions and
strategies and actively participates in management information systems
including hardware integration and software development. He is also in
charge of the Group’s image rebranding and the design of its retail outlets.
With rich overseas experiences and background, Mr. Wong is principally
responsible for the design and establishment of the Group’s branches in
China, Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore, USA and Canada. Mr. Wong is also
an active participant in the community and is currently a member of the
Sihui Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference; Permanent President of Sze Wui and Kwong Ning Clansman’s
Association (Hong Kong) Limited; Honorary President of Junior Police
Call of Kwai Tsing District; Honorary President of Kwai Tsing Fire Safety
Ambassador; Vice-president of the Executive Committee of Sham Shui

Po Council For the Promotion of Cultural & Recreational Services Ltd;
Member of Sham Shui Po East Area Committee of Sham Shui Po District
Office; and Member of Sham Shui Po Commercial & Industrial Liaison
Committee. In 2009, Mr. Wong received the GIA Diamonds Graduate title.
He is the son of Mr. Wong Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chief Executive and
the brother of Miss Wong Lan Sze, Nancy, Director of the Company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT(Continued)

Executive Directors (Continued)

Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy, aged 31, is the Director and Assistant
Business Manager of the Group. She joined the Group in 2006 and assists
in formulating and implementing the Group’s overall business strategies.
She is also responsible for the execution of the Group’s marketing policies.
Miss Wong holds a Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce from the University
of Toronto, Canada, and is a Certified Public Accountant of the United
States of America. Prior to joining the Group, Miss Wong worked for

an international professional accounting firm in Hong Kong, where she
performed auditing and accounting assignments for a variety of business
organizations including listed companies. She received the GIA Diamonds
Graduate title in 2007. She is the daughter of Mr. Wong Wai Sheung, the
Group’s Chief Executive and the sister of Mr. Wong Ho Lung, Danny,
Director of the Company.

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. WONG Koon Cheung, aged 78, has over 59 years of experience in
retailing and manufacturing of jewellery in Hong Kong. He joined the
Group in 1992.

Mr. CHAN Wai, aged 81, has over 64 years of experience in retailing and
manufacturing of jewellery in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1992.

Mr. LEE Shu Kuan, aged 84, has over 44 years of experience in property
development in Hong Kong. He joined the Group in 1991.

Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline, aged 44, is the co-founder of the Group.
Miss Yeung has over 23 years of experience in public relations. Miss Yeung
was the winner of Miss Hong Kong and Miss International of Goodwill

in 1987, and also the 4 Runner-up of Miss Universe and Queen of Asia in
1988. Miss Yeung was also the president of the Wai Yin Club for the year
1995-1996. She received GIA Diamonds Graduate in 2005.

Mr. HUI King Wai, aged 61, is a solicitor practising in Hong Kong and
joined the Group in 1999. He was admitted the solicitor of the Supreme
Court of England and Wales and of the Supreme Court of Hong Kong in
1981 and 1982 respectively.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT(Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

HUI Chiu Chung, Stephen, JP, aged 64, joined the Group in 1997 and is

the Chairman of Remuneration Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee. He is also the Vice Chairman of OSK Holdings Hong Kong
Limited and has 40 years of experience in the securities and investment
industry. Mr Hui had for years been serving as a Council Member and Vice
Chairman of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong, member of the Advisory
Committee of the Hong Kong Securities and Futures Commission, Director
of the Hong Kong Securities Clearing Company Limited, a member of the
Listing Committee of the Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited,

an appointed member of the Securities and Futures Appeal Tribunal, a
member of Standing Committee on Company Law Reform, a member of the
Committee on Real Estate Investment Trusts of the Hong Kong Securities
and Futures Commission and also an appointed member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Investigation Panel A. Mr. Hui
was appointed by the Government of the HKSAR a Justice of the Peace in
2004 and was also appointed a member of the Zhuhai Municipal Committee
of the Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference in 2006. He is at
present a member of the Government “Appointees” (independent member)
of Appeal Panel of the Travel Industry Council of Hong Kong. Mr. Hui also
serves as independent non-executive director of Hong Kong Exchanges

and Clearing Limited, Chun Wo Development Holdings Limited, Jiuzhou
Development Company Limited, Lifestyle International Holdings Limited,
Frasers Property (China) Limited and China South City Holding Limited

whose shares are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT(Continued)

Independent Non-Executive Directors (Continued)

Mr. LO Mun Lam, Raymond, aged 58, joined the Group since 2004. He was
elected Chairman of the Board on 12th April 2005 and is the Chairman of
the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration Committee. Mr.
Lo is the Chairman of a private equity firm with interest in various business
sectors. He had previously served as advisor, director and financial strategist
in many multidisciplinary listed and major companies. Professionally, Mr.
Lo is a Fellow Member and a Corporate Finance Designate of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England & Wales, a Counselor of Real Estate,
USA and a Fellow Member of the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors,
UK. He is also a member of the International Bar Association and a
Certified Hospitality Educator. Mr. Lo is currently director of three other

listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander aged 53, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director, and a member of both the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee, of the Company with

effect from 24th July 2008. Mr. Tai graduated from Victoria University of
Wellington in New Zealand with a degree in Bachelor of Commerce and
Administration in 1982 and became an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants in 1983. Mr. Tai has extensive
accountancy, corporate finance and investment experience in Hong Kong
and overseas. Mr. Tai is an executive director of Investec Capital Asia
Limited (formerly known as Access Capital Limited), a licensed corporation
under the SFO to conduct Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising
on securities), Type 6 (advising on corporate finance) and Type 9 (asset
management) regulated activities. Mr. Tai is also an independent non-
executive director of Honghua Group Limited (Stock Code: 196) listed in
Hong Kong.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT(Continued)

Senior Management

Mr. AU Kwok Kau, aged 62, is the co-founder and become the

Group General Manager since 2007. Mr. Au is responsible for overall
administration of the Group. He has over 39 years of experience in the

jewellery industry in Hong Kong.

Miss Irene CHEUNG, aged 34, is the Legal Affairs Manager of the Group.
She holds a Bachelor’s of Arts Degree from the University of Toronto and
a Law Degree from Osgoode Hall of Canada. She was admitted as solicitor
and barrister in Ontario, Canada in 2003, where she practised Commercial
and Family Law. She joined the Group in 2005 and is responsible for the
administration and coordination of the Group’s legal affairs. Miss Cheung
is currently a member of the Law Society of Upper Canada and an associate
member of the Law Society of Hong Kong. She is the daughter-in-law of
Mr. Wong Wai Sheung, the Group’s Chief Executive and the spouse of Mr.
Wong Ho Lung, Danny, Director of the Company.

Miss CHUNG Vai Ping, Icy, 41, is the Senior Product Development
Manager of the Group. She has over 21 years experience in jewellery
industry. She joined the Group in 1990 and is mainly responsible for the
product development, jewellery purchasing, wholesaling and retailing
business of the Group. Ms. Chung frequently visits the jewellery exhibitions
worldwide for product exploration and sourcing the finest jewellery and
jewellery parts for the Group. In 2001, she has won the Best of Show
Award with her design “Flashing” in the 2nd Hong Kong Jewellery Design
Competition. She received the GIA Diamonds Graduate title in 2004.

Mr. LEUNG Tak Fai, Kelvin, aged 48, Senior Internal Audit Manager,
joined the Group since 2002. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Information Systems Audit and Control Association.
Being a Certified Information Systems Auditor, he holds a Master’s Degree
in Business Administration. He has over 18 years of internal auditing

experience.

W AP B2 TR R RE A (s

AT B

B BRI - 625 > ACSEI Z SERAIIEA - 37
20074FE th AT S M AALTE 1 A S P B M 7 B
TN o B3O A b IR T LA

SRAERS/NH > 3458 > AR ELHAREL > 5R/NMHE
2 KECE L FpfA I KOsgoode Hallik
AR o JA20034F » SR/IME A INEE R LR M B 5
5RO R G R A > B T
FREEE o R/DER2005FE AL - ATEHE
T Vb i A 52 B 2 WS o SR/MEBBL A g KA
R A G B S A W 2 B & B o SR/MH T
A AT B R S 2 IR TR A A IR
FEEHESEE 2 W o

SERVK/NE > 4158 > AR B2 B i A i A R A
19904F A IMAASE | - A BR B SEHE A I 2 1 4F 48
B FEAFEMEE MU - SREIREE - R
T ZEHS o g/ NIE A B 1 SRS b o T e
TT 58 - T/ G2 98 2 S P R 1 DR o 4 A
Ao JR20014F > F/INE T FHRVE T TEEAE TR
5 R B VS ERE AR LU R AE o (R 20044 HEHK
GIA Diamonds Graduatef§75H °

RAEMESEE - 48K > WA R RTHACEE - 122002
EMAARLEM o Rt BEEGTHA g - KR
RPN R BRI B R R B R AR e 2
TH > FA R EE RIS & TR
A HRRE B o RS B A6 1 8 4R IR AR A R AR
5% o



48 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7442 [ (1 B%) 4 BR /A 7

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
P E B

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT(Continued)

Senior Management (Continued)

Miss LEUNG Wai Sheung, Garry, aged 43, is the Corporate Affairs
Manager of the Group. She holds a professional Diploma in China Economy
and Finance, a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Administration and a Master’s
Degree in Business Administration. She joined the Group in 1994 and is
responsible for the Group’s coordination of project development, corporate
affairs, company secretarial matters and corporate communications. She

is a member of the Youth Committee of the Federation of Hong Kong

Guangdong Community Organizations Limited.

Miss LI Wai Ki, Vickie, aged 55, is the Jewellery Design Director of

the Group. She joined the Group in 1996 and is responsible for product
design and development. Miss Li has over 34 years of experience in
jewellery design. She won several international design awards including

the 1st Greater China Trophy For International Jadeite Jewellery Design
Competition — Premium Award, the 3rd, 4th and 5th Tahitian Pearl Trophy
Asia Brooch & Parure Category-Champion Award. And “Colourful World”,
the brooch designed by Miss Li, has won two top awards in the 9th Hong
Kong Jewellery Design Competition, including the Best of Show Award and
the Craftsmanship & Technology Award.

Dr. LING Hay Ming, Derek, aged 44, joined the Group in 2001 as

I.T. Manager and the Project Manager of Jewellworld.com Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company. He obtained his Bachelor’s Degree in Computer
Engineering, Master’s Degree in Business Administration from Santa

Clara University in California, U.S.A. and his Doctor’s Degree in Business
Administration from The University of Newcastle in Australia. Dr. Ling is

a PRINCE?2 (a worldwide qualification of project management) certified
project manager. Prior to joining the Group, Dr. Ling had over 12 years of
business consulting and management experience in U.S.A. and Hong Kong.

Mr. TSANG Wai Hong, aged 44, joined the Group in 2006 as Senior Project
Manager and is responsible for the system development management. He
received a Master’s Degree in E-commerce and Internet Computing and a
Bachelor’s Degree in Computer Studies from the University of Hong Kong.
Mr. Tsang has over 18 years of experience in information technology and

management.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT(Continued)

Senior Management (Continued)

Mr. TSUI Kin Wah, Tommy, aged 53, is the Laboratory Director of

the Group. Mr. Tsui joined the Group in 1995 and has over 21 years of
experience in purchasing and gemstone identification. Mr. Tsui is an
Executive Committee Member of the Hong Kong Gemological Association
and a fellow member of Gemological Association of Great Britain. Besides,
Mr. Tsui is a laboratory representative and approved signatory under the
Hong Kong Laboratory Accreditation Scheme. Since 2007, Mr. Tsui has
been appointed by Hong Kong Council for Academic Accreditation as a

Sector/ Subject Specialist.

Miss WONG Hau Yeung, Shirley, aged 39, is the Group Deputy General
Manager of the Group. Miss Wong joined the Group in 2004 and is
responsible for the development and operation management for the business
in the Mainland and co-ordinates human resources management and
training. She received a Master’s Degree in Business Administration from
University of Southern Queensland. Besides, Miss Wong is the fellow of the
Institute of Global Managers, the Chartered Human Resources Consultant of
Chartered Association of Business Administrator. She has over 17 years of

experience in the jewellery industry in Hong Kong.

Mr. WONG Wai Tong, Samuel, aged 50, joined the Group in 1998.
Presently, he is the Business Director. He has over 34 years of
manufacturing and purchasing experience in jewellery and gold industry.
He is responsible for the purchasing of diamonds, gems and gold products
of the Group and the operation of the Company. Mr. Wong is the brother of
Mr. Wong Wai Sheung, Chief Executive of the Group.

W AP B2 TR R RE A (s

FAE LA B ()

TREHESEA - 53K Ry AR E DA o 1R
e 1995 INAALE ] - A a2 LAF PRI S EL
AR o R R AR g E K
ol A e b L o WA > SR AFIBE
B rRR al TR i AR R o 1Y
20074FHE » R 5EA B E S BRI S R R B AL AT
EFLE T

FIGR/IMA > 395% > SRS R HAAS L o F/MA
TA20044F M AASE /] > 5 B N 25 1 8 S iE
R R B A T AE - Bk
T A VO T R TR B A B B A o U
S > F/NETR B I R ACEEL G RS B SR
FATAT R R o E /NI a1 74 ik R
EGET4 R

FRESEIEE 5 S0BE 0 N 19984EIMAAR S > Bk
LW > BLB3AME IR o 4 B R BRI A
B o WA ABREAERRNEEA - EA ke
RS i AN RS 2 B o B Ry AR AT
AR AR e IR -



50 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7~ 5 [ (12 B5) 47 BR /A

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
P E B

RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the retirement scheme operated by the Group are set out in note

3.19 (c) to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors’ service contracts requires the Company to give a
period of notice of more than one year or to pay compensation or make
other payments equivalent to more than one year’s emoluments (other

than statutory compensation). Pursuant to the Bye-laws, one-third of the
Directors shall retire from office by rotation at each annual general meeting

of the Company.

The fees and other emoluments of Directors are determined by reference
to industry norm and market conditions, with discretionary bonus on

performance awarded to Executive Directors.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements, no other contracts
of significance in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company,
its subsidiaries or its holding company was a party, and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,

subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or

existed during the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions entered into by the Group during the year
ended 31st March 2011 as disclosed in note 35(a), (b) & (c) to the financial
statements do not constitute connected transactions under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”).

DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS FROM RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company, its subsidiaries or its holding
company a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of the Company
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,

the Company or any other body corporate.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

During the year under review, the percentages of sales for the year

attributable to the Group’s major customers are as follows:
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2011 2010
The largest customer BREF 6.2% 10.1%
Five largest customers combined T KEF G5t 8.7% 13.0%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share

capital) had interest in the major customers noted above.
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MAJOR SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s major

suppliers are as follows:

B30T Y]
AEIA > AR ) T AR R T AL B R 2 A L
T

2011 2010
The largest supplier IR AL E R 26.7% 23.3%
Five largest suppliers combined T R R A E 46.8% 43.6%

None of the directors, their associates or any shareholders (which to the
knowledge of the directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s share

capital) had interest in the major suppliers noted above.

BANK LOANS, OVERDRAFTS AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

At 31st March 2011, the Group had bank loans, overdrafts or other
borrowings totalling HK$Nil (2010: approximately HK$313,700,000).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws although there are no restrictions against such rights under the laws of

Bermuda.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES OF
THE LISTING RULES

Throughout the year, the Company was in compliance with the Code on

Corporate Governance Practices as set out in the Listing Rules.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

In compliance with paragraph 14 of the Code of Best Practice (applicable
before 1st January 2005), the Board has established an audit committee
comprising all independent non-executive directors, to monitor the
accounting and financial reporting practices and internal control systems of
the Company. Since 1st April 2010, the audit committee has held several
meetings to consider matters including the 2010 annual report of the
Company, internal controls, the unaudited interim condensed consolidated
financial information for the six months ended 30th September 2010, the

2011 annual report of the Company and the Group’s IT control environment.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company for the Annual General Meeting
will be closed from 24th August 2011 to 29th August 2011, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In
order to qualify for attendance at the Annual General Meeting to be held

on 29th August 2011, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Share Registrars in Hong
Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, Rooms 1712-
1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 23rd August 2011.

The Register of Members of the Company for the final dividend will also
be closed from 2nd September 2011 to 7th September 2011, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.

In order to qualify for the final dividend, all transfers accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Share
Registrars in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Ist
September 2011.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its directors as at 28th June 2011, being the latest practicable
date prior to the issue of the annual report, the public float of shares in the
Company has remained above the minimum percentage required by The

Stock Exchange throughout the year.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 S A Y i o

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF LUK FOOK HOLDINGS
(INTERNATIONAL) LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Luk Fook Holdings
(International) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,

the “Group”) set out on pages 57 to 151, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31st March 2011, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.

The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

‘We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31st
March 2011, and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 28th June 2011
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

517 A

(For the year ended 31st March 2011)
(B E20114E3 A 31 H IL4FEE)

2011 2010
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
R 5E TWL THIT
(Restated)
(H41)
Revenue A 6 8,091,121 5,386,432
Cost of sales S8 p AR 9 (6,173,877) (4,092,895)
Gross profit EEv il 1,917,244 1,293,537
Other income BRI PN 7 55,977 43,850
Selling and distribution costs SHEE K 4382 9 (812,593) (611,069)
Administrative expenses ATECE: 9 (99,169) (69,414)
Other losses, net A s 1 1 8 (37,454) (21,939)
Operating profit A8 | 1,024,005 634,965
Finance income B IR A 9,392 342
Finance costs s (4,661) (3,548)
Finance income/(costs), net WA () - 4 10 4,731 (3,206)
Share of results of an associate TEAL—F s\ T S48 21 487 2,343
Profit before income tax 53 BT A5 i ¥ 1) 1,029,223 634,102
Income tax expenses P15 B 52 11 (152,007) (97,540)
Profit for the year A A i ) 877,216 536,562
Profit attributable to: JEA N R -
Equity holders of the Company VN/NGIL ErE R e 12 866,216 531,484
Non-controlling interests FEFE IR £ 11,000 5,078
877,216 536,562
Earnings per share for profit attributable to FERNARN TS A &
equity holders of the Company JRE A v ) 4 A R 22 F
during the year 13
Basic FAR HK$1.71 HK$1.08
Diluted b3 HK$1.71 HK$1.08

The notes on pages 65 to 151 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Details of dividends payable to equity holders of the Company attributable

to the profit for the year are set out in Note 14.

SR65ZE 151 E HMIRE A A5 BB R N BB R 0 o

JHRE Aok 4 A i A ) BB A AR A R A R IR 2 R
TEHA L4 o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
w23 A R

(For the year ended 31st March 2011)
(B E20114E3 A 31 H IL4FE)

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
T THIT
(Restated)
(%))
Profit for the year RPNl 877,216 536,562
Other comprehensive income: HAATHEYRLA -
Currency translation differences FEE 58,2545 26,476 5,782
Revaluation surplus of property, plant and LE B YN e Lt
equipment upon transfer to investment BEWHEREZ
properties, net of tax EAGEER - BRBLAR 16,114 -
Other comprehensive income for the year, AR A A T
net of tax Friifz 42,590 5,782
Total comprehensive income for the year A A4 TH AR 919,806 542,344
Attributable to: FEA A
— Equity holders of the Company _ANEIRERS A 908,044 537,056
— Non-controlling interests — FERE RS 11,762 5,288
Total comprehensive income for the year LB LN 919,806 542,344
The notes on pages 65 to 151 are an integral part of these consolidated 56528 151 EL I GE 2 A5 & BB R 19 B BRR 20 o

financial statements.



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

B B R

(As at 31st March 2011)
(201143 H31H)
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As at 31st March As at 1st April
JR3H31H R4H1H
2011 2010 2009
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
i T T o T
(Restated) (Restated)
(FE51) (F31)
ASSETS <03
Non-current assets IE T E)
Property, plant and equipment LE D Y& 17 369,942 379,635 110,229
Land use rights - Ml P A 18 15,188 15,463 15,654
Investment properties AL/ 19 80,638 = =
Interests in an associate T —F W N w2 RS 21 5,219 4,507 1,955
Trading licence e N 1,080 1,080 1,080
Rental deposits e 4 22 39,540 31,411 25,907
Deferred income tax assets WRAE PTG 30 19,016 14,018 14,189
530,623 446,114 169,014
Current assets T E
Inventories e 23 2,630,824 1,735,964 1,218,880
Trade receivables & 5 e HETE 25 108,591 73,806 37,081
Deposits, prepayments and 4~ TEAHRIE K
other receivables oA B R TH 22 40,717 45,863 43,747
Amount due from an associate TE— KB\ 7 iR IE 21 5,052 7,962 6,491
Cash and cash equivalents 4 MR a5EY) 32 965,892 286,946 280,125
3,751,076 2,150,541 1,586,324
Total assets AL E 4,281,699 2,596,655 1,755,338
EQUITY Bis
Capital and reserves attributable to RN FIREGR A &
the equity holders of the Company JEE A A % frti
Share capital k&N 28(a) 54,250 49,250 49,250
Share premium iR 28(b) 1,187,933 58,884 58,884
Reserves bt 29(a) 1,953,645 1,414,506 1,089,228
Proposed dividends FREUR B2, 14 227,853 137,902 59,101
3,423,681 1,660,542 1,256,463
Non-controlling interests FEVEEME £ 34,707 22,945 17,657
Total equity HERS A 3,458,388 1,683,487 1,274,120
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
Ba R RATR

(As at 31st March 2011)
(iA20114E3H31H)

As at 31st March As at 1st April
JR3H31H h4H1H
2011 2010 2009
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
i T T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(E41) (FE%1))
LIABILITIES fafi
Non-current liabilities FET ) & A7
Deferred income tax liabilities IR FTASFl A 1 30 18,503 6,623 2,980
Employee benefit obligations g B 4E A AT 31 27,966 12,266 22,733
46,469 18,889 25,713
Current liabilities T A
Trade payables, other payables E o REATRRIE ~ HAth BT
and accruals HETE % R IE 26 686,400 530,434 258,699
Borrowings e 27 - 313,700 169,000
Current income tax liabilities B TS B AR 90,442 50,145 27,806
776,842 894,279 455,505
Total liabilities AR 823,311 913,168 481,218
Total equity and liabilities T 4 S B A AR 4,281,699 2,596,655 1,755,338
Net current assets B FE VR 2,974,234 1,256,262 1,130,819
Total assets less current liabilities AL R B B 3,504,857 1,702,376 1,299,833
WONG Wai Sheung TSE Moon Chuen
N A
Director Director
HF FzHE
The notes on pages 65 to 151 are an integral part of these consolidated HOSEISIE INGE S 45 & M R RS AR )

financial statements.
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P 1R

(As at 31st March 2011)
(201143 H31H)
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2011 2010
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
B3 TWL THIT
ASSETS ¥
Non-current assets FE T E)
Interests in subsidiaries S NG 20 1,244,927 298,887
Current assets TLE)
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE W Ff S N w1 R TE 24 475,776 383,148
Prepayments TEAT HETE 22 - 28
Cash and cash equivalents 4 MR EEEY 32 221,822 569
697,598 383,745
Total assets BB 1,942,525 682,632
EQUITY HE2E
Capital and reserves B R At
Share capital AR 28(a) 54,250 49,250
Share premium JRe Ay it A 28(b) 1,187,933 58,884
Reserves bt 29(b) 471,556 341,267
Proposed dividends BRI E 14 227,853 137,902
1,941,592 587,303
LIABILITIES i
Current liabilities TE) A 1
Other payables HoAthREATRRIA 26 933 585
Borrowings Ry 27 - 94,744
933 95,329
Total equity and liabilities WE 5 J B (5 A H 1,942,525 682,632
Net current assets it 696,665 288,416
Total assets less current liabilities HEEE RO A 1,941,592 587,303
WONG Wai Sheung TSE Moon Chuen
W N A
Director Director
HF L

The notes on pages 65 to 151 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

(For the year ended 31st March 2011)
(B E201143H31 H I EE)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

72 vl Rl AR Ry A AN
Non-
Share Share controlling Total
capital premium Reserves  Subtotal interests equity
B B it At FEEBEERE  BERRAN
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
T T T T T T T T T T T T
(Note 29(a))
(Restated)  (Restated) (Restated)
(Fi5E29(a))
(E41) (FE51) (FE51)
For the year ended BE20114E3H31H
31st March 2011 IR
At 1st April 2010, *20104F4 H1H >
as previously reported AR T 49,250 58,884 1,556,202 1,664,336 22,945 1,687,281
Effect of change in accounting &7 B34 #) > 48
policy (Note 2(d)) (Kt EE2(d)) - - (3,794 (3,794) - (3,794)
At 1st April 2010, 20104 H 1H »
as restated il 49,250 58,884 1,552,408 1,660,542 22,945 1,683,487
Comprehensive income 2B
Profit for the year AF Ay g ) - - 866,216 866,216 11,000 877,216
Other comprehensive income il 2 i W A
Currency translation differences M 57554 - - 25,714 25,714 762 26,476
Revaluation surplus of property, 42 ~ /= M ik s
plant and equipment upon BEREYERZ
transfer to investment HAGAR > BRBLE
properties, net of tax - - 16,114 16,114 - 16,114
Total other comprehensive oAt A AR A
income - - 41,828 41,828 762 42,590
Total comprehensive income 2y #505¢ A - - 908,044 908,044 11,762 919,806
Transactions with owners B AR Y
Issue of shares ATy 5,000 1,129,049 - 1,134,049 - 1,134,049
Dividends paid BT E - - (278,954) (278,954) - (278,954)
5,000 1,129,049 (278,954) 855,095 - 855,095
At 31st March 2011 R20114E3 H31H 54,250 1,187,933 2,181,498 3,423,681 34,707 3,458,388

The notes on pages 65 to 151 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Attributable to equity holders of the Company

A R A A
Non-
Share Share controlling Total
capital  premium Reserves Subtotal interests equity
FEA et (G4 e FREERRERE  RESEANAH

HK$000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKS$000
T T Tt Tt Tt Tt

(Note 29(a))
(Restated)  (Restated) (Restated)
(Bt 3E29(a))
(%) (%) (%)
For the year ended BE20104E3/31H
31st March 2010 R4
At 1st April 2009, *20094F4H1H >
as previously reported AR T 49,250 58,884 1,147,436 1,255,570 17,657 1,273,227
Effect of change in accounting &L s )~ 2 28
policy (Note 2(d)) (Bt 3E2(d)) . - 893 893 - 893
At Ist April 2009, A20094F4 H1H >
as restated FEl] 49,250 58,884 1,148,329 1,256,463 17,657 1,274,120
Comprehensive income A A
Profit for the year A A % ) - - 531,484 531,484 5,078 536,562
Other comprehensive income ol 4 i A
Currency translation differences [ 5,754 - - 5,572 5,572 210 5,782
Total other comprehensive Hofth 2 T AR YA
income - - 5,572 5,572 210 5,782
Total comprehensive income 27 #80B¢ A - = 537,056 537,056 5,288 542,344
Transactions with owners BT AR5
Dividends paid EfTE - - (132,977)  (132,977) - (132,977)
At 31st March 2010 201043 H31 H 49,250 58,884 1,552,408 1,660,542 22,945 1,683,487
The notes on pages 65 to 151 are an integral part of these consolidated 556578 151 BRI B G2 AR & BB R i S TR 40 =

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B Bl R

(For the year ended 31st March 2011)
(B E201143H31 H I EE)

2011 2010
Note HK$°000 HK$’000
! T T
(Restated)
(FE41)
Cash flows from operating activities EETEE) 2 B A i
Net cash generated from operations IR 2 R4 TR 33 352,305 381,908
Hong Kong profits tax paid RY NI FEY ) (55,404) (42,852)
Overseas income taxes paid SRR TANRES (52,608) (28,535)
Net cash generated from operating activities 4578 i B 7 A= 2 3 4 1 41 244,293 310,521
Cash flows from investing activities BEEEH 2 H e E
Purchase of property, plant and WEEYZE - W Mokt
equipment (100,799) (314,607)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and &3 ~ fikls X ittt
equipment REE e 798 1,220
Interest received 2 B 854 342
Net cash used in investing activities PG TR i 2 Bl 1A (99,147) (313,045)
Cash flows from financing activities Rl T B 2 B 4 O
Proceeds from issuance of AT R A5 K T AR
ordinary shares, net 1,134,049 _
Proceeds from bank loans SRAT BT R E 425,000 508,674
Repayment of bank loans B R ARIT B (738,700) (363,974)
Interest on bank loans SRAT R FE (4,661) (3,171)
Dividends paid EATFLE (278,954) (132,977)
Net cash generated from financing activities il &% Bl & A= 2 314 1948 536,734 8,552
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents B4 T B4 S A ) 2 Bt 681,880 6,028
Cash and cash equivalents at 1st April A1 H 2 814 B 425 286,946 280,125
Exchange differences [ifE b 2548 (2,934) 793
Cash and cash equivalents at 31st March A3H31H 2 Bl4 ke BlES5EEY) 32 965,892 286,946

The notes on pages 65 to 151 are an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
U5 9 A B i

GENERAL INFORMATION

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited (the “Company’’) was
incorporated in Bermuda on 3rd September 1996 as a company
with limited liability under the Companies Act of Bermuda. The
address of its registered office is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM 12 Bermuda.

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) are principally engaged in the retailing and wholesaling of
a variety of platinum and gold jewelleries, gold ornaments, gem-set
jewelleries, jadeites, gemstones and other accessory items.

The Company’s shares are listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollar (“HK$”), unless otherwise stated, and have been approved for
issue by the board of directors on 28th June 2011.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention except that
certain financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at fair
value, as appropriate.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving

a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 5.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e B ik

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(a)

Effect of adopting amendments to standards and
interpretations

HKAS 17 (amendment), “Leases”, deletes specific

guidance regarding classification of leases of land, so as

to eliminate inconsistency with the general guidance on
lease classification. As a result, leases of land should be
classified as either finance or operating lease using the
general principles of HKAS 17, i.e. whether the lease
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset to the lessee. Prior to the amendment,
land interest which title is not expected to pass to the Group
by the end of the lease term was classified as operating lease
under “Leasehold land and land use rights”, and amortised
over the lease term.

HKAS 17 (amendment) has been applied retrospectively
for annual periods beginning 1st April 2010 in accordance
with the effective date and transitional provisions of the
amendment. The Group has reassessed the classification of
unexpired leasehold land and land use rights as at 1st April
2010 on the basis of information existing at the inception

of those leases, and recognised the leasehold land in Hong
Kong as finance lease retrospectively. As a result of the
reassessment, the Group has reclassified leasehold land from
operating lease to finance lease.

The accounting for land interest classified as finance lease is
as below:

. If the property interest is held for own use, that
land interest is accounted for as property, plant and
equipment and is depreciated from the land interest
available for its intended use over the shorter of the
useful life of the asset and the lease term.

. If the property interest is held to earn rentals and/
or for capital appreciation, that land interest is
accounted for as an investment property.

The effect of adoption of this amendment is analysed in note
2(d).
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(a)

Effect of adopting amendments to standards and
interpretations (Continued)

HK Int-5 “Presentation of Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
contains a Repayment on Demand Clause™ has been applied
retrospectively for annual periods beginning 1st April 2010.
According to HK Int-5, if a term loan agreement includes
an overriding repayment on demand clause (“callable
feature”), which gives the lender a clear and unambiguous
unconditional right to demand repayment at any time at its
sole discretion, a borrower shall classify the term loan as a
current liability in its balance sheet, as the borrower does
not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
Accordingly the long-term portion of the Group’s mortgage
loan of HK$150,878,000 was reclassified from non-current
liabilities to current liabilities in the consolidated balance
sheet as at 31st March 2010.

The following new standards and amendments to standards
are mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning 1st April 2010. The adoption of these new
standard and amendments to standards does not have any
significant impact to the results and financial position of the
Group.

HKFRSs Improvements to HKFRSs
(Amendment) 2009, except for HKAS 17
(Amendment) “Leases”
HKEFRS 2 Group cash-settled share-based
(Amendment) payment transactions

HKFRS 3 (Revised)  Business combinations

HKFRS 5
(Amendment)

Non-current asset held for sale and
discontinued operations

HKAS 27 (Revised)  Consolidated and separate financial
statements

HKAS 39 Eligible hedged items

(Amendment)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e B ik

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

(o)

The following new and amended standards, and
interpretations are mandatory for the first time
for the financial year beginning 1st April 2010,
but are not currently relevant to the Group:

HKFRS 1 (Revised)
HKFRS 1
(Amendment)
HKIFRIC)-Int 9
HK(IFRIC)-Int 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 17

HK(IFRIC)-Int 18

First-time adoption of HKFRSs
Additional exemptions for first-time
adopters

Reassessment of embedded
derivatives

Hedges of a net investment in a
foreign operation

Distribution of non-cash
asset to owners

Transfers of assets from customers

New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year ended 31st March
2011 and have not been early adopted by the

Group

HKFRSs
(Amendment)

HKFRS 7
(Amendment)

HKEFRS 9

Improvements to HKFRSs 2010®

Disclosures — transfers of financial
assets®
Financial instruments®

Additions to HKFRS 9 Financial instruments — financial

HKFRS 10

HKFRS 11

HKEFRS 12

HKEFRS 13

HKAS 12
(Amendment)

HKAS 24 (Revised)

HKAS 27 (2011)

HKAS 28 (2011)

HKAS 32

(Amendment)
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

HK(IFRIC)-Int 19

liabilities®
Consolidated financial statements®

Joint arrangements®

Disclosure of interests in other
entities®
Fair value measurement®

Deferred tax — recovery of
underlying assets®
Related party disclosures"

Separate financial statements®
Investments in associates and joint
ventures®

Classification of right issues"

Prepayments of a minimum funding
requirement"

Extinguishing financial liabilities
with equity instruments®

2 R )
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

()

(d)

New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not
effective for the financial year ended 31st March
2011 and have not been early adopted by the
Group (Continued)

@ Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on 1st

April 2011

@ Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on st
April 2012

® Effective for the Group for annual period beginning on 1st
April 2013

Change in accounting policy

In previous years, the Group’s properties (“‘the Properties™)
were carried in the consolidated balance sheet at revaluation
less subsequent depreciation (the “Revaluation Model”).
With effect from 1st April 2010, the Group changed its
accounting policy for the Properties to the cost model

under HKAS 16 (the “Cost Model”). The change was made
to increase the relevance of financial data to the users of

the financial statements by taking into consideration the
following factors:

(6)) The market values of the Properties are volatile
and are influenced by various factors which are
seldom associated with the underlying operation
and performance of the Group. Adoption of the
Cost Model will avoid fluctuations in the Group’s
financial statements resulting from the cyclical
volatility associated with the Revaluation Model
and the Group’s financial performance could be
more comparable on a year-on-year basis.

(i) A majority of comparable companies within the
Hong Kong and PRC retail industry adopt the Cost
Model. Therefore, using the Cost Model can align
the Group’s accounting policy with industry peers
and improve comparability of the Group’s financial
performance with industry peers.

The change in accounting policy has been accounted for
retrospectively and the relevant comparative figures have
been restated.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2 HREHE )
(d) Change in accounting policy (Continued) @  FwhgoR s (E)
The effect of adoption of HKAS 17 (Amendment) and PRAN B s & e RIS 1798 (BT
change in accounting policy for the Properties is as follows: ) Je 8w BUR S B B 52 5 W) 2
ZRER
() Consolidated income statement @) AR
Year ended 31st March 2011 Year ended 31st March 2010
RE20114E3H 31 H LA HE2010F3A31H IEFE
Change to Change to
HKAS 17 Cost Model HKAS 17 Cost Model
(Amendment) for Properties | (Amendment)  for Properties
Fib it W% A hinZa
RN 1798 LES T HERISE17E /B i
(53T A%) LN ES (BT A
HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$000
T Tl T T
Increase in depreciation S-Syl 5,033 15 3,114 148
Decrease in amortisation of leasehold £ + & i/ >
land (5,033) - (3,114) -
Total decrease in profit A i
for the year M - 15 - 148
Attributable to: JEEAH:
Equity holders of the Company KRATIRSEAE - 15 = 148
Decrease in basic earnings BRI AR HKO0.003 cent HK0.030 cent
per share Wy - 000344l = 0.0303/1l
Decrease in diluted earnings B T R HKO0.003 cent HK0.030 cent
per share Wy - 000344l = 0.0303/1l
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued) 2 TR )
(d)  Change in accounting policy (Continued) (d)  ErEhsoRsE s ()
(ii)  Consolidated balance sheet (i) HhEEAMER
As at 31st March 2011 As at 31st March 2010 Asat 1st April 2009
TR2A0114E3 311 201063731 H TR20094E4H1H
Change to Change to Change to

HKAS17  Cost Model HKAS 17 Cost Model HKAS 17 Cost Model
(Amendment) for Properties |(Amendment) for Properties (Amendment) for Properties
it Wik ¥ ket s Eikast it
HNS175% WRER | RIS Yok AT Y
(BT k) BABIA (T4 AR (3T) A
HK$°000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
T T T T T T

Increase/(decrease) in property, 473 ~ BiE Kk fhi
plant and equipment $n,/ (80) 211,742 (4,790) 216,578 (4,627) 1,664 944

Decrease in leasehold land and & 3 & i

land use rights il Al (211,742 - (216,578) - (1,664) -
Increase/(decrease) in deferred  ¥ERERT/EH s

income tax assets 1/ (Bi») - 12 - 341 = (51)
Decrease in deferred EREFEHAR

income tax liabilities HY - (401) - (492) - -
Increase in exchange reserve  [E st ki - 371 = 3,651 - 3,644
Decrease in revaluation reserve 5k ffii > - 8,017 - (7.479) - (2,933)

Increase in retained earnings R B2 A5 - 19 - 34 - 182
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

3.1

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all its subsidiaries made up
to 31st March.

(a)

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding
of more than one half of the voting rights. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights

that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The Group uses the acquisition method of
accounting to account for business combinations.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition

of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Acquisition-related costs are expensed
as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their
fair values at the acquisition date. On an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree either

at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Subsidiaries (Continued)

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at

cost less impairment. Cost is adjusted to reflect
changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividend received and receivable.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired

is recorded as goodwill. If this is less than the

fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Transactions with non-controlling interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests as transactions with equity owners of the
Group. For purchases from non-controlling interests,
the difference between any consideration paid and
the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of
net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposals to non-controlling
interests are also recorded in equity.

3
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Transactions with non-controlling interests
(Continued)

When the Group ceases to have control or
significant influence, any retained interest in the
entity is remeasured to its fair value, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount
for the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

Associate

Associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20%

and 50% of the voting rights. Investment in an
associate is accounted for using the equity method
of accounting and is initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s investment in associate includes goodwill
identified on acquisition, net of any accumulated
impairment loss.

The Group’s share of its associate’s post-acquisition
profits or losses is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is
recognised in the consolidated other comprehensive
income. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount
of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest
in the associate, including any other unsecured
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.1 Consolidation (Continued)

(c)

(@)

Associate (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associate are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in an associate. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associate have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

Dilution gains and losses arising in investments in
associate is recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

Changes in accounting policy

The Group has changed its accounting policy for
transactions with non-controlling interests and
the accounting for loss of control or significant
influence from 1st April 2010 when revised
HKAS 27, “Consolidated and separate financial
statements”, became effective. The revision to
HKAS 27 contained consequential amendments
to HKAS 28, “Investments in associates”, and
HKAS 31, “Interests in joint ventures”.

Previously, transactions with non-controlling
interests were treated as transactions with parties
external to the Group. Disposals therefore resulted
in gains or losses in profit or loss and purchases
resulted in the recognition of goodwill. On
disposal or partial disposal, a proportionate interest
in reserves attributable to the subsidiary was
reclassified to profit or loss or directly to retained
earnings.

Previously, when the Group ceased to have control
or significant influence over an entity, the carrying
amount of the investment at the date control

or significant influence became its cost for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained
interests as associates or financial assets.

3
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

3.1

3.2

3.3

(@)

Changes in accounting policy (Continued)

The Group has applied the new policy prospectively
to transactions occurring on or after 1st April 2010.
As a consequence, no adjustment was necessary

to any of the amounts previously recognised in the
financial statements.

Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent

with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating

decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,

who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing

performance of the operating segments, has been identified

as the board of directors that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented

in HK$, which is the Company’s functional and
Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated

into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation when items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.3 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

@) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(ii) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions);
and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations, and of borrowings and other
currency instruments designated as hedges of such
investments, are taken to other comprehensive
income. When a foreign operation is partially
disposed of or sold, exchange differences that were
recorded in equity are recognised in the income
statement as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

34

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may
also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases
of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the income statement during the financial period
in which they are incurred.

Leasehold land classified as finance lease and other
property, plant and equipment commences amortisation/
depreciation from the time when the assets become available
for their intended use. Amortisation on leasehold land
classified as finance lease and depreciation on other assets
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their
cost to their residual values over their estimated useful lives,
as follows:

Leasehold land classified Remaining lease term of 45-75
as finance lease years

Buildings 2% or over the unexpired lease
period of leasehold land,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements  20% or over the unexpired lease

period, whichever is shorter

Furniture and fixtures and 20%

computer equipment
Plant and machinery 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

34

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 3.8).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
net proceeds with carrying amount of the relevant assets and
are included in the income statement.

Land use rights

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, (if any).
Cost represents consideration paid for the rights to use the
land on which various plants and buildings are generally
situated for a period from 30 to 70 years. Amortisation of
land use rights is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease.

Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the
Group.

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
related transaction costs, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method
to write off the cost of the investment properties over
their estimated useful lives of 45 years. Where the
carrying amount of an investment property is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repair and maintenance costs are expensed in the income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it

is reclassified as property, plant and equipment, and its
carrying amount at the date of reclassification becomes its
cost for accounting purposes.

3

Annual Report 2011 43 79

FEEHEORBE R (w0

34

3.5

3.6

ook ~ W5 Beise i (40

1 2 W A (7% 1 A T e
Il - %R 2 MR
BB Bk 22 1L T i 0 < 2B
3.8) ©

HH B e 72 AR S T4 IR e A L
A B 2 IRTHIE EUECRE E > wT
AfREEF o

A A

b o R R A 1 D 2 4
Be SRR s 48 (U A7) SR o A
AL T8 A 2 WS K
T2 b BER] (1130 %70
) A 2 ARE o L R
M A H AR -

BeEPE
YT B TR AL i
S ARTHE ST AT > FLEJE
ARG - EE AT
WEFE o

BB W A 1A (BLH5 AR B
25 M) Bk BT & R
W TR () SR -

BEYREUBELER A > R
A54F 2 At RTS8 YA 0 1A S 45
YR A - WAV ENRE
(B A FEAG R AT i (e 28 JUIBp
B 9 2 HL T i ]

PETEA B JH H 2 R AR P Wit A
ARENR FIAS L - T % H H A
REA AT SEstT By > HARB ST &
B & AR R o BT A HAth Ak
16 R AR AT FE A2 2 B BUB ]
TER 45 S8 o

(Ed e/ ESi E == il e
BRI ~ RE Rt o i
A HE T 40 H 2 R T et e
i FLT 5 R FLplAs o



80 Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited 7442 [ (12 B%) 4 BR /A 7

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

VR 5 A Bl

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.7 Trading licence
Trading licence with indefinite useful life represents a
membership in Chinese Gold and Silver Exchange Society
and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if
any.

3.8 Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
investment in an associate and non-financial
assets
Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example
goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment. Assets are reviewed for
impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of

assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels

for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Impairment testing of an investment in a subsidiary is
required upon receiving a dividends if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the subsidiary in the Company’s balance sheet exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of
the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

3.9 Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. The
cost of merchandise comprises raw materials, direct labour
and other direct costs. It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary

course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Financial assets
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: at fair value through profit or loss and loans
and receivables. The classification depends on the purpose
for which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of the Group’s financial assets
at initial recognition and re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in the short
term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for
trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets
in this category are classified as current assets if
expected to be within 12 months; otherwise, they
are classified as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are

not quoted in an active market. They are included in

current assets, except for maturities greater than 12
months after the end of the reporting period. These
are classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade and other
receivables”, “cash and cash equivalents”, “amount
due from an associate” and “amount due from

subsidiaries” in the balance sheet.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.10 Financial assets (Continued)
Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for
all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit
or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value and transaction
costs are expensed in the income statement. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of

the “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss”
category are presented in the income statement within
“other (losses)/gains — net” in the period in which they arise.
Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is recognised in the income statement as part
of other income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

3.11 Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

3.12 Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset
or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment
losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated.

3

HEEHEORBER (0

3.10

3.11

3.12

S ¥ A ()
ERVERE 2 M H IR AL
R B E 2 HELH - Mzes H
fERR o BEETIH 1% AT E AR
NP E R AR 2 < T &l
BE 2 2 oy IRAHERR. o $E 0 FH
R ARG < S Rl B E TI WA 1R A
SPAEAERS. - 15 Sy AR HI A 4R 2
KNG F B o ffcioR A 80&
Z B4 Ui ek 2 RE i i
i HASEH O R 2 8
R AR 73 JE B B B i B 2 1L it % 4
MEE o LAFEF ARG Z &
Al T AR AR AT EBAR - B
NI S IR IE T9 400 25 $  ~P-(EL fife
R FLAR SV BR T R A 5 ik 1
A BNR -

[ 4% 2 P E R AR 4 2 4 &
JEE I 2 SF-{BL 5 B8 i E AR 2
G > TIR A MR AR
Z [ Hopb (B R) Wedd - 1A
23 o K AN TEF AR Z
EREEZ BRI > RIELA
A I SCEBUAR R A B A 48 i 35 A1
e A At A — B>

R S T
HAAKHOHEREEL SER
HIBATHE > HLE 1B B e A B
o [7] Wy 538 B /2 A A B 8 IR
S RVEE B g TARRE >
e A AR A -

i Y A AL

AR P A% i S TR A5 58 E
Tl — AL < il R A A AE (L
Z R BB BOEITRAL o A FB
80 BL 8 4 2 W L E DU R AR
R A — TS S T ([ iR
1) - Bzl R ey Sefhat
% JE el E Bz A e A E
filiat AR SR B 4 AL 72 AR B - I
7% VR B % AL 4 Al E AR E A
B A B (R 1



3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.12

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is
objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

. Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
obligor;
o A breach of contract, such as a default or

delinquency in interest or principal payments;

. The Group, for economic or legal reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to
the borrower a concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider;

o It becomes probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

. The disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

. Observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from
a portfolio of financial assets since the initial
recognition of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual financial
assets in the portfolio, including:

1) adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the portfolio;

(i1) national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the
portfolio.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.12

3.13

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss
is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest
rate. The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has

a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring

any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate
determined under the contract. As a practical expedient,

the Group may measure impairment on the basis of an
instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such
as an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal
of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement.

Derivative financial instruments which do not
qualify for hedge accounting

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
remeasured at their fair values. The method of recognising
the resulting gains or losses depends on whether the
derivative is designated and qualified as a hedging
instrument, and if so, the nature of the item being hedged.
Since the derivative financial instruments entered into by the
Group do not qualify for hedge accounting, changes in fair
value of any derivative financial instruments are recognised
immediately in the income statement.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.14

3.15

3.16

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.
A provision for impairment of receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be
able to collect all amounts due according to the original term
of receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the original
effective interest rate. The carrying amount of the assets is
reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement
within administrative expenses. When a receivable is
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance

account for receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against administrative
expenses in the income statement.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less,
and bank overdrafts, if any.

Bank overdrafts, if any, are shown within borrowings in
current liabilities on the balance sheet.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Group are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions

of a financial liability and an equity instrument. Financial
liabilities (including trade payables) are initially measured at
fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method. An equity instrument is
any contract that does not meet the definition of financial
liability and evidences a residual interest in the assets of the
Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs,
net of tax, directly attributable to the issue of new shares are
shown in equity as a deduction from the proceeds.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.17

3.18

Borrowings and borrowing costs 3.17
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of

transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently

stated at amortised cost; any difference between the

proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value

is recognised in the income statement over the period of the

borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying assets are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the asset for its
intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to the
income statement in the period in which they are incurred.
Current and deferred income tax 3.18
The tax expense for the period comprises current and

deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,

except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in

other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this

case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive

income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis

of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the company’s
subsidiaries and associates operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.18

Current and deferred income tax (Continued)
Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts

in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.19 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

(c)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Profit sharing and bonus plans

Provisions for profit sharing and bonus plans are
recognised when the Group has a present legal
or constructive obligation as a result of services
rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made.

Pension obligations

Hong Kong

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) which is registered under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong
Kong. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held in a
separately administered fund. The MPF Scheme is
generally funded by payments from employees and
by the Group.

The Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme

are expensed as incurred and are reduced by the
employer’s voluntary contribution forfeited from
the MPF Scheme by those employees who leave the
scheme prior to vesting fully in the contributions.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.19 Employee benefits (Continued)
(c) Pension obligations (Continued)

The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
As stipulated by rules and regulations in the
PRC, the Group contributes to state-sponsored
retirement schemes for its relevant employees in
the PRC. The Group’s relevant employees make
monthly contributions to the schemes at 15% to
23% of the relevant income (comprising wages,
salaries, allowances and bonuses), while the Group
contributes 26% to 44% of such income and has no
further obligations for the actual payment of post-
retirement benefits beyond the contributions. The
state-sponsored retirement schemes are responsible
for the entire post-retirement benefit obligations
payable to the retired employees.

The Group’s contributions to the state-sponsored
retirement schemes are expensed as incurred and are
fully and immediately vested in the employees.

(d) Long service payment
The Group’s net obligation in respect of lump
sum long service amounts payable on cessation
of employment in certain circumstances under the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance is the amount
of future benefit that employees have earned in
return for their service in the current and prior
periods. The obligation is calculated using the
projected unit credit method by a qualified actuary,
discounted to its present value, and the fair value
of any related plan assets is deducted. The discount
rate is the yield at balance sheet date on Exchange
Fund Notes that have maturity dates approximating
the terms of the Group’s obligations.
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3

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 3

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.20

3.21

Financial guarantee contract liabilities 3.20
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are measured
initially at their fair values and are subsequently measured
at the higher of (i) the amount initially recognised less,
where appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised

in the income statement over the period of the relevant
liabilities and (ii) the amount of which the Group is obliged
to reimburse the recipient under the financial guarantee
contracts.

Revenue and income recognition 3.21
Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration

received or receivable for the sales of goods and services

in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is

shown net of value-added tax, sales returns and discounts,

after eliminated sales within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue
can be reliably measured and it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the Group. The amount of
revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved. The
Group bases its estimates on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customer, the type of transaction
and the specifics of each arrangement. Revenue and income
are recognised as follows:

(a) Sales of goods — wholesale
Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity
has delivered products to the wholesaler, the
wholesaler has full discretion over the channel and
price to sell the products, and there is no unfulfilled
obligation that could affect the wholesaler’s
acceptance of the products. Delivery does not
occur until the products have been delivered to the
specified location, the risks of obsolescence and
loss have been transferred to the wholesaler, and
either the wholesaler has accepted the products
in accordance with sales contract, the acceptance
provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.21 Revenue and income recognition (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(@)

(e)

(€9)

(h)

Sales of goods — retail

Sales of goods are recognised when a group entity
sells a product to the customer. Retail sales are
usually in cash or by credit card. It is the Group’s
policy to sell its jewellery products to the end
customers with a right of return within one year
at a certain discount on the original selling price.
Accumulated experience is used to estimate and
provide for such returns at the time of sale.

Royalty income in respect of the use of the Group’s
trademarks is recognised on an accrual basis in
accordance with the substance of the relevant
agreements.

Consultancy fee income and service income in
respect of technical support and consultancy
services are recognised in the period the services are
provided.

Rebate from import agents is recognised when
there is reasonable assurance that the rebate will
be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with.

Value-added tax refunds are recognised at their

fair values in the income statement when there is
reasonable assurance that the refund will be received
and all the attaching conditions will be complied
with.

Interest income from bank deposits is recognised on
a time proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease period.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3.22

3.23

Operating leases (as a leasee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged
to the income statement on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease. When a component of the lease payment
which is not fixed but is based on future amount of a factor,
other than with the passage of time, such as percentage of
sales or concessionaire fees, the amount is recognised as
expenses as it arises.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(a)

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks, including foreign exchange risk, cash flow and
fair value interest rate risks, credit risk, liquidity risk and
commodity price risk.

The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks

to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The Group uses derivative financial
instruments to manage certain risk exposures. The use

of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures is
governed by the Board of Directors of the Company.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

()

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong with
most of the transactions settled in HK$. The Group
also has retail and wholesale operations in the
PRC, Macau, Singapore, the United States and
Canada. Foreign exchange risk arises when future
commercial transactions or recognised assets or
liabilities are denominated in a currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency. The Group

is exposed to foreign exchange risk from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to
Renminbi (“RMB”) and the United States Dollars
(“US$”).

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
performing regular reviews of the Group’s net
foreign exchange exposures. The Group has not
entered into any forward foreign exchange contracts
to hedge its foreign exchange exposure as the
directors are of the view that the potential foreign
exchange exposures are not significant.

The Group’s assets and liabilities, and transactions
arising from its operations primarily do not expose
the Group to material foreign exchange risk.

The Group’s assets and liabilities are primarily
denominated in the respective group companies’
functional currency.

At 31st March 2011 and 2010, if RMB had
strengthened/weakened by 5% against HKS$, with
all other variables held constant, profit for the year
would have been approximately HK$14,193,000
and HK$242,000 higher/lower respectively.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are
substantially independent of changes in market
interest rates and the Group has no significant
interest-bearing assets and liabilities except for the
cash at bank and borrowings, details of which have
been disclosed in Notes 32 and 27. The Group’s
exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its borrowings. The Group has no
borrowings as at 31st March 2011.

Credit risk

The Group has no significant concentrations of
credit risk. The carrying amounts of trade and other
receivables, deposits, amount due from an associate
and cash and cash equivalents included in the
consolidated balance sheet represent the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that
sales of products on credit terms are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history and
the Group performs periodic credit evaluations of
its customers. The Group’s concessionaire sales
through department stores are generally collectible
within 30 days from the invoice date while credit
sales are generally on credit terms within 90 days.
Normally the Group does not require collaterals
from trade debtors. The existing debtors have

no significant defaults in the past. The Group’s
historical experience in collection of trade and other
receivables falls within the recorded allowances
and the directors are of the opinion that adequate
provision for uncollectible receivables, if any, has
been made.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)

(iii)

Credit risk (Continued)

The deposits, other receivables and amount due
from an associate are from counterparties with good
credit history. There is no history of defaults from
these counterparties.

As at 31st March 2011 and 2010, substantially all
the bank balances as detailed in Note 32 are held in
major financial institutions located in Hong Kong
and the PRC, which management believes are of
high credit quality. The Group has a policy to limit
the amount of credit exposure to any financial
institution and management does not expect any
losses arising from non-performance by these
counterparties.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(iv)

Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities.

The Group’s primary cash requirements have been
for additions of and upgrades on property, plant and
equipment, payment on related debts and payment
for purchases and operating expenses. The Group
finances its working capital requirements through

a combination of internal resources and bank
borrowings, as necessary.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure it
maintains sufficient cash and cash equivalents and
has available funding through adequate amount
of committed credit facilities to meet its working
capital requirements.

The table below analyses the Group’s and the
Company’s financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period
at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows based on the
earliest date on which the Group and the Company
can be required to pay.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv)  Liquidity risk (Continued)
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(a)

Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows
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More than1  More than 2 Total
Within  year but less years but less undiscounted
On demand lyear than2years thanS5 years cash outflows
4 AMBEE  RMBE
IR —iEl EAREE MAREE RIS
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T# T# T#L T#L T#
Group £
At 31st March 2011 2011431310
Trade payables, other B 5 REAT iR
payables and accruals HABERHRR K
JERTFIE - 686,400 - - 686,400
At 31st March 2010 J#20104£3H31H
Trade payables, other B ERIES
payables and accruals AR
JEsH R - 530,434 - - 530,434
Borrowings ey 175,205 146,630 - - 321,835
175,205 677,064 - - 852,269
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(a) Financial risk factors (Continued)
(iv)  Liquidity risk (Continued)

4 MBS s
(a) B BE &R ()

@iv)

Maturity Analysis — Undiscounted cash outflows

i 8l 4 L (45

U ROMAT - AREBLBLA R M B

More than1  More than 2 Total
Within  year but less years but less undiscounted
On demand lyear than2years thanS5 years cash outflows
A4 ABEE  RMBEE
IR —iEl EAREE HAREE RIS
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
T#L T#L T T T#L
Company A
At 31st March 2011 2011431310
Other payables A RERT IR - 933 - - 933
At 31st March 2010 2010431310
Other payables HAbREfTIEIA = 585 = = 585
Borrowings RS - 95,698 - - 95,698
- 96,283 - - 96,283
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

()

Commodity price risk

The Group is engaged in the sale of gold and
platinum ornaments. The gold and platinum markets
are influenced by global as well as regional supply
and demand conditions. A significant decline in
prices of gold and platinum could adversely affect
the Group’s financial performance. The Group uses
certain derivative financial instrument-trading of
gold contracts to reduce its exposure to fluctuations
in the price of gold. The derivative contracts are
settled every day end and the difference between
the contract price and market price is immediately
recognised in the income statement. As at 31st
March 2011, the notional value of the outstanding
contracts amounted to HK$166,824,000 (2010:
HK$129,276,000).

At 31st March 2011, if the price of gold and
platinum had increased or decreased by 5%, profit
for the year ended 31st March 2011 would have
been approximately HK$7,665,000 higher or
HK$12,322,000 lower, respectively.

At 31st March 2010, if the price of gold and
platinum had increased or decreased by 5%, profit
for the year ended 31st March 2010 would have
been approximately HK$5,273,000 higher or
HK$11,699,000 lower, respectively.

Fair value estimation
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets,

including cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, other

receivables, deposits and amount due from an associate,

the Group’s financial liabilities, including trade and other

payables, accruals and borrowings, approximate their fair

values due to their short maturities.
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4

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
(b)  Fair value estimation (Continued)
The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets (such as derivative financial instruments-trading of
gold) is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet
date. The quoted market price used for financial assets held
by the Group is the current bid price.

The nominal values less any estimated credit adjustments
for financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less than
one year are assumed to approximate their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is
estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows at
the current market interest rate that is available to the Group
for similar financial instruments.

(c) Capital risk management
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits
for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and make
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions. In order to maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payments
to shareholders, issue of new shares or obtain new bank
borrowings.

The Group also monitors capital on the basis of gearing
ratio and the compliance of covenants of its borrowings.
The gearing ratio is calculated as net (cash)/debt divided

by total capital. Net (cash)/debt is calculated as total
borrowings (including current and non-current borrowings as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet, plus net (cash)/debt.
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4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

()

Capital risk management (Continued)
The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at

4 BB P ()
¥ AN B B 4 P (480)

(c)
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ALEER20114E3 31 H Z & AR

31st March 2011: ZARESHTANE -

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T

(Restated)

(E451)

Total borrowings RS - 313,700
Less: Cash and cash equivalents WK A MR A ZEEY (965,892) (286,946)

Net (cash)/debt (4 /A (965,892) 26,754

Total equity HE 25 A 3,458,388 1,683,487

Total capital G HA 2,492,496 1,710,241

Gearing ratio AEERE L% N/A 1.6%

The Group’s strategy is to maintain a solid capital base to

support the operations and development of its business in

the long term.
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5 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial statements

are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience

and other factors, including expectations of future events that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The resulting

accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related

actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant

risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets and liabilities within the next financial year are set out below.

(a)

(b)

Useful lives, residual values and depreciation/
amortisation charges of property, plant and
equipment , land use rights and investment
properties

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation/amortisation
charges for the Group’s property, plant and equipment, land
use rights and investment properties with reference to the
estimated periods that the Group intends to derive future
economic benefits from the use of these assets. Management
will revise the depreciation and amortisation charges where
useful lives are different to previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic
lives may differ from estimated useful lives and actual
residual values may differ from estimated residual values.
Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable lives
and residual values and therefore depreciation/amortisation
expense in future periods.

Inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs
of completion and selling expenses. These estimates are
based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in
customer taste and competitor actions in response to severe
industry cycle. Management reassesses these estimates at
each balance sheet date.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

()

Impairment of investments in subsidiaries,
associate and non-financial assets

Non-financial assets including property, plant and
equipment, land use rights, investment properties,
investments in subsidiaries and investment in an associate
are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. The recoverable amounts have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or fair value less costs to
sell. These calculations require the use of judgements and
estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event
has occurred that may indicate that the related asset values
may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value

of asset can be supported by the recoverable amount,
being the higher of fair value less costs to sell and net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset in the business;
and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
preparing cash flow projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate
rate. Changing the assumptions selected by management
in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections,
could materially affect the net present value used in the
impairment test and as a result affect the Group’s financial
condition and results of operations. If there is a significant
adverse change in the projected performance and resulting
future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take an
impairment charge to the income statement.

5
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5

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

AND JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(d) Current and deferred income taxes
The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, the
PRC and other jurisdictions. Judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes in each of these
jurisdictions. There are transactions and calculations during
the ordinary course of business for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such as differences will impact the
income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the period
in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. When the expectation is different
from the original estimate, such differences will impact

the recognition of deferred income tax assets and taxation
charges in the period in which such estimate is changed.

(e)  Provision for long service payment
The Group’s provision for long service payment is
determined with reference to statutory requirements, the
employees’ remuneration, their year of services and age
profile, and demographic assumptions including: pre-
retirement termination, involuntary termination, early
retirement, normal retirement, death and disability. The basis
of estimation is reviewed on an on-going basis and revised
where appropriate. Any changes in these assumptions will
impact the carrying amount of provision for long service
payments and as a result affect the results and financial
position of the Group. The Group is principally engaged in
the retailing and wholesaling of gold and jewellery products
and licensing business.

5
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM”) has been identified
as the board of directors. CODM reviews the Group’s internal
reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on these
Teports.

CODM considers the business by nature of business activities and
assesses the performance of the following operating segments:

i Retailing — Hong Kong, Macau and overseas

ii. Retailing — The People’s Republic of China (“PRC”)
iii. Wholesaling

iv. Licensing

CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments based
on segment results. Finance income and costs, corporate income
and expenses are not included in the results for each operating
segment that is reviewed by the CODM. Other information provided
to the CODM is measured in a manner consistent with that in the
consolidated financial statements.

Assets of reportable segments exclude interests in an associate,
certain leasehold land and buildings, investment properties, deferred
income tax assets and corporate assets, all of which are managed on
a central basis. These are part of reconciliation to total assets of the
consolidated balance sheet.

Sales to external customers are after elimination of inter-segment
sales. Sales between segments are carried out at mutually agreed
terms. The revenue from external parties reported to the CODM
is measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated
income statement.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
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Year ended 31st March 2011

IRE20114E3 1 31 H L4
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Reportable
Macauand  Retailing - segments
overseas The PRC  Wholesaling Licensing Total
BE-F - LEX 75
WP R BE-PE 5k MR At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TrL T Tl Tl TiL
Revenue WA
Sales of merchandises S5 6,200,336 454,942 2,730,280 - 9,385,558
Inter-segment sales a0k R (214,393) (778) (1,991,562) - (2,206,733)
5,985,943 454,164 738,718 - 7,178,825
Sales of scrap gold and platinum S S N BRI
and gold bullion Aak - - 636,738 - 636,738
Sales to external customers K e 5,985,943 454,164 1,375,456 - 7,815,563
Royalty income A - - - 253,292 253,292
Consultancy fee income E R 9N - - - 22,266 22,266
Revenue from external customers REHIEF Z A 5,985,943 454,164 1,375,456 275,558 8,091,121
Results of reportable segments TR R A 693,109 68,173 209,025 172,540 1,142,847
A reconciliation of results of [ GiEs
teportable segments to AE BRI
profit for the year is as follows:
Results of reportable segments TR 1,142,847
Unallocated income KA EIA 4,573
Unallocated expenses RO (123415)
Operating profit byl 1,024,005
Finance income IR 9,392
Finance costs MR (4,661)
Share of results of an associate Al L YNEIES 487
Profit before income tax B Wi L i e A 1,029,223
Income tax expense iy b (152,007)
Profit for the year A RRRA 877,216
Non-controlling interests P (11,000)
Profit attributable to equity holders A2 sl B +54 %
of the Company JEAY A 866,216
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Year ended 31st March 2011

RE14E3 310 L)
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Inter-  Reportable
Macauand  Retailing - segment  segments
overseas ~ ThePRC Wholesaling  Licensing ~elimination Total ~ Unallocated Total
FE-Hit LEX V5
WRHSS R -hE W8 RMHCRE P it A it
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$000
T Ti#n T Ti#n Ti#n Ti#x Ti#n T
Depreciation of property, W% MER
plant and equipment Rl 23,781 6,64 9,551 458 - 40434 9,073 49,507
Amortisation of land use rights T RS - - 15 300 - 455 13 468
Depreciation of investment REETE
properties - - - - - - 1)) 922
As at 31st March 2011
JAA14E331H
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Inter-  Reportable
Macauand  Retailing - segment  segments
overseas ~ ThePRC Wholesaling  Licensing ~elimination Total ~ Unallocated Total
3E-Hit LEX U5
WA FE-hE 8 RHCEE PR it RO it
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$000
T T T T Ti#n T Ti#n T
Segment assets B 2,068,987 414841 1,702,170 135470 (892896) 3,428,572 - 3485M
Interests in an associate S -UNIVA 3 5219 5219
Land and buildings THERERE 194,307 194,307
Tnvestment properties T 80,638 80,638
Deferred income tax assets EEHEHERE 19,016 19,016
Other unallocated assets HibREERE 553,947 553,947
Total assets per consolidated &A% £ fEF iR
balance sheet W 4,281,699
Segment liabilities AL B13317) (3395600 (192799 (165794) 892896  (618,574) - (618574
Deferred income tax liabilities — #EAEF TR &1 (& (18,503) (18,503)
Current income tax liabilities EHTER AR (90,442 (90,442)
Other unallocated liabilities Hik e E (95,792) (95,792)
Total liabilities per EABREAERIR
consolidated balance sheet WAk (823,311)
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6  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 6 R @
Year ended 31st March 2010
WAE2010E3H31 H IR
Retailing —
Hong Kong, Reportable
Macau and Retailing - segments
overseas The PRC ~ Wholesaling Licensing Total
FE-Hik - QS
WM R B il T A5t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T T Tt
Revenue WA
Sales of merchandises HER 5 4,041,455 289,169 1,958,174 - 6,288,798
Inter-segment sales s iakick (239,320) - (1,506,661) = (1,746,481)
3,801,635 289,169 451,513 - 4,542,317
Sales of scrap gold and platinum SRS N BRI
and gold bullion Mg - - 670,585 - 670,585
Sales to external customers K FHE 3,801,635 289,169 1,122,098 = 5,212,902
Royalty income A - - - 154,369 154,369
Consultancy fee income FHE A - = = 19,161 19,161
Revenue from external customers REEINEF A 3,801,635 289,169 1,122,098 173,530 5,386,432
Results of reportable segments, W R
as restated HH5 387,914 39,103 142,757 107,898 677,672
A reconciliation of results of IS s Skan]
reportable segments to T AR -
profit for the year is as follows:
Results of reportable segments, RS > KA
as restated 677,672
Unallocated income RAOHLA 10,595
Unallocated expenses RAMBCRA (53,302)
Operating profit g2yl 634,965
Finance income BB 342
Finance costs MHE (3,548)
Share of results of an associate [ YN E 2,343
Profit before income tax, BRPi AR N A » S
as restated 634,102
Income tax expense P BB 3 (97,540)
Profit for the year AR WA 536,562
Non-controlling interests FEPEmehE RS (5,078)
Profit attributable to equity holders #v2 wil B +54 %
of the Company, as restated A BER) » 2T 5 531,484
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Year ended 31st March 2010
BENIFE3H LR
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Inter-  Reportable
Macauand  Retailing— segment  segments
overseas  ThePRC  Wholesaling ~ Licensing elimination Total  Unallocated Total
ZE-FiE 2R
AL RE - 1= S g e st R st
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$°000  HK$'000
T T Ti T T Tt T Tl
Depreciation of property, plant W W Bkt
and equipment, as restated K5 19,154 8,268 9,874 65 - 37,361 6,087 43448
Amortisation of land use rights, Tl RS
as restated FE 4] = - 151 293 - 444 14 458
As at 31st March 2010
TR201043 1311
Retailing -
Hong Kong, Inter-  Reportable
Macauand  Retailing - segment  segments
overseas  ThePRC  Wholesaling ~ Licensing ~ elimination Total  Unallocated Total
TE-Ri QES 65
WMy FE-TR HE RN RS At A At
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000
T T T T T T T T
(Restated) ~ (Restated)
(TE5) (E51)
Segment assets, s restated I - S 1,396,274 300,734 741453 22,664 (248453) 2,212,672 - 2212672
Tnterests in an associate il - YNTb 2 4507 4507
Land and buildings THRER 261,714 261,714
Deferred income tax assets AL e 14018 14018
Other unallocated assets Hipk AR 103,744 103,744
Total assets per consolidated BRRREANENR
balance sheet W 2,596,655
Segment liabilities Aa (2270600 (259,662)  (140061)  (104,694) 248453 (483,024) - (483,024
Deferred income tax liabilities, ERTERAR
as restated G| (6,623) (6,623)
Borrowings fli (313,700)  (313,700)
Current income tax liabilities EREHARE (50,145) (50,145)
Other unallocated liabilities HikniARE (59676)  (59.676)
Total liabilities per ERRRA BRI
consolidated balance sheet WA (913,168)




110

Luk Fook Holdings (International) Limited

FS RS () A A )

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S B e B ik

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The Group’s revenue are mainly derived from customers located in

Hong Kong and the PRC. An analysis of the Group’s revenue by

o3 W BOR ()
S 2 A T A 0 7 s
ZEF o P A5 2 A Y

location of customers is as follows: AHANR
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000
T THsoT

Revenue LN

Hong Kong itk 5,886,770 4,003,289
The PRC e 1,401,780 855,496
Other locations At b [ 802,571 527,647
8,091,121 5,386,432

An analysis of the Group’s non-current assets (other than deferred
income tax assets) by location of assets is as follows:

e T AE M 03 2 A B B R )
(R LR AE BT 5B &% ) 70 AT T

2011 2010

Other Other
HongKong ~ ThePRC locations Total | HongKong ~ ThePRC locations Total
il L1 ] i ik mE o AR bt
HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000 | HKS$000  HKS'000  HK$000  HK$000
Fibi T Fibi T T T T T
(Restated) ~ (Restated) (Restated)
(&) (E51) (E71)
Property, plant and equipment 413 » JIF Rk 270,646 88,604 10692 369942 87,178 86,641 5816 379,635
Land use rights Tl - 15,188 - 15,188 - 15463 = 15463
Investment properties Tl 80,638 - - 80,638 - = S =
Tnterests in an associate il - YNGIVA 2 5019 - - 5219 4507 - - 4507
Trading licence ORI 1,080 - - 1,080 1,080 = = 1,080
Rental deposits fate 33,300 470 57170 39,540 29,035 408 1,968 31411
390,883 104,262 16,462 511,607 321,800 102,512 7,784 432,096
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7  OTHER INCOME 7 HfBBA
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T
Rebate from import agents A EAR B[] 41 - 1,850
Value-added tax refund HA(ERIR 2K 44,153 28,690
Rental income & A 3,105 10,227
Others HAth 8,719 3,083
55,977 43,850
8 OTHER LOSSES, NET 8 HoAb s 38 3501
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T
Loss on derivative financial instruments A5 2 AT A
— trading of gold — T HEH (37,548) (22,491)
Write back of provision for slow-moving [ S A7 A A
inventories 94 552
(37,454) (21,939)
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EXPENSES BY NATURE 9  IRMWESBZBX
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000
TH#T THIT
(Restated)
(H%1)
Cost of sales BB A
— cost of inventories sold - BEAERA 6,073,376 4,028,592
— cost of licensing business (note) — AR A (PG 100,501 64,303
6,173,877 4,092,895
Staff costs B TR
(including the directors’ emoluments) (ELfE S 4) 381,748 263,670
Operating lease rentals in respect of b A R A 2 A A
land and buildings 252,817 197,291
Advertising and promotion expenses o 4 R BB S 37,870 33,045
Commission expenses to credit card companies 3215 R 23 7 2 A 4 B 52 67,874 42,640
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 43 - W5 M sk i es 49,507 43,448
Depreciation of investment properties BEYEr 922 -
Amortisation of land use rights - o5 R 468 458
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEYZE - WS Mkl 2
equipment 1,968 1,106
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B AT 45 3,593 3,320
Others HiAth 114,995 95,505
Total HEH 7,085,639 4,773,378
Representing: 15 :
Cost of sales S8 pl AR 6,173,877 4,092,895
Selling and distribution costs BYE K egE 812,593 611,069
Administrative expenses T 99,169 69,414
7,085,639 4773378
Note:  Cost of licensing business includes staff costs (including the FfFeE R SER AR S B TN A (R G #

directors’ emoluments) of HK$60,180,000 (2010: HK$38,042,000).

H M 4 ) 60,180,000 ¥ JC (2010 4F :
38,042,000%70) °
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FINANCE INCOME/(COSTS), NET 10 WEBA () > B
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000
T THIT
Interest income FE A 854 342
Net exchange gain BEE 52,50 2 V4 8,538 -
9,392 342
Interest expenses on bank borrowings SRATE B2 PR B (4,661) (3,171)
Net exchange loss BEE 50 e 18 T A - (377)
(4,661) (3,548)
4,731 (3,2006)
INCOME TAX EXPENSE 11 Pifd B

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5%
(2010: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit for the year.
Taxation on overseas profits has been calculated on the estimated
assessable profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

15 A5 A A A w1 R v A
FZ B 16.5% (20104F : 16.5% ) 12 8 #E
5 o W AN A 2 Bl TE TS 50 A AR BE A 5T RE
A T ) A 4 1B SE TS P A [ R IR L
REHE -

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T
Current taxation: HHRLIE
— Hong Kong profits tax — HI SR 91,556 55,240
— PRC corporate income tax — W ZE TSR 47,102 31,452
— overseas taxation — AN IE 14,174 7,982
— over-provision in prior years — TR E A A (4,523) (948)
Deferred tax (Note 30) W SER A (BfF530) 3,698 3,814
Income tax expense P 5 B <2 152,007 97,540
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11

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11

Pursuant to the relevant PRC corporate income tax rules and
regulations, certain subsidiaries of the Group are qualified as
foreign investment production enterprise and are entitled to two
years exemption from income taxes followed by a 50% reduction

in income taxes for the ensuing three years from its first profit-
making year. Pursuant to the new PRC corporate income tax rules
promulgated in 2007, these subsidiaries are subject to tax rate which
will gradually increase to 25% commencing 2012.

Dividend distribution out of profit earned by foreign-invested
enterprises in the PRC after 1st January 2008 is subject to PRC
corporate withholding income tax at tax rate of 5% to 10%.
During the year, withholding income tax was provided for the
dividend distributed and the portion of the retained profits which
will be distributed in the foreseeable future for the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries at a tax rate of 5% (2010: 5%).

The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the taxation rate in
Hong Kong as follows:

P 453 BE B 32 ()

ARAEAR Bl v [ 4 26 P 75 ot Ao 1) B AR 491
ARSI T W 2 R4 & A e B AR
P32 B o MEER S AR BT 15 B W 4F
FBOHAR =R R RO - e A
A HE M) 4 BE R A 2 o AR 2007 AF A A
T B AR SE PR AR BRG] > 5% S B
] B B A5 BB 22 AR 30 2 20124 1Y
25% -

HEHNPE BEE > FEAE20084E1 H 1 H 2 &
B B3RS ] R 0 UR s S B AR 5% % 10%
Z BRI A E TN SRL - 4R R - 4R
[ 425% (20104F : 5% ) Bl R FL A 3] v 5
R} 18 2 ] 2 B 40 TR B B B oK 43 UIR i R
T SETES TS BB

A A8 [ B B3 T i A1) 2 i VL B ) A 9
A M BUHE R AT

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#T THIT
(Restated)
(%)
Profit before income tax A B Y Al 1,029,223 634,102
Less: Share of results of an associate W A — K N W 2R (487) (2,343)
1,028,736 631,759
Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5% FERE#16.5% (20104F : 16.5%)
(2010: 16.5%) A2 BLIE 169,741 104,240
Effect of different taxation rates in other L Ath =] VA [ A AN ]
jurisdictions a2 (3,133) (772)
Effect of tax holidays of the PRC subsidiaries ] {8 2\ 7] i 1 2 5 28 (21,701) (13,769)
Income not subject to taxation PRZERRBLZ A 4,517) (482)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes A u] 418 2 37 H 10,882 6,385
Over-provision in prior years FEAF S R AR A (4,523) (948)
Unrecognised tax losses IRAERR LI 1R 860 845
Utilisation of previously unrecognised &) F DA AR sR B T s 4R
tax losses (3,805) (1,588)
Withholding tax on undistributed profit of 28] 88 2 v R i v )
PRC subsidiaries Z B 8,203 3,629
152,007 97,540




PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY 12
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$499,194,000 (2010: HK$199,589,000).

EARNINGS PER SHARE 13

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
Group’s profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
of HK$866,216,000 (2010 restated: HK$531,484,000) and the
weighted average number of 507,987,302 (2010: 492,507,850)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31st March 2011 and
2010 is the same as the basic earnings per share as there were no
potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding during the years.
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A2y vl RE AR R AT 5 AN A

TR ) H S 3 A B B 2 AR R R RS
TR 2 EAL E A1 £5499,194,000%5 7€ (2010
4E 1 199,589,000%57T) ©

IR AR

B I FEAR RN TIAREA S R RE 45 454 %
JRE A5 7 42 [ 35 1] 866,216,00035 T (20104F
EHI| : 531,484,0007 7C) KA L EAT Y
78 % 2 0 #E ST 24 #507,987,302 B (2010
£ 1 492,507,850/%) 714 o

H A4 JBE A0 31 0 8 3 AT BV A T
B 28 % > B F20114F 52201043 A 31
1k 45 B 2 7 R 28 ) B g R e A 2
FIAELFR

DIVIDENDS 14 KA
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$’000
T#T Ut
2010/11 interim, paid, of HK$0.26 ELIR2010/1 147 3 1A 5 457 25 2
(2009/10 interim: HK$0.15) 0,265 7T (2009/104F &
per ordinary share FRHARCE. ¢ 0.15%5T) 141,052 73,876
2010/11 final, proposed, of HK$0.42 FEUR2010/1 143 A 1 gt 2 A A i
(2009/10 final: HK$0.28) Ji£0.4235 7T (2009/104F &
per ordinary share (note) KPR : 0.28%70) (F3E) 227,853 137,902

Note:

At a meeting held on 28th June 2011, the directors recommended the
payment of a final dividend of HK$0.42 per ordinary share, totalling
HK$227,853,000. Such dividend is to be approved by the shareholders at
the Annual General Meeting of the Company on 29th August 2011. This
proposed dividend is not reflected as dividends payable in these financial
statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained earnings for
the year ending 31st March 2012.

Bt

R20114E6 H28 H BT sk b > EHE®
IR A 2K A i B4 3 4 iR 0.42 5 8 Ak
227,853,000%5 7C © 47 B I B ZE 15 1 A AR 28
A 20114F8 29 H 8447 2 I UM 4F K B4t
Y o I FRE VIR IS S5 ST 08 7 bt 5 A S S 3 v I Bl
JEATHEE. > M S i 25 #% 2201243 A 31 H 1k
AEJE Z AR BRI R o
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15

16

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

15 BARRREA

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#L THIT
Net contributions to pension plans charged R EF A H R HNR 2
to the consolidated income statement HRAR G T T AR 13,908 10,642

The expense is recognised in the following line items in the
consolidated income statement:

BB ST R A AR R 2 LU T E

2011 2010

HK$’000 HK$’000

T o

Selling and distribution costs S S a2 12,708 9,691
Administrative expenses (Fyi&-diil 1,200 951
13,908 10,642

At 31st March 2011, there were no unutilised forfeited contributions
(2010: Nil).

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(a) Directors’ emoluments

The aggregate amounts of emoluments payable to the

R20114E3 431 H > 3 MR 2 R i fit
FK(20104F : 4E) -

16 EHRAHSEMABME

(a)

o

A BB AR 2 T o 2 I AR

directors of the Company during the year were as follows: R
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$’000
AR T
Fees 4 1,290 1,070
Salaries, allowances and Bra o M LEYN i
benefit-in-kinds 54,452 37,351
Performance and discretionary bonuses 43¢ 5 i 1% 8% it 2 £ 4L 21,970 13,174
Contributions to pension plan BAIRE T3 312 293
Total director emoluments, JRE A<} 2 2 4 K% LA
payable and expensed in the B HR R B 2 A
financial statements 78,024 51,888
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DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

(a)

The remuneration of each director is set out below:

For the year ended 31st March 2011
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16 HEREHATMABMNE @)

(a) EHFWE®E)
KR ARG

RA20114E3 51 31 HALAEBE

Salaries, Performance Employer’s

allowances and contribution
and benefit- discretionary  to pension Total
Name of director WS Fees in-kinds bonuses plan  emoluments

He

WK EERBMN BTERASE
W R R S LY
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T# T#x T#x T
WONG Wai Sheung (note (i) A (FHEG)) 55 49,912 9,968 133 60,068
TSE Moon Chuen A2 55 1,088 2,492 46 3,681
LAW Tim Fuk, Paul PN ] 55 1,328 4,984 57 6,424
LAU Kwok Sum BB 55 798 2,034 46 2,933
WONG Ho Lung, Danny I 55 384 1,246 12 1,697
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy o 55 422 1,246 18 1,741
WONG Koon Cheung e 55 115 - - 170
CHAN Wai PR 55 115 - - 170
LEE Shu Kuan g 55 115 - - 170
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline (note (if)) #Z¥# (ki) 55 115 - - 170
HUI King Wai a8 110 60 - - 170
HUI Chiu Chung * Gl 210 - - - 210
LO Mun Lam, Raymond * iR 210 - - - 210
TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander * HE R 210 - - - 210
1,290 54,452 21,970 312 78,024
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16

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

16 HEKEHHATMABMNE @)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (a) B E)
For the year ended 31st March 2010
#E20104F3 H31 H L4
Salaries, Performance ~ Employer’s
allowances and  contribution
and benefit-  discretionary to pension Total
Name of director HHEA Fees in-kinds bonuses plan  emoluments
TR R REERKE
i XL UE TR 9 O (3 AN s ¢ 4 408
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T T Tk T T
WONG Wai Sheung wAE 55 33,162 6,099 126 39,442
TSE Moon Chuen RS 55 1,024 1,613 45 2,737
LAW Tim Fuk, Paul AR 55 1,223 3,049 55 4382
LAU Kwok Sum BB 55 884 889 40 1,368
WONG Ho Lung, Danny I 55 331 762 12 1,160
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy H 55 382 762 15 1,214
WONG Koon Cheung O 55 115 - - 170
CHAN Wai [ 55 115 - - 170
LEE Shu Kuan Z=fif 55 115 = = 170
YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline (note (ii)) #8¥ (Ffsk(i)) 55 = = = 55
HUI King Wai Gz 110 = = = 110
HUI Chiu Chung * FRER 130 - - = 130
LO Mun Lam, Raymond * TR 150 = = = 150
TAI Kwok Leung, Alexander * WER 130 - - - 130
1,070 37,351 13,174 293 51,888

#:  Independent non-executive directors.
Notes:

(1) A portion of Mr. WONG Wai Sheung’s remuneration

package is determined with reference to the royalty income

from PRC licensees and amounted to approximately
HK$46,155,000 for the year ended 31st March 2011
(2010: HK$29,994,000). Subsequent to the year end,

the Remuneration Committee, with the advice from
independent financial advisors, has re-negotiated the
remuneration package with Mr. Wong Wai Sheung and
agreed that this portion of remuneration package shall be
subject to an annual cap of HK$50,000,000 with effect
from year ending 31st March 2012.

fo B IEEATEE S o

i

®

AR SR AT A T A T R T
22 v ] i WG 22 R I
AGHE > B E 201143 H 31
H 1k 4F i 3% 49 46,155,000 #5
JG (2010 4F 29,994,000 ¥
JG) o NEAE A E - HE
By BUAS 8 7 A T ] R
1% BEARR oA FE
Pl 46 5 58 -+ Slfz [R] A A% T 43 P
& F HHE20124E3 A 31
H ik 4F B2 f8 78 A2 4F B bR
50,000,000%5 JCITBR °



16 DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(ii) Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline has entered into a
service contract with a subsidiary of the Company for her
exclusive services for the promotion of the products and
services of the Group (see also Note 35(a)).

No directors waived their emoluments in respect of the years ended
31st March 2010 and 2011.

Five highest paid individuals

Among the five highest paid individuals, four (2010: four)
of them are directors of the Company and the details of their
remuneration are disclosed in the preceding paragraph. The
emoluments of the remaining highest paid individual are as
follows:

16
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W R R AR B B4 ()

(a)

(b)

£ L EAHE )

WEEE - (A8)

(ii) 5 2 4 /AR L ol 2 6 2 5%
5T AR 42 18] DA B A 4R [ 1
JE b S W > BLAR A W —
Wi & 2N W1 BT 57 BR A A 49 (57
FURtEE35()) o

B E 20104F K% 201143 A 31 H 14
BE o 7 4 S 4

T rHMAL

SR a=E i DN o L 4
(20104F : PU4) Sy AN F)H S >
T =Ty W =83
ok = A 2 B

2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#T THIT
Salaries, allowances and Hrde > K

benefit-in-kinds BEYH 4 1,663 1,555

Performance and discretionary TR BTG B ALAL
bonuses 5,296 3,240
Contributions to pension plan BRE TR 59 57
7,018 4,852
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17

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17 Y3 -~ Wl Boi fiii
L |

Group
Furniture
Leasehold and fixtures
Landand  improve- and computer  Plant and Motor
buildings ments equipment  machinery vehicles Total
HEME G- %E
i L EE £ RESEE RE RS RH Fk
HK$000  HKS$’000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HKS$ 000
T T THTT T T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(%) (E%1)
At 1st April 2009 200944 H1H
Cost, as previously reported B A A A R 69,369 99,352 48,743 23,026 7,274 247,764
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 s ANtk &=t
(Amendment) TSR (BT A 2
2 1,881 - - - - 1,881
Effect of change in accounting & 5FHEREH) 2
policy B 2976 - - - - 2,976
Cost, as restated A > KT 74,226 99,352 48,743 23,026 7,274 252,621
Accumulated depreciation, as B > s
previously reported i 24 4380)  (75310) (36883)  (18039)  (5.531)  (140,143)
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 A&t &t el
(Amendment) SE1THE (BRI AR) 2
W (217) - - - - (217)
Effect of change in accounting @ FHHUREE) 2
policy 4 (2,032) - - - - (2,032)
Accumulated depreciation, 25T - RE7
as restated (6,629) (75,310) (36,883) (18,039) (5,531)  (142,392)
Net book value, as restated WRTR M » K5 67,597 24,042 11,860 4,987 1,743 110,229
Year ended 31st March 2010  #%20104£3H31H
EAEE
Opening net book value, AEAMHRTAFE
as previously reported TN A T 2t 64,989 24,042 11,860 4,987 1,743 107,621
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 FRA A @]
(Amendment) (Note 2(d)) 1T (BRTAR) 2
R (it 1,664 - - - - 1,664
Effect of change in accounting & FHEUREE) 2
policy (Note 2(d)) R (fE2a) 944 - - - - 944
Opening net book value, AERIRRTATIR (A -
as restated E T 67,597 24,042 11,860 4,987 1,743 110,229
Exchange differences e 5. 25 3 528 (24) 38 21 10 573
Additions INE 265,613 31,844 11,669 2,888 2,593 314,607
Disposals firk:s (755) (1,125) (442) 4) - (2,326)
Depreciation charge T (5,452) (26,789) (6,723) (3,394) (1,090) (43,448)
Closing net book value AEARHR T A 327,531 27,948 16,402 4,498 3,256 379,635
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17 P -~ BB Bl (0

(Continued)
Group (Continued) £ ()
Furniture
Leasehold  and fixtures
Landand  improve- and computer  Plant and Motor
buildings ments  equipment machinery vehicles Total
MW B kR
THRRE R RTMSE R RS T i
HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HK$000 HK$000  HKS$’000
T T T T T T
(Restated) (Restated)
(%)) (131)
At 1st April 2010 i 2010447 TH
Cost, as previously reported A > ST R4 122,201 120,876 58,561 25947 8880 336,465
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 R aHERE 175
(Amendment) (AT &) 2 & 220,023 - - - - 20023
Effect of change in accounting policy S HEEH e (2431) - - - - 2431)
Cost, as restated A > 5 339,793 120,876 58,561 25947 8,880 554,057
Accumulated depreciation, 2R > Wi
as previously reported i 24 (6,621) (92,928) (42,159) (21,449) (5,624) (168,781
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 KA e HER 175
(Amendment) (BATA) 2 % (3,445) - - - - (3,445)
Effect of change in accounting policy ERtioRE R R (2,196) - - - - (2,196)
Accumulated depreciation, 2t KE7
as restated (12,262) (92,928) (42,159) (21,449) (5,62) (174422
Net book value, as restated HRTER(E > B E5 327,531 27,948 16,402 4,498 3,256 379,635
Year ended 31st March 2011 RE21AEH3H LA
Opening net book value, IR -
as previously reported BRI 115,580 27,948 16,402 4,498 3,256 167,684
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 RApA G HER 175
(Amendment) (Note 2(d)) (IBATA) 2 B3 (fsk(d)) 216,578 - - - - 216578
Effect of change in accounting SRR EE 2
policy (Note 2(d)) HR () (4,627) - - - - (4,627)
Opening net book value, as restated HERR > BE5 327,531 27,948 16,402 4,498 3,256 379,635
Exchange differences e 5.2 3496 150 231 100 66 4,043
Additions INE - 80,253 13,876 3,659 30 100,799
Transfer to investment properties (Note 19) B8 % #4413 (Hf2E19) (62,262) - - - - (62260
Disposals e - (1,444) (1,056) (6) (260) (2,766)
Depreciation charge s (7,436) (30,428) (7,949 (2,213) (1,481) (49,507)
Closing net book value SRR 261,329 76479 21,504 6,038 4,592 369,942
At 31st March 2011 JR20114E3/ 311
Cost Bk 278,642 178,575 69,600 30,038 10,202 567,057
Accumulated depreciation R (17,313)  (102,096) (48,096) (24,000 (5,610) (197,115
Net book value IR 261,329 76479 21,504 6,038 4,592 369,942
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 W% ~ BB Bt o
(Continued)
Group (Continued) £ (45)
Net book values of the land and buildings are analysed as follows: 3 12 5 R 2 HRTE R E /- T N
Group
%M
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000
THT THETT
(Restated)
(%))
Outside Hong Kong, held on: TEAUE LS 8 4% 31 77 SR
— Leases of over 50 years —504ERA EAHAY 368 376
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years — 1025040 %) 64,595 63,335
64,963 63,711
Hong Kong, held on: TERWEAL T 5107 P f -
— Leases of over 50 years —504E L)L A 1,351 1,380
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years —10Z504F LAY 195,015 262,440
196,366 263,820
261,329 327,531
At 31st March 2010, land and buildings of the Group with carrying FA20104E3 A 31 H » < 4E 5 IR T (8 &
value of HK$261,714,000 was pledged as security for certain bank 261,714,000 76 2 + 1 &% 55 = B R AF

borrowings of the Group (Note 27(c)). ARG E T HAT R Z IR (MEE27(c) -
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LAND USE RIGHTS 18 LM fiIHE
Group M
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000
THT THT
(Restated)
(HE%1))
At 1st April #4H1H
Cost, as previously reported BAS > ANAR AL BT 2R 237,342 19,034
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 RN F e F RS 1758

(Amendment) (CHESPS 2 (220,023) (1,881)
Cost, as restated AR > 48 F 17,319 17,153
Accumulated amortisation, as previously ZEHEES > R T 2Rk

reported 5,301 1,716
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 PRAN s Gt HE R 25 1758

(Amendment) BRI A) 2 s 2 (3,445) (217)
Accumulated amortisation, as restated Z 5Ty - &S 1,856 1,499
Net book amount, as restated HETHIVR(E > &5E5 15,463 15,654
Year ended 31st March ERYERINENI: )

Opening net book value, as previously reported 4F47) 8 [fi i (H - N7 Ar 23 232,041 17,318
Effect of adoption of HKAS 17 (Amendment) $R4% 7 s €5 M HI 55 1798 (IBFTA)

(Note 2(d)) 22 ([EE2(d)) (216,578) (1,664)
Opening net book amount, as restated SRR TR > KEH T 15,463 15,654
Amortisation charge HEer 2 M (468) (458)
Exchange differences i 58,22 %8 193 267
Closing net book amount SE R R T 5 (EL 15,188 15,463
At 31st March #3H31H
Cost JAR 17,957 17,319
Accumulated amortisation LR (2,769) (1,856)

15,188 15,463
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19

LAND USE RIGHTS (Continued) 18 kA R o)
Group (Continued) £ (45)
The net book amount of land use rights is analysed as follows: b fe FRRE 2 AR TET B AT AN T
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#x THTT
Outside Hong Kong, held on: TEAUE LS [ % 51 07 KA
— Leases of over 50 years —504EDL EAHAY 738 751
— Leases of between 10 to 50 years —10Z504FFHL4Y 14,450 14,712
15,188 15,463
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19 #HEYE
Group £
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000
THT THTT
At 1st April R4H1H - =
Transfer from property, plant and equipment [ 4#)3 ~ s MK s fiidis
(note (i) (B EG)) 62,262 -
Revaluation surplus (note (i)) A B (B aEG)) 19,298 =
Depreciation 1K (922) -
At 31st March A3 H31H 80,638 =
At valuation (note (i) A (BfsEGi)) 102,930 -

BB YT B W4 A T 10 2 504 A
KA 2 i

The investment properties are located in Hong Kong on land held on
lease of between 10 and 50 years.



20

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued) 19

Group (Continued)
Notes:

(1) Certain land and buildings of the Group were revalued on 30th
September 2010, the date of transfer of those leasehold land and
buildings to investment properties, by Asset Appraisal Limited,
an independent valuer, at an aggregate open market value of
HK$81,560,000. A revaluation surplus of HK$19,298,000, net
of related deferred income tax liabilities of HK$3,184,000, was
credited to the revaluation reserve during the year ended 31st March
2011.

(ii) The valuation of the investment properties as at 31st March 2011
were determined by an independent valuer, Asset Appraisal Limited,
at open market value.
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BEWIE w0

£ 19 (40
fftsE

®

(i)

AR [ A 5 R R A g A A
Btk EREREWEZAY
BI20104E9 H30 H > H %8 37 f (& il
FE B AE B R A PR v 4% 48 BH T (E 7
% AL £ 81,560,000 7T o AL £ R
19,298,000 5 7T $11 5 AH BH 4 %E iy 15 Bt
£153,184,000% 015 £ A #2201 14F
3H31 H LRI A E b o

201143 H31 H Z &Y 24
88 7 A (L i 7 BT P A B 1 4

NBHTIEREE

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20 JAWBRA 2 HER
Company S

2011 2010
HK$°000 HKS$’000
Tt T
Unlisted investments, at cost FEETHE N AE 298,887 298,887
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE VA g 2 ] AR TE 946,040 -
1,244,927 298,887

Amounts due from subsidiaries are denominated in HK$ and are
unsecured, interest-free and not repayable within next 12 months
from the year end date.

As at 31st March 2011, the fair value of amounts due from
subsidiaries is HK$901,849,000 (2010: Nil) and is calculated based
on a discount rate of 0.94% (2010: Nil).

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in Note 36 to the
financial statements.

R Wi Y S 2 R MR IE DA ST wtE - HL 2
A~ R R IR AR A R R R A 12
5 A ]

FA20114E3 A 31 H > JE s b & 2 ) MR I
2 N F-1E 55 901,849,000 15 G (2010 4F -
) > TR ®R0.94% (20104F : 4E) 5}

(=

F I 2 ) 2 AR O B R

36 °
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INTERESTS IN AN ASSOCIATE 21 RA—KBB AV Z MR
Group M

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T
Share of net assets, as at 1st April JEAG R iFE > A LH 4,507 1,955
Share of results of an associate JRE A — G o W SR 487 2,343
Currency translation difference e b8, 25 48 225 209
Share of net assets, as at 31st March JEAG G HE - A3H31H 5,219 4,507
Amount due from an associate JE s — Z W ) R IA 5,052 7,962

Amount due from an associate is denominated in HK$ and is

JRE Wi — R Mk o W Z MR T LA JT R

unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. The associate
did not have defaults in the past. During the year ended 31st March
2011, no amount due from the associate was impaired (2010: Nil).

(B > 3 2 MEHEHR > G B T JH E B R A
B o IR N R AR I M K RO B o B
F20114E3 31 H IR - Mz

23 F Z PRIENG SR AE (20104F ¢ JE) o

The Group’s associate did not have any significant capital
commitment as at 31st March 2011 (2010: Nil).

Particulars of the associate of the Group as at 31st March 2011 are as

201143 H31 H » AS4E [ 2 B8N =il
SBEATAA] B K AR (20104F © 4EE) o

A A TR 2011453 H 31 H Z 56 1%

follows: e
% of attributable

Place of Particulars of interests held
Name incorporation issued share capital indirectly Principal activities
% sl o i CEAT IR RN PR A RERR T A T R

2011 2010
Luk Fook Diamond ~ Hong Kong HK$6,120,000 50% 50%  Manufacturing and
Company Limited wholesale of diamond
products

NE#HEAARARE  FE 6,120,000% 7T Sy E B A Bt
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DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 22 KA~ TEAT I B B 3
RECEIVABLES WM
Group Company
£ A
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T THso T T T
Non-current FEENH
Rental deposits a4 39,540 31,411 - =
Current R #A
Rental deposits a4 11,832 18,209 - =
Other deposits HAth4% 4> 7,814 3,621 - -
Prepayments TEATHRIE 12,368 12,595 - 28
Other receivables HoAth E & BETE 8,703 11,438 - =
40,717 45,863 - 28
80,257 77,274 - 28

The carrying amounts of the Group’s rental deposits, other

deposits and other receivables approximate their fair values and are

AL 2 R A e 4~ oA i % FUAt fE
e SR T < B T (L B 0 (LA > A

denominated in the following currencies: I £ by B
Group
#M

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$’000
TH#0 TH#E TG
HK$ Wt 53,606 52,398
RMB NG 9,575 10,526
Us$ ET 518 540
Other currencies HoAth £ s 4,190 1,215
67,889 64,679

The credit quality of deposits and other receivables has been assessed
by reference to historical information about the counterparty default
rates. The existing counterparties do not have defaults in the past.
During the year ended 31st March 2011, no deposits and other
receivables were impaired (2010: Nil).

i 4 I HAh B R TH 2 {5 BB R T
2254 B T 5 R LR 2 AR
HEATREAR o B 3 T 07 #1307 A i K wT
Bk o BAE20114E3 H31 H IRFREN - o 4
i 4 N HL Al R A HR T L R (B (20104 ¢

) -
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23

24

25

INVENTORIES - GROUP 23 R -4H
2011 2010
HK$’000 HKS$’000
T THTT
Finished goods 2 N 2,562,617 1,735,964
Raw materials JEH R 68,207 -
2,630,824 1,735,964

At 31st March 2011, inventories carried at net realisable value
amounted to approximately HK$2,367,000 (2010: HK$5,967,000).

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES -
COMPANY

The balances are denominated in HK$ and are unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

TRADE RECEIVABLES

The Group’s sales comprised mainly cash sales and credit card
sales. Concessionaire sales through department stores and sales to
wholesale customers are generally on credit terms ranging from 0 to
90 days.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:

2011453 H31 H > 4% 7] 5 B 5 (E 51 R
2 B4 52,367,000 s IC (2010 4F ¢

5,967,000457C) ©

24 HEWCRE 2 vl R — 2 )

%R A SO RHE o 3 A ST

G S R E R AR -

25 B HEBUIRXE

ALEMEE R OB EHE RERF
I o OB KR E

FHE 2 A5 B — 052 90K ©

B 5 REWOIRIA 2 BRI 2 AT A TS

Group
g3t

2011 2010
HK$000 HK$’000
T#x THTT
0-30 days 0—30H 86,473 49,351
31-60 days 31—60H 17,789 19,197
61-90 days 61—90H 2,953 5,258
91-120 days 91—120H 40 -
Over 120 days AR 120H 1,336 -
108,591 73,806

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their fair E 5 MEVSC AR T 2 F T (L SEAEARA ©

values.
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TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued) 25 B MEWOWRIE (1)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are A4 [ & ) EMOIR TE 2 JIR THT (B DA T 31 8
denominated in the following currencies: W oy B
Group
gL
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000
T Tl
HK$ It 35,342 17,650
RMB N 69,295 54,099
Other currencies HAb B 3,954 2,057
108,591 73,806
The credit quality of trade receivables has been assessed by B ENREGEEE RV BRE2EH T
reference to historical default rate of the counterparty. The existing F7 A HE R b AT B AL o LA E T
counterparties do not have defaults in the past. VR mIA = NG
As at 31st March 2011, trade receivables of HK$1,376,000 were 2011 4E3 A 31 H > & 5 M BE 18
past due but not impaired (2010: Nil). 1,376,000%4% 7t £ %0 HH {H 4 350 (E (20104 :
") -
TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 26 SIS HEATHETE - JUAb A HE I
AND ACCRUALS M REE AR IE
Group Company
g A
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TH#oo TH#T T T
Trade payables B 5 AT IRIE 332,845 274,141 - =
Deposits from customers and 5 [ % 5 RAFETR 2 71 4
licensees 153,321 119,461 - -
Salaries and welfare payables [} 357 4 S AR A 104,429 64,132 - -
Other payables A R A R IE 49,123 48,551 933 585
Accrued expenses JERT# 46,682 24,149 - =
686,400 530,434 933 585
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26

TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES 26 BUSMEAIRIE ~ JUAb A HRIE
AND ACCRUALS (Continued) B ME w5k % (0
The ageing analysis of trade payables is as follows: 5 A BRI IRER A N T
Group
#M
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000
T#oL Tt
0-30 days 0—30H 193,330 187,538
31-60 days 31—60H 78,973 53,960
61-90 days 61—90H 15,720 14,226
91-120 days 91—120H 26,702 10,147
Over 120 days 120 H 18,120 8,270
332,845 274,141
The carrying amounts of trade payables, other payables and accruals B o REAT BETE - EoAfth B At HE TE K FE Hak
approximate their fair values. TH 7 BE A (H B HL /N SP(E AR -
The carrying amounts of the Group’s and the Company’s trade AL B e AN T 2 E T REATERTE ~ HiAth
payables, other payables and accruals are denominated in the JRE AR B T e B 5t T BR T A 471 B
following currencies: W By B
Group Company
pc A
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#xT T T#x T
HKS$ S 395,834 271,260 933 585
RMB NG 180,223 167,208 -
US$ e 87,412 73,948 -
Other currencies HoAth 5 s 22,931 18,018 -
686,400 530,434 933 585
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27 BORROWINGS 27 MR
The analysis of the carrying amounts of borrowings is as follows: & Z HRTH (B AT AR
Group Company
#M A
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THT THIT THT THTT
(Restated)
(FE51)
Current Rp35
Bank borrowings due for —AENE I E R
repayment within one year SATIE B - 162,822 - 94,744
Bank borrowings due for A e R B R AR SC
repayment after one year —IER R R
which contain a repayment ~ $R47EE
on demand clause - 150,878 - -
Total borrowings Ryt - 313,700 - 94,744
(@)  The exposure of the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings (@) AR AR Z A58 5T A
to interest rate changes and the weighted average effective R 5 1 Ja\ g I o R 38 B R R R
interest rates are as follows: LI
Group Company
£ el
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#xT T T#x T
At floating rates EiiRE S - 313,700 - 94,744
Weighted average effective fiIt#~F-1 B B F1| %
interest rate N/A 1.06% N/A 1.23%
The carrying amounts of borrowings are denominated in (B > BE T B DA HE ST =T > 8
HK$ and approximate their fair values. HNAEAZ o
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27

BORROWINGS (Continued) 27 fERGE)
(b)  The repayment terms of bank borrowings (based on the (b) A BB I el 3 R [ 2 1 4
repayment schedule of relevant loan agreements) are as AT EE AR
follows:
Group Company
£ el
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
F#L THETT F#x T
Within one year —4RE A - 162,822 - 94,744
In the second year 5B AEN - 17,339 - -
In the third to fifth year B=FE AR - 52,969 - =
Over five years R LA - 80,570 - -
- 313,700 - 94,744
(c) Banking facilities, including borrowings, trade finance and (c) ITRNE (IEEE - O MG
other general banking facilities, were secured as follows: K HoAth — 4R AT R &) T35 LA T 1
TH B AEHEH
Group Company
g3t A
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T THTT T#x T
Secured against land and DL —F &N 7 2
buildings of a subsidiary - th % J5 /2 {E 4 7 - 178,045 - -
Guaranteed by the A B R
Company 146,826 101,329 - -
Guaranteed by a subsidiary 1 — 2 &2 w46 44 148,000 173,300 148,000 173,300
Unsecured S 421,084 325,000 420,300 325,000
715,910 777,674 568,300 498,300
Corresponding banking  ©.B) il (0 AHRESRAT
facilities utilised il - 313,700 - 94,744

At 31st March 2010, bank borrowings of HK$168,082,000

were secured by land and buildings of the Group with
carrying amount of HK$261,714,000 (Note 17). At 31st

March 2011, no assets were pledged to banks.

At 31st March 2011, the Group and the Company had

undrawn committed borrowing facilities of HK$715,910,000

(2010: HK$463,974,000) and HK$568,300,000 (2010:

HKS$ 403,556,000), respectively, which are expiring within

one year.

201043 H 31 H > 168,082,000
T T 2 SRAT A5 5 DA A 4 13 B T
£5261,714,000% 7C (fiE17) 2 +
i K 5 = AR AR - A 2011473 H
31H > HEME S K T 48RAT -

201143 H31 H » A4 M AR
ONFEO AA RARIR 2 B R S B
il 715,910,000 #5 7T (20104F :
463,974,000 # 7 ) K 568,300,000
W G (2010 4F : 403,556,000 i
J6) o A BEKIE R — R E T .
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SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 28 JBeA BBty v 1
Share capital (a) JBeAR
Company
A
2011 2010
No. of shares HK$’000 | No. of shares HKS$’000
Bty H T ety B H THsIT
Authorised: R -
Ordinary shares of R HO. 162
HK$0.1 each -4 800,000,000 80,000 | 800,000,000 80,000
Issued and fully paid: EEAT MR -
Ordinary shares of I TEAEO. 1 TG 2
HK$0.1 each SLaiilile
At 1st April JR4H1H 492,507,850 49,250 | 492,507,850 49,250
Issue of shares BEAT R Ay 50,000,000 5,000 - -
At 31st March R3H31H 542,507,850 54,250 | 492,507,850 49,250

(b)

On 9th December 2010, the Company issued 50,000,000
ordinary shares at nominal value of HK$0.1 each for
aggregate cash consideration of HK$1,157,500,000. The net
proceeds of such issue of shares after deducting the issuing
expenses of HK$23,451,000, is credited to share capital and
share premium accounts. The new shares rank pari passu in

all respects with the then existing shares.

20104 12 HOH » A4 Al 4
17 50,000,000 % & B 1 {H 0.1 i
LR MBS NRER
1,157,500,000% G ° 411 B% %547 BA
%23,451,000% 1% > AT A B
R0y 2 BT A R AR R A AR K
A0 e (B M o S H 0 7E 45 J T B
HREEA By = A R S AL o

Share premium (b) JBebrefE
Company
A

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T T
At Ist April R4A1H 58,884 58,384
Issue of shares BT AR 1,129,049 -
At 31st March 3H31H 1,187,933 58,884
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29

RESERVES

29 fikfl
Group (a) M
Capital Revaluation  Exchange  Statutory  Retained
reserve reserve reserve reserves  earnings Total
okmM  GAGEER BESIEME kR REEN B
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T T#T T#L T T#T T#L
(notei)  (Restated)  (Restated) (noteii)  (Restated) (Restated)
(W) (%)) (3E31) (W) (%) (5))
For the year ended BE01143H31H
31st March 2011 AR
At Ist April 2010, as previously R2010F4H1H »
reported WA AT 2 135,713 7479 35253 36,283 1,341,474 1,556,202
Effect of change in accounting policy & 5FHUR )~ B4
(Note 2(d)) (FiiE2(d)) - (7,479) 3,651 - M (3,794
At 1st April 2010, as restated R201044H 1H > KEF 135,713 - 38,904 36,283 1,341,508 1,552,408
Profit attributable to equity holders of 7/ Rz %
the Company el - - - - 866216 866216
Transfer g - - - 28,187 (28,187) -
Currency translation differences [E 5% - - 25,714 - - 25,714
Revaluation surplus of property, plant 4 % £ &3 RE 4 -
and equipment upon transfer to W Rtttz B AR
investment properties - 19,298 - - - 19,298
Deferred tax arising from revaluation ##8 25 &£ % -
surplus of property, plant and W Rtttz B AR
equipment upon transfer to i A AR AE B
investment properties (Note 30) (Kt3E30) - (3,184 - - - (3,184
2009/10 final dividend paid B 412009/ 104 AR . - - - - (137902)  (137,902)
2010/11 interim dividend paid EAF2010/114F E A - - - - (141052)  (141,052)
At 31st March 2011 R201143H31H 135,713 16,114 64,618 64470 1,900,583 2,181,498
Representing: 7
Reserves ittt 135,713 16,114 64,618 64470 1,672,730 1,953,645
Proposed dividend R R - - - - 227,853 227853
At 31st March 2011 A20114E3 431H 135,713 16,114 64,618 64470 1,900,583 2,181,498
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29 RESERVES (Continued) 29 il (s
(a)  Group (Continued) (a) SEM (50

Capital Revaluation ~ Exchange  Statutory Retained
reserve reserve reserve reserves earnings Total

WA EAARE R RERE  REEA sk

HK$°000  HK$°000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS$000
T T T T Tt T
(notei)  (Restated)  (Restated) (noteii)  (Restated)  (Restated)
(Wf3E) (#51) (E51) (BhF&Ei) (E51) (E51)

For the year ended BE20104£3H31H

31st March 2010 AR
At 1st April 2009, as previously 20094 A 1H >

reported TR FT 24K 135,713 2,933 29,688 19418 959,684 1,147,436
Effect of change in accounting policy € H % 54 v &

(Note 2(d)) (BizE2(d)) - (2.933) 3,644 - 182 893
At 1st April 2009, as restated R2009F4H1H » K5 135,713 - 33332 19418 959,866 1,148,329
Profit attributable to equity AT R A

holders of the Company JEE 2 - - - - 31484 531484
Transfer L8 - - = 16,865 (16,865) =
Currency translation differences i 255 - - 5572 - = 5572
2008/09 final dividend paid B £12008/09 % A MM . = = = - (59,101) (59,101)
2009/10 interim dividend paid 412009/ 104 £ A B - - - = (73876)  (73,876)
At 31st March 2010 #20104E3H31H 135,713 - 38,904 36,283 1,341,508 1,552,408
Representing: Rz
Reserves i 135,713 - 38,904 36,283 1,203,606  1414,506
Proposed dividend R - - - - 137,902 137,902
At 31st March 2010 20103431 H 135,713 - 38,904 36283 1,341,508 1,552,408
Notes: it 2%

() The capital reserve of the Group represents the difference @) 745 [H] 27 7S it A 4 A 4 [
between the nominal value of the shares of the acquired A 1997 4F B 4H IRy Fir iz i K g
subsidiaries, and the nominal value of the Company’s N 2 A5 T (R B SR A B
shares issued for the acquisition at the time of the Group’s TN w1 A0 2 TH] (B A ]
reorganisation in 1997. ZEH o

(ii) Statutory reserves are non-distributable and the transfers (ii) B E R TN AT A0 UR >

of these funds are determined by the Board of Directors
of the relevant PRC subsidiaries in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC.

A B SRR T e R ] o T
A ) S AR o AR
FRERBUGIPRE
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RESERVES (Continued) 29  fif 0
Company (b) Al
Contributed Retained
surplus earnings Total
Bk PR A B
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
T#L T T
For the year ended B 20114E3H31H
31st March 2011 IR4EE
At 1st April 2010 2201044 H 1 H 298,687 180,482 479,169
Profit for the year A 3 s A - 499,194 499,194
2009/10 final dividend paid EL1572009/104F A HA B, - (137,902) (137,902)
2010/11 interim dividend paid EL 457201071 14 FH HA B - (141,052) (141,052)
At 31st March 2011 201143 H31 H 298,687 400,722 699,409
Representing: RFE
Reserves it 298,687 172,869 471,556
Proposed dividend FEIR B - 227,853 227,853
At 31st March 2011 201143 H31H 298,687 400,722 699,409
For the year ended BE2010423H31H
31st March 2010 AR
At st April 2009 JA200944 A1 H 298,687 113,870 412,557
Profit for the year A BE Vs A - 199,589 199,589
2008/09 final dividend paid EL4512008/094F i AR 1 % 5 = (59,101) (59,101)
2009/10 interim dividend paid E452009/104F £ H i 5 = (73,876) (73,876)
At 31st March 2010 201043 H31 H 298,687 180,482 479,169
Representing: 3 -
Reserves fitftg 298,687 42,580 341,267
Proposed dividend FEUR S, - 137,902 137,902
At 31st March 2010 72201043 H31 H 298,687 180,482 479,169




Annual Report 2011 4E3 137

29 RESERVES (Continued) 29 il (s
(b)  Company (Continued) (b) Al (&)
The contributed surplus of the Company represents the VNNIEIl ¥ O NN
difference between the nominal value of the shares issued i Luk Fook Investment (B.V.L)
by the Company in exchange for all the issued ordinary Limited 4 # £ 284740 R M 2547
shares of Luk Fook Investment (B.V.1.) Limited and the ety 2 T BLAS 8 B A 1997 4F- 4%
value of net assets of the underlying subsidiaries acquired £ 1 i AL T 9 oA B A 2D o 2
by the Company during the Group’s reorganisation in 1997. ARG EME - R4
Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), EFEE 1981 FF A A K (88155 -
the contributed surplus is distributable to the shareholders, EAA R PTUREE T IROR > AL
provided that the Company would, after the payment of Al B R AR IR SR - ZHAR
dividends out of the contributed surplus, be able to pay its A BB R AR SRS - AR
liabilities as they become due; or the realisable value of Al G A BRI g DR
the Company’s assets would thereby not be less than the FAEHS ~ HE BATRA KBy
aggregate of its liabilities, its issued share capital and its It (B 2 K8FN o LAZR 42 [ g T 1
share premium. At the Group level, the contributed surplus is 5o WEHMBRREERIE S
reclassified into its component of reserves of the underlying A TR B 2 ) 22 At 4
subsidiaries.
30 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 30 EHEPTFIBL
Deferred income tax of the Group is provided for in respect of: 7 452 [0 2 BT A5 T K T 510 45 TE A L
f#i -
Tax depreciation Unrealised profit on Undistributed profit of
allowances Revaluation reserve  closing inventories PRC subsidiaries Total
Bets WAL AU
iR ] Tl AREBLEA WIS v i AR
2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$°000 [HK$000 [HK$000 [HK$000 [HK$000 |[HK$000 [HK$000 |HK$000 |HK$000 |HKS$ 000
T | T | T | T | T | TEx | THxX | T | T | T#Ex
(Restated) (Restated)
(F71) (%71)
At Ist April, as previously 4 A 1H > WA
reported T2 2,607 3,565 - - 10,442 10,553 (6487) | (2,858) 6,562 11,260
Effect of change in SEHBUREH 2
accounting policy W ()
(Note 2(d)) 833 (51) - - - - - - 833 (51)
At Ist April, as restated R4A1H > KBS 3,440 3,514 - - 10,442 10,553 (6,487) | (2,858) 7,395 11,209
(Charged)/credited to the (1K) /FHAfRZ %
income statement (FffsELD)
(Note 11) (1,567) (74) - - 6,072 (1) | 8203) | (3,629 | (3,698) | (3.814)
Charged directly to other ~ FL A A2 i
comprehensive income ol
(Note 29(a) (Hik29(a) - asy| - - - - | ey -
At 31st March W3A31H 1,873 3,440 (3,184) - 16,514 10,442 | (14,690) |  (6,487) 513 7,395
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30

31

DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 30 BEPIFBLGE)
Representing: 3k
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$’000
T-#0 RN
(Restated)
(E41)
Deferred income tax assets VB LE PSR B 19,016 14,018
Deferred income tax liabilities AL T 5Bl B (18,503) (6,623)
513 7,395

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through the future taxable profit is probable. As at 31st March 2011,
the Group had potential unrecognised deferred tax assets amounting
to HK$3,588,000 (2010: HK$6,533,000) in respect of tax losses to
be carried forward against future taxable income. These tax losses
have no expiry date.

Pursuant to the relevant PRC corporate income tax rules and
regulations, withholding tax is imposed on dividends declared in
respect of profits earned by the Group’s PRC subsidiaries from

1st January 2008. Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately
HK$14,690,000 (2010: HK$6,487,000) have not been provided for
in these consolidated financial statements in respect of temporary
differences attributable to accumulated profits of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries as the Group controls the dividend policy of these PRC
subsidiaries and it is probable that these temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS - 31
LONG SERVICE PAYMENT

Under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, the Group is
obligated to make lump sum payments on cessation of employment
in certain circumstances to certain employees who have completed
at least five years of service with the Group. The amount payable is
dependent on the employees’ final salary and years of service, and is
reduced by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement plan
that are attributable to contributions made by the Group. The Group
does not set aside any assets to fund any remaining obligations. The
long service payments are paid out from the Group’s cash in hand
when such payments are required.

The latest actuarial valuation as at 31st March 2011 specifically
designated for the Group’s employees was completed by a qualified
actuary, Mercer (Hong Kong) Limited, using projected unit credit
method.

A 5T AT 58 B 14 o T fls 15, T A0 8 T 75
TG > MEZEA T RES I H 42 ME B it
I 514 A B Bl JE R 2 2 B o R 201143 H
31H > AHE ML R e R A 75 B A it
GIE SRU ORI ok = W S 0 784
FIE T TE ¥ 7 33,588,000 7 IC (2010 4F
6,533,000 70) o A7 BBl T i 15 I 1 21 A
E| °

HR 415 v 580 A [ £ 2E T 455 e 061 S R )
200841 A 1 H # > BEAS 4 [ 2 A ] Fff
J&5 2N 1 i B B A R 22 JE B JE A Ak T
FIBL - ARAE P15 BL B (5 4914,690,00095 76
(20104F © 6,487,000 JC ) M A A 5% %5 47
A P 3 2 TR el A 42 1 2 o R o e N D
25 Il 2 RS AR R RN A
7 45 [ W] 42 i) % S v R R A D 2 T S
R > DA K% 55 W Ihp 25 AR AE T RLR A R
W] o

D E A A — RIS 4

R A o A S R 1) AR B A SR A
THOT > RERBALERD HAFEZ
AT B A1k 52 A Ry i FE S A — ik pkak
TH o MEAT IR T T A B R B 2 B f%
= T R 4 i 52 > 925 AN SR AR AR
T B A 5 [ 2 S aRmEAG 2 S SR
dit o A% G2 P S S0 45 £ A ] E AR 5 AT
BT AR A o AR 2SO B AROR
5 > @ B AR 2 FER B GG R
AR & o

& & & K B B Mercer (Hong Kong)
Limited DA 78 1 BV 5 B0 16 50 U 4 A 42
¥ 1 £ 11 4 2 2 201 143 H 31 H S5opi ks 31
FIAl o
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31 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS — 31 D@ B R A — R IR 4
LONG SERVICE PAYMENT (Continued) (%)
() The amount recognised in the balance sheet is as follows: (a) R E AR RIEINT
Group
gL
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000
TH#oL T
Present value of defined FUERRA AR B
benefit obligations 27,966 12,266
(b) Movements in the net liability recognised in the balance (b) TR AR A A s
sheet are as follows: BT :
Group
M
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH#T T
At 1st April T4H1H 12,266 22,733
Expenses/(income) recognised in the i SiEE e v
income statement (e A) 15,700 (10,467)
At 31st March W3H31H 27,966 12,266
(c) Expenses/(income) recognised in the income statement is as (c) AR R T mERR 2 B () T
follows: T
Group
HM
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000
T T
Current service cost ARG 1,609 2,020
Interest cost LS A 356 455
Net actuarial losses/(gains) recognised BB SR 1R (st ) T8 13,773 (12,930)
Long service payment benefit made net of =R 448 1| (FIER T4
MPF Scheme benefits wH#EAE ) (38) (12)
15,700 (10,467)
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31 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS -

(d)

31

D B 6 A o5 AT — 5= 080 85 4

LONG SERVICE PAYMENT (Continued) (%)
The expense/(income) is recognised in the following line (d) B (W) Tk i 28 22 AT 31
items in the income statement: THH ffEsd
Group
M

2011 2010

HK$’°000 HK$’000

T#oL THTT
Selling and distribution costs S Ty 82 A 8,321 (5,548)
Administrative expenses TTECE 7,379 (4,919)
15,700 (10,467)

The principal actuarial assumptions used as at 31st March (e) JA20114E3 F 31 A i 2 224

(e)

2011 (expressed as weighted average) are as follows:

SR (UM 2R IF

Group
M
2011 2010
Discount rate JilpiTE S 3% 3%
Future salary increment AR i 4 s 5% 4%
Return of MPF balances O R 4 4 B [ R R 3% 3%
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CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 32 BERBSSEY
Group Company
g 3] A
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
T THso T T T
Cash on hand FEEH 4 22,078 18,410 - =
Cash at bank AT 4 693,659 268,536 1,678 569
Short-term bank deposits FHASRAT A7 K 250,155 = 220,144 =
965,892 286,946 221,822 569
Weighted average effective  JiIHEF- 15 B B A1) %
interest rate 0.64% - 0.57 % -
Group Company
g G| )
2011 2010 2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#L T Tt Tt
Denominated in: FHE R
HKS$ HE T 624,870 142,830 221,822 569
RMB PNERL: 229,419 121,826 - -
MOP LB 75,029 13,283 - -
US$ ES 21,502 2,378 - =
Other currencies HAth & 15,072 6,629 - =
965,892 286,946 221,822 569

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank

deposit rates. Short-term bank deposits are with initial terms of less

than three months and earn interest at the respective time deposits
rates. The conversion of the RMB denominated balances into
foreign currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

SRATH B AT HERAT I B A7 M) T
FLB o 5 IARAT AR S 2 A DI = A
H o M4 B R A SR R BRIORLE o
VAN R BIME 2 &5 B e/ SN MR 32 o
1 B R L A 2 &1 R A o 58 ) ik WL B KL

R o
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33

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 33 HEBeREE
FLOWS
Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net cash generated ok BT A5 58 T i ) B 7 A 2 B4 TR A
from operations: ZHIRMT
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
THT THIT
(Restated)
(FE41)
Profit before income tax 53~ B A5 A0 il Y A 1,029,223 634,102
Amortisation of land use rights b R S £ 468 458
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 4% - i K ikt & 49,507 43,448
Depreciation of investment properties - E SN 922 -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWIZE ~ B Bk 2 R
equipment 1,968 1,106
Provision for/(reversal of) long service RIAIRTS 4t (45 [m))
payment 15,662 (10,455)
Interest income FLEMA (854) (342)
Interest expense S B S 4,661 3,171
Share of results of an associate JREAG — ZK i o ) SR (487) (2,343)
Operating profit before working capital ELE R AAEH KL Ui
changes 1,101,070 669,145
Increase in rental deposits FH a1 (1,752) (11,956)
Increase in inventories VeSEeiyil| (869,911) (513,144)
Increase in trade and other receivables, B 5 K H A RE T IR TE
deposits and prepayments i 455 I A R TELE (36,016) (32,389)
Decrease/(increase) in amount due from an JE S — ZR W N F) A
associate W () 2,910 (1,471)
Increase in trade payables, other payables and % 5 fEATHRIE - FiAth EfHHEIH
accruals o RT3 AN 155,966 271,735
Increase/(decrease) in employee benefit & AR A B AT A0, (b))
obligations 38 (12)
Net cash generated from operations A2 g A 7 B4 VR AR 352,305 381,908
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34 COMMITMENTS 34 R
(a) Capital commitments (a) BRI
Group
#M
2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$’000
T T
Contracted but not provided for property, B 5] #1{EHRAE Hi B 2 W2
plant and equipment i B A
12,587 7,041
Authorised but not contracted for property, T FFHE(HARFT4 2 W) -
plant and equipment NS 62,531 -
(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) EERLERE

At 31st March 2011, the Group had future aggregate
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases in respect of land and buildings as follows:

201143 H31 H » A4E [ 5t £+
Hh K S5 T AR BE S AT e 2 S0 A
B A 2 S A 2 S ARAR B A 3k
BT

Group
g3

2011 2010

HK$°000 HK$°000

T AR

Not later than one year —4R A 189,603 164,887
Later than one year and not later than —AERAAS R LA

five years 256,656 246,536

Later than five years R A 2,399 31,705

448,658 443,128

The actual payments in respect of certain operating leases
are calculated at the higher of the minimum commitments
as noted above and the amounts determined based on a
percentage of the sales of the related outlets.

T AR S 39
P B 7 3 B A O
B — T4 LT A R
RIS -
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S B e B ik

34

35

COMMITMENTS (Continued) 34
(¢)  Future operating lease arrangements

Future aggregate minimum lease receipts under non-

cancellable operating leases are as follows:

7R (1)

(©) AREREBEMELHE
AR TR 2 S AL A T
AR 2 BRAIG AL 4 A T -

Group
gL
2011 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000
T#x THETT
Investment properties Eita-c7/ES
Not later than one year —4E R 4,260 4,756
Later than one year and not later than —AEAR RS A AT
five years 9,189 689
13,449 5,445

(d)  The Company did not have any significant commitment as
at 31st March 2011 (2010: Nil).

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35

The major shareholder of the Company is Luk Fook (Control)
Limited (“Luk Fook Control”’), a company incorporated in

the British Virgin Islands, which directly owns 43.17% of the
Company’s shares. The remaining shares of the Company are
widely held. Mr. WONG Wai Sheung and his family including Mr.
WONG Ho Lung, Danny and Miss WONG Lan Sze, Nancy are
discretionary beneficiaries of the Wong’s Family Trust (the “Trust”).
The Trust is the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital
of Kwai Kee Cheung Jewellery & Goldsmith Company Limited
which is the beneficial owner of 36.72% of issued shares of Luk
Fook Control. The remaining shares of Luk Fook Control are held
by various shareholders.

Mr WONG Wai Sheung, Mr. WONG Ho Lung, Danny, Miss
WONG Lan Sze, Nancy and Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline
are directors of the Company and have beneficial interests in the
Company.

(d) AAFR20114E3 A 31 B i 4%
Al R ARIE (20104F © 4E) o

FREALZRY

AN T 2 T B B 7S48 () A FRA
Al (TSARPERE L) > i 0 Jo 4 1% ot Bf
Bk s 2 AT - HEEEHEA AR
43.17% LBy o AN w1 R B0 4 R
A oo Tl A R R (B IS
A R E RN B R KRR (5
FE) 2 2HEZ N o % Bt A ERREER
HEATA BRA R & H B BT e A 2 B 4
WA N > HERIAERRTE S 4T A PR A E £2
A 7S AR TE 1E36.72% B S5 4T IS = 7548
PECAR T At 2 4 EORARA

TR ST BN RESEAE - BBEE/MA
BB B R /NI B AR Rl S RA AR
FHEA T A AR
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35 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35 ABEALZES @)
(Continued)
(@) A subsidiary of the Company entered into a service contract (@) AR Fl— KM R BEAGE /)N
(“Service Contract”) with Miss YEUNG Po Ling, Pauline B R R —BEARAR ([FE—])
and Topone Investments Limited (“Topone”) for a period IR G4 (TIRBE G491 > B
of 2 years (2010: 2 years) expiring on 31st March 2011. H24F (20104F « 24F) » jA20114F
Pursuant to the Service Contract, Topone agreed to make 3H31H e o IRBIRL S 4
available Miss Yeung’s exclusive services for the promotion 75— [F) =R A /N ) 7 4 ] 42
of the products and services of the Group in consideration MRS > LAHE R A 42 B 1 78
of an annual fee of HK$286,750 (2010: HK$286,750). FRRss > AR F 1547286,7501 70
(20104F : 286,750%7T)
(b) Transactions with the associate (b) HBBAFRZRY
2011 2010
Note HK$°000 HK$°000
s THT THT
Sales of goods S Em Q) 4,144 -
Purchases of goods W E & (i) 81,751 122,031
Rental income FHE WA (ii) 544 537
Management fee income EHAIA (iii) 380 311
Notes: MEGE -
(i) Sales and purchases of goods were conducted in the @) it B ET R AR AR IR AE B

ordinary course of business at prices and terms based on
mutual agreements.

(ii) Rental income was charged at terms based on relevant
lease agreement.

(iii) Management fee income was charged at terms based on
mutual agreements.

il R 5T 2 AR A% e A g 4
SRR -

(ii) A B AEL B 0 ol e T 2
U B o

(iii) R A A L T el 7 T 2 MR i
USRI o
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S B e B ik

35

36

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

(¢) Key management compensation

35

BN 225 )
(c) THEFIIEHNE

2011 2010
HK$°000 HK$°000
T AR
Directors’ fees M 1,290 1,070
Salaries, allowances and benefits-in-kinds 4> - R R B35 56,115 38,906
Performance and discretionary bonuses Fie R BT 25l 2 AL AT 27,266 16,414
Contributions to pension plan RIRG T ik 3711 350
85,042 56,740

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 36 BB A R

SUBSIDIARIES

At 31st March 2011, the Company had the following principal

subsidiaries:

JA20114E3 H31 H » AR Al 2 EZMHE A

IR

Percentage of

Place of Particulars of attributable
incorporation/ issued share capital/ interests held by
establishment registered capital the Company Principal activities
S CEATIRAR AR E PR MEAN FEEH
B b A HEAR T4 b
2011 2010
Interests held directly:
HIRA SR
Luk Fook Investment BVI HK$2 100 100 Investment holding
(B.V.L) Limited BB HET B 22U T G R R
Interests held indirectly:
R A AR -
China Gems Laboratory Hong Kong HK$2 100 100 Authentication of
Limited 7 s 2% gemstones
FREERR T S O A BRA A O
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36 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

36 BB 6N @)

Percentage of

Place of Particulars of attributable
incorporation/ issued share capital/ interests held by
establishment registered capital the Company Principal activities
R % OB ARAFIBEEA R
P IR A A BiZE V2 e
2011 2010
Fancy Trend Investment Hong Kong HK$12,100 100 100  Property holding
Limited i 12,1007 75 ESEER7ES
e EA R A
Ice Collection (International)  Hong Kong HKS$100 100 100  Retailing of gold and
Limited Fis 100%5 7C jewellery products
UK (BIE) A BRA 7 TR 5 fiff 2 iy T 2T
Jewellworld.com Limited BVI HK$8,000,000 51 51 Investment holding, and
TRE LB V.L) A BRA A Y JRAETT RS 8,000,000%% 51, provision of software
development and
services relating to
internet
PeE R ~ R At
B 8% J e = BTG A
AR BRI 5
Jewellworld.com Limited Hong Kong HK$100 51 51 Investment holding, and
TRE MR (FH) A BRA A s 10045 7C provision of software
development and
services relating to
internet
PEE R ~ Rt
B 8% R A€ = BTG A
AR B R5
Luk Fook Bullions Dealers Hong Kong HK$14,000,000 100 100 Gold bullion trading
Limited s 14,000,000 7C HEMEE
N RA A
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S B e B ik

36 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 36 FEWIEAAREN @)
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Percentage of

Place of Particulars of attributable
incorporation/ issued share capital/ interests held by
establishment registered capital the Company Principal activities
sk, CETBAR . ARAFIBEEA R
LR L R RE A w4 BiRE V2 e
2011 2010
Luk Fook Holdings Company Hong Kong HK$2 100 100  Provision of
Limited i 2WETE management services
INARAE A R A A to group companies
and wholesale
distribution of gold
and jewellery products
PRAULE IR TR
NCIDSE iR a
W IR
Luk Fook Jewellery & Hong Kong HK$100 100 100  Retailing of gold and
Goldsmith (HK) Company it 100% 7T jewellery products
Limited A R E
ANEERE AT (FWH) A RA A TAE S
Luk Fook Jewellery & Macau MOP1,000,000 100 100  Retailing of gold and
Goldsmith (Macao) T 1,000,000 [q 5t jewellery products in
Company Limited Macau
ISAEERE AT (R M) ISUAREIE S E7N
ARAF JEE il A S
Luk Fook Jewellery & Canada CAS 100 100 100  Retailing of gold and
Goldsmith (Canada) &K 100/ Kot jewellery products in
Limited Canada
INAEIRE AT (INEEK) AT EERAE i 4 K
ARAF TRE 7 il s 2ETS
Luk Fook Jewellery & Singapore S$1,000,000 100 100  Retailing of gold and
Goldsmith (Singapore) Hm3sE 1,000,000 4% 7T jewellery products in
Pte. Limited Singapore
ISAEERE AT G TR INBARE i 4 K
ARAF TRE 7 il S 2ETS
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36 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 36  FEMEAAREN @
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Percentage of

Place of Particulars of attributable

incorporation/ issued share capital/ interests held by

establishment registered capital the Company Principal activities

sk bR, OB ARAFIBEEA R

P REMREAS w4 BiRE V0 W

2011 2010
Luk Fook Jewellery & USA USD100 100 100  Retailing of gold and
Goldsmith (USA —NY) e 1003 G jewellery products in
Company Limited USA
INAEERE BT (R B — A4 i 5% R e i 4 B
fifRAw SRS 1 1 30
Max Forum Development Hong Kong HK$100 100 100 Property holding
Limited il 100%5 7T ESEERYES
it B R A R A
Maxigood Enterprises Limited Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 93.3 93.3  Manufacturing and
A SEABRA ] G 3,000,000 5 wholesale distribution
of jewellery products
s KA S R
JEE il
NEEHRE (FEYDAWAR+  PRC HK$20,000,000 100 100 Manufacturing,

i 20,000,000 7% wholesale, retailing
of gold and jewellery
products and provision
of quality examination
services in the PRC

T R R e g Y
B R EE TR R
TRE 7 il A S fR i
L 88 S
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36 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 36  FEWEA AREN @
SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Percentage of

Place of Particulars of attributable

incorporation/ issued share capital/ interests held by

establishment registered capital the Company Principal activities

R % CETBAR . ARAFIRREEA R

JB L sl A BiRE V4 W

2011 2010
JRE M 7S AR A BR A ] + PRC HK$50,000,000 93.3 933 Manufacturing,

r 50,000,000 7T wholesale, retailing
of gold and jewellery
products and provision
of quality examination
services in the PRC

A B A R
B R EE TSR
TRETFE il LA B it
B i R
BRI BN E A BRA R+ PRC HK$6,000,000 93.3 93.3  Manufacturing of
r 6,000,000 75 jewellery products in
the PRC
i v R S R
JRE M 28 A B ]+ PRC HK$35,000,000 100 100  Property holding in the
LR 35,000,000 7t PRC
T R A 2
ERESA (L1g) ABRAT + PRC USD200,000 100 100 Wholesale of polished
r 200,0003 55 diamond in the PRC
A AR AT 2
#r




36

37

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 36

SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Annual Report 2011 43 151

FEEHE 2 R w0

Percentage of

Place of Particulars of attributable
incorporation/ issued share capital/ interests held by
establishment registered capital the Company Principal activities
R % CEABA . ARAFERREEN R
B 3 sl A Wi 4 I
2011 2010
ANHEERE (L) ARAR + PRC HK$500,000 100 100  Retailing of gold and
G 500,000 7T jewellery products in
Beijing, the PRC
TP AR EEEE K
TRET 7 i
BN S AR E SR B A AR + PRC HK$2,000,000 100 100  Brand building and
H 2,000,000 75 promotion in the PRC
A P 2R A B
& The subsidiaries are established as wholly foreign-owned ? B0 WA W 2 P B RS 2 S E

enterprises in the PRC.

Unless otherwise stated, all the above companies operate principally
in Hong Kong.

The above list includes the subsidiaries of the Company which, in
the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results of the
year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group.
To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the
directors, result in particulars of excessive length.

EVENT AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE 37

In June 2011, a subsidiary of the Group has acquired a floor of a
commercial building in Shanghai, PRC, from an independent third
party at an aggregate consideration of RMB34,635,000 (equivalent
to HK$40,700,000).

{23k

Br7 A SIS - LAt B A 8 w35 E B
BT

ERRR o ERFIIARFWMEAFE
LM AR A I3 S A PR B N A 4 1
EEFE EEWY c RGBS > Rt
FARE 2 7l 2 5E5 & & ERHR I TUR o

pAE AR T

JA20114F6 ] - A4 B — K IHE A ) 5 18
75 = 7 WA FR B A T — R S A
Hrp—Jg » #AE 5 N R34,635,00070
(FHE 17440,700,000%57C) °
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BUSINESS STRUCTURE
M

HONG KONG WHOLESALE

Luk Fook Holdings Company Limited

Maxigood Enterprises Limited

Luk Fook Corporate Gifts (International) Limited
Luk Fook Diamond (International) Company Limited

PRC MANUFACTURE & WHOLESALE
JEM 7S AT PR 7

B AEE (RO B A FRA T

JEM A 54 A PR )

A (L) A RAF

PRC BRAND MANAGEMENT
B 7 B 5 A R A )

AHRERE (RN A R 7

AR () A R R

HONG KONG, MACAU & OVERSEAS RETAIL
Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (HK) Co., Limited

Ice Collection (International) Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (Macao) Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (Canada) Limited

Luk Fook Jewellery & Goldsmith (USA) Company Limited

PRC RETAIL

%xEEE"f Lm0 AR A

SAREREL (RN A FRA T — BN A7
SARREL (I A FRA R — ALt AF

o \l

FINANCE
Luk Fook Finance Company Limited

AUTHENTICATION

China Gems Laboratory Limited
China Gems Testing Centre (Macau) Limited

PORTAL BUSINESS

Jewellworld.com Limited

I
ANtEdE A R A
HAEREABRA R

FNAE A SEAE (B B A R &)
Nt () A FRA T

e B R AL B
B 7 B T R 7
R M) 847 FR 24 )
B R 2805 PR )
S LR (i) A R )

e B A B

B G R AT B4 )
ANARREL (EYI) AT WA
ANARBREL (R0 A WA

Al - B Rl
AR AT (i) IR 7
k£ (B A4 FRA 7]

AR AT () AR 7]
ANARBRBLA T (RTINS0 AR 7
AR AAT (5 K) A 7
AR AT (B R 7

%
‘ﬁﬁ%jﬁfﬁmﬂﬂ
ASARBREE (VEYI) AT W2 R — BN 4322

TN N

Y5
A AREB A IR ]

A
BB DA R R
R BB E D (R AR )

NGRS
ERTTHEA (B ) A IR
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DISTRIBUTION OF LUKFOOK OUTLETS IN THE PRC
BN BB 0 5 A

THE PRC B
J ) }
PN rr;;‘n ;é
Raghen 5y L/
&) Heilongjiang / Harbin
(
/ Gy AL
Changcﬁﬁ @ @ ‘&udanjlang
7\ .
Gy M/ AT
&&J Xinjiang / Urumchi r"‘m %
‘u.ﬁlln
L EWRR (3] Y
Liaoning / Shenyang V /
v /
ISk /WEF A o2y /' Gy
/ Inner Mongolia / Hohhotairport lé“‘ Beulng g / k‘ﬂDallan
-
N r
N WHE "’Q‘i J |anj|n
S § ‘-F I =
! Y
™S - > X .;é,; \&:\angdao
\ f \ ¥ — . rfz‘n”-lﬁ e/ .
T‘i;{fih‘ @) & shanxi | Shandong / Jinan
) { TLAR/ W
/i @ C-ia1§r @ \J ‘I— Jiangsu / Changzhou
Qinghai / Xining *<” P »
@) Z engzhou WJ‘ _
Lanzhou &7 \.\
& B/ o2y -
-__\.-\ j _Shaanxi/ Xian V @; & o
4 s
\ \‘\r g By u §£Ihou Shanghal
P9Il 63y | g RE Hefei @2 (pa f;%mr
Sichuan V ~ &) Wuhan By T Nanjing 2 Zhejiang / Hangzhou
{é} "é*‘ Henan ¢ = ﬁ M
~ — %3 TR e &)
~— r Chengdu @ Chongaing (23 @ E 9; @ Nanch: g‘ vr’w przhou
4 - o J 3 o ?&% @ Cha&sha 4
{ ) Hunan r}?‘n?&
\ &2 Fujian
\ rJJﬁiﬂ (5] 8 J’hngm @ v
Guizhou =’ v i
: Qingyuan ¢y H &) Fuzhou
Ja () @ uangzhou -
M
R 2y L 2 B
Kunming @ — Llugpo)f:I E‘J W ltsﬂ Dongguan Hogfhou
)] GEOY T
; Guangxi l.,JJ sl A‘“FOSh l“:‘\mﬁvﬁuangdong / Shenzhen
(4 Zhongshan Eﬁd‘ Lljé"J‘Zhuhal
. e Jiangmen
T (29
Zhanjﬂ%rzng @
[3) f
Ha?lﬁr%?:ﬁv“

Self-operated outlets 17455 : 42
Licensee outlets i[5 : 640
Total outlets ¥ & : 682
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DISTRIBUTION OF THE GROUP’S SELF-OPERATED OUTLETS
ASE 2 H 8 N 5

LUKFOOK JEWELLERY s #i%k %
HONG KONG #Hi#

1

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

TR P 168-200 5% fF M 0 (OF- &) 24256 226 1 5E
Shops 256 & 261, 2/F., Shun Tak Centre (Podium), 168-200
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

T VO B BT JE RPE AT T CHf

Shop C, G/F., 479 Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong
7 W S TR JE R 50598 T 2 Mt T B-C Rl

Shops B-C, G/F., Radio City, 505 Hennessy Road, Causeway
Bay, Hong Kong

VR S S JE R 467473 SR AL 2K I 3 A-B R
Shops A-B, G/F., Kin Tak Fung Commercial Building, 467-473
Hennessy Road, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

A bl P 08 195 T 14-17%5 50

Shops 14-17, G/F., 281 King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong
Frvts AL 1 5% 511 400-40495 56 0ot

G/F., Ming Yuen Centre, 400-404 King’s Road, North Point,
Hong Kong

JUBE B I JEURGHT A B S35 A-CHl

Shops A-C, G/F., 53 Fung Tak Road, Fung Wong New Village,
Wong Tai Sin, Kowloon

JUHE I ZI0E 22 1 B-E S5 AR 4 S BT~ G2

Shop G2, G/F., Hanford House, 221B-E Nathan Road, Kowloon
JURENE BUR OB 3155 M i

G/F., 315 Nathan Road, Jordan, Kowloon

JUBE S0 3 1195 A6 K b

G/F., Hong Kiu Mansion, 311 Nathan Road, Kowloon
JUREBLE ) et 77-79 550

G/F., 77-79 Mut Wah Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon

JUHERE A IR20E687-689 98

G/F., 687-689 Nathan Road, Mong Kok, Kowloon

JUREIE F 308 603 K 603 A BEHT ELK I 1 T G1-G24H

Shops G1-G2, G/F., Sun Hing Building, 603 & 603A Nathan
Road, Mong Kok, Kowloon

JURERE /A 2808 650-652 % 5 |- 587 4t T B

Shop B, G/F., Rex House, 650-652 Nathan Road, Mong Kok,
Kowloon

JUBERE £ 50 580G-KI b D R G1-G2 X G134

Shops G1-G2 and G13, G/F., Nathan Centre, 580G-K Nathan
Road, Mong Kok, Kowloon

JURERE fA 208 612-6 185 4 22 f1 X Bl T SBE i

Shop 5B, G/F., Good Hope Building, 612-618 Nathan Road,
Mong Kok, Kowloon

JURERE f IR0H 707-7 135540 5 BU R OR JEL ML AL-A24

Shops A1-A2, G/F., Silvercorp International Tower, 707-713
Nathan Road, Mong Kok, Kowloon

JUBE JUBE BT AR 1 55 5 11T P4 il

Shop F4, Phase 1, Telford Plaza, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon
JURER VP IH I ZUE 66-705% 4 e K # N A R G

Shops A & G, G/F., Golden Crown Court, 66-70 Nathan Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

JURER VDA L A3 SR 61T OB YL

Shop 9B, G/F., Star House, 3 Salisbury Road, Tsim Sha Tsui,
Kowloon

JURER VP IHISOE 1785510 T AR Hf

Shop A, G/F., 178 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon
JURERVPIHIBEGE111-139 ~ 143-161 % 165-181 954 REHE K
DML T G15 X G658 i K 1S i

Shops G15 & G16 on G/F., and Shop No. 8 on 1/F., Site D, Park
Lane Shopper’s Boulevard, Nos.111-139, 143-161 & 165-181
Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

JUBE SR VL ST O 101 58063 B K 52 i 2-3 5% 1% P 4

Shops 2-3, G/F. & M/F., Haiphong Mansion, 101 Nathan Road,
Tsim Sha Tsui, Kowloon

B K BEER 3998 oK B 52235237 55 i

Shops 235-237, Level 2, 39 Lung Sum Avenue, Landmark
North, Sheung Shui, N.T.

TP H s Sk 1258

Shop 12, MTR Sha Tin Station, N.T.

BTV VD FH LE A 1 S AR T R 3 M3 1 7 S il

Shop 317, L3, New Town Plaza, 18 Sha Tin Centre Street, Sha
Tin, N.T.

T P B L A A O S I U o P 5 L B 30B 9%

Shop 30B, G/.F, Commercial Accommodation of Park Central, 9
Tong Tak Street, Tseung Kwan O, Sai Kung, N.T.

T L P R 1 P T R A L R 1 141 9E Rl

Shop 1141, L1, Phase 1,Tuen Mun Town Plaza, 1 Tuen Shing
Street, Tuen Mun, N.T.

A 22 R 5 8 S 1055 I B AR B 1822 J81207 % 200 5
Shops 207 & 209, Level 2, Zone B, Tai Po Mega Mall, 8 & 10
On Pong Road, Tai Po, N.T.

TS A A S S R L IR AR I b T 6 5% Al

Shop 6, G/F., Emperor Plaza, 55 Chung On Street, Tsuen Wan,
N.T.

RS R OSSR T

G/F., 98 Chung On Street, Tsuen Wan, N.T.

R ICIAT LA 155 55T

G/F., 155 Castle Peak Road, Yuen Long, N.T.

THE PRC 1%

1

A b e T RO R SR 1 38 R SR L i 1195
Shop 119, 1/F., Xin Dong An Market, 138 Wang Fu Jing Street,
Dongcheng District, Beijing, the PRC

P T P AR 8 G G KA 120 587G B 3 — A

1/F., Xi Dan Mall, 120 Xi Dan Street North, Xicheng District,
Beijing, the PRC

A e T 1 R 2 55 AR ORI R — A
Gold Jewellery Section, 1/F., Mu Dan Yuan Department Store,
Cui Wei Commercial Building, 2 Hua Yuan Road, Haidian
District, Beijing, the PRC



e ] T 2 T PG 1 I e A P SR
2/F., Beijing Xin Hai Yun Tong Commercial Building,

1 Fu Qian West Street, Shunyi District, Beijing, the PRC

o B b T D R B v 4 1 89 558 1 e i S —

1/F., Bai Sheng Commercial Building, 189 Dong Si Huan Road
Central, Chaoyang District, Beijing, the PRC

o B A S SRR R R 1385 A A B SR 2 T 8 —
1/F., Jewellery Section, Dong An Market, 138 Wang Fu Jing
Street, Dongcheng District, Beijing, the PRC

o B AL ST Pk [ 4G AR A 1S 9EAL U R R 35—

1/F., Chang An Shopping Centre, 15 Fu Wai Street, Xicheng
District, Beijing, the PRC

o b T 5 - B P 3 R B —

1/F., Xi Dan Shopping Centre, 3 Shi Li Bao Jia Road, Zhaoyang
District, Beijing, the PRC

o 1L SR R T RE T I U R A 09 9 LU SR I R I 1
R v S5 900 P 35 P

Underground, Quancheng Plaza, 99 Le Yuan Street, Lixia
District, Jinan City, Shandong Province, the PRC

R L) SR 5 T T P R 1 R 1 SRR Rl T
2/F., Shop 81, Yinzuo Commercial City, 15 Ying Xiong Shan
Road West, Shizhong District, Jinan City, Shandong Province,
the PRC

e VLA AN T SR R A 2 K 546 ST T B A e — A
A

1/F., Hang Zhou Department Store, 546 Yan An Road,
Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC

LA BTN T E I I AR A 25 1 e 1 S P T A P —
1/F., Jie Bai Department Store, 251 Jie Fang Road, Xiangcheng
District, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC

o ) b 8 B T YL v L R 75658 T T B

1/F., Grand Ocean Department Store, 756 Zhong Shan Road,
Jianghan District, Wuhan City, Hubei Province, the PRC

o R AL 5 R T VLV R R BOK 686 IR HHE B2 3

1/F., World Trade Shopping Centre, 686 Jie Fang Street, Wuhan
City, Hubei Province, the PRC

o ) A 8 T B [ v R T 0 e P R B hl—
1/F., Zhongshang Plaza Shopping Centre, 7 Zhong Nan Road,
Wuchang District, Wuhan City, Hubei Province, the PRC

o B L & BT 7 L R AP 955 e — B R —
1/F., Jian’Er Department Store, 955 He Ping Road, Qingshan
District, Wuhan City, Hubei Province, the PRC
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o R ) 8 S T B R e oA 1 S B o P T B
T —

1/F., Pinmao Shop, Wuhan Zhongshang Department Store,

18 Xu Dong Street, Wuchang District, Wuhan City, Hubei
Province, the PRC

o I i b 2 T T VL L R K T 374 9 HE W 54O
SOGOH i —1H#

1/F., Wuhan SOGO, No.374 Jie Fang Street, Jianghan District,
Wuhan City, Hubei Province, the PRC
B8 S T SR BT R B s A T RO B 3 5%
I 101968 i 18—

1/F., Grand Ocean Shopping Centre, No.3 section 1, 101 Guang
Gu Street, Wuhan City, Hubei Province, the PRC

i T4 U G T S [ T g 687 9 . — I AC I
N3

2/F., Hanshang 21st Century Shopping center, 687 Han Yang
Road, Hanyang District, Wuhan City, Hubei Province, the PRC
o R A T Y - TR AR LR —

1/F., Grand Ocean Shopping Centre, No.l Shi Sheng Road,
Hanyang District, Wuhan City, Hubei Province, the PRC

F B )1 S T AR R A B 36 R e T 2 Bk

1/F., Hayoung Shopping Centre, 36 Chang Zheng Road,
Fancheng District, Hubei Province, the PRC

e L TS I AR 0% 1 95 E i R R —

1/F., Shanghai Paris Spring Building, 1 Song Hu Road, Yangpu
District, Shanghai City, the PRC

e b A I [ I % 0 18 5% I Vg T RO A

4/F., Shanghai Parkson Department Store, No. 918, Huai Hai
Road, Shanghai City, the PRC

R L T3 SR ] LR e 0 B 3450 % I 5 T 1 5 —
1/F., Van’s Department Store, 3459 Hu Nan Road, Zhoupu
Village, Pudong New District, Shanghai City, the PRC

o I SR R TS IR C8909 S 47 1 BEMEMR M 11 2= e 55 = Mk
Shop No. C8909, Departure Hall, 3/F., Main Building, Airport
Terminal, Guangzhou Baiyun International Airport, Guangzhou,
Guangdong Province, the PRC

e R A T A I L 1L R R 220 SR RS T
—

1/F., Ningbo No.2 Department Store, 220 Zhong Shan Road
East, Haishu District, Ningbo City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
o B VLA 2 B T S A UL R 7O B R e b R 3 — A
1/F., Nanjing Central Mall, 79 Zhong Shan Road South, Baixia
District, Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
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29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

o 1L PG R T/ T B 99 SR R G N 1 —
1/F., Yangguan Wangfujing Department Store, 99 Qin Xian
Street, Xiaodian District, Taiyuan City, Shanxi Province, the
PRC

oh B VLR 2 B BT R I L R 1225V

1/F., Grand Ocean Department Store, 122 Zhong Shan Road
South, Baixia District, Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC
I T S T U [ 1L SR 238 R SRR
1/F., Ningbo Intime Department Store, 238 Zhong Shan Road
East, Haishu District, Ningbo City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC
o I 0 T T 9 L B 0% 11 5 G L 3 —

1/F., Xi Dan Shopping Centre, 11 Lin Xia Road, Chengguan
District, Lanzhou City, Gansu Province, the PRC

1 S g T AR AR R T 1 398 FE 5 I O —
1/F., Fancheng Shopping Centre, 13 Cheng Hong Road,
Fancheng District, Hubei Province, the PRC

oh B L 2 T 2 I A 105 T R 0 —

1/F., Wu Yan Shopping Centre, 10 Wu Yan Bei Road, Maojian
District, Shiyan City, Hubei Province, the PRC

e L AL T 5 R B 43 SR B P B —

1/F., Xian Tao Commercial Building, 43 Mian Yang Street,
Xiantao City, Hubei Province, the PRC

o B L RN T VD I AL T ep i 173 VT R
1/F., Sha Shi Zhong Shang Department Mall, 173 Bei Jing
Zhong Road, Sha Shi City, Jingzhou District, Hubei Province,
the PRC

F I L SR TIT e A e 1 SR SRR

1/F., Intime Department Store (E’Zhou), 1 Nan Pu Road, E'
Zhou City, Hubei Province, the PRC

o BRI L 7 A T I TR AR
1/F., Huang Shi Xin Shopping Centre, 678 Huang Shi Street,
Huangshigang District, Huang Shi City, Hubei Province, the
PRC

R SRR BN T BT [ B B A0SR I M T r g — 4
1/F., Guangzhou Wang Fu Jing Shopping Centre, 40 Nong
Lin Xia Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC

AL T S S PR 3 SR L T

1/F., Xin Shi Jie Department Store, Chong Wen Men Wai Street,
Beijing, the PRC

AT I 2 I ST S 28 % Mg L 58 1 O —

1/F., Wu Dao Kou Outlet, Hua Lian Shang Sha, 28 Cheng Fu
Road, Haidian District, Beijing, the PRC

R I T I S A P A 139 5 A T e R e — A
1/F., Ren Xin Han Sha Yin Zuo, 139 Han Yang Ave, Han Yang,
Wuhan Cituy, Hubei Province, the PRC

MACAU # "

1 EPHEEK3255E T
No. 325 Avenida De Almeida Ribeiro, Macau

2 PR T RIS 12-185 L T
Avenida Do Infante D. Henrique, Nos. 12-18, Macau

3 IRPMER R IOE P RO RS BRI e T AR A
S R ) 02018 55 Al
Shop No. 2018, The Grand Canal Shoppes, The Venetian
Macao-Resort-Hotel, Estrada da Baia de Nossa Senhora da
Esperanca, The Cotal Strip, Taipa, Macau

4 MMBRE T RIG B SSUE R TR R M A
Avenida Do Infante D. Henrique, No. 58, Infante Commercial
Building, R/C, Bloco A, Macau

5 MRS T
G/F., Rua De S. Domingos, No. 4, Macau

6 RPN ARG PRI KRG 1358
G13 of the East Promenade in Galaxy Macau Resort

SINGAPORE i Jm¥%
1 H NS 2 S B U #B2- 218 5 A
#B2-218, The Shoppes at Marina Bay Sands, 2 Bayfront Avenue,
Singapore

CANADA m&EX
1 Unit 1010, Aberdeen Centre, 4151 Hazelbridge Way, Richmond,
B.C., V6X 4]7, Canada

USA %H
1  Store A, 185 Canal Street, New York, NY 10013, USA
2 843 Grant Avenue, San Francisco, CA 94108, USA
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A JUREE BURIT 239 SENHRERET O
Luk Fook Jewellery Centre, No. 239 Temple Street, Jordan, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2308 1218 Fax: (852) 2374 1696
Website: www.lukfook.com.hk E-mail: group@lukfook.com.hk
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